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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWL R DM

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The global financial crisis, triggered by the US sub-prime mortgage problems
in 2007, intensified distinctly in 2008, especially after the collapse of Lehman
Brothers in September last year. The crisis quickly moved across assets,
markets and economies in an increasingly integrated world. The impact of
the financial tsunami on the real global economy began to emerge more
distinctly in the latter half of last year. By the end of 2008, most advanced
economies were already mired in recession, and the conditions of Asian
economies also deteriorated rapidly, evolving into a synchronized global
economic downturn. Being a small open economy, business activities in Hong
Kong were inevitably affected. As the global downturn deepened further, the
Hong Kong economy registered a Gross Domestic Product (GDP) contraction
of 2.5% in the fourth quarter of the year. Hong Kong's total exports
registered double-digit declines of 21.8% in January 2009 and the recently
announced 5.8% unemployment rate proof further this deteriorating

situation.

Notwithstanding the financial tsunami happened in the last quarter of 2008,
the Group attained a turnover for the whole year of 2008 of HK$2,216.9
million that represented a small decrease of 2.2% as compared to the
HK$2,266.2 million in 2007. Gross profit for the year was HK$423.7 million,
a 1.7% better than last year. Results for the year was a loss of HK$832.9
million (2007: a profit of HK$4.5 million) after charging administrative
expenses of HK$471.6 million (2007: HK$337.7 million), finance costs of
HK$93.7 million (2007: HK$139.1 million), share of results of associates of
HK$45.3 million (2007: HK$44.9 million); impairment loss recognised in
aggregate of approximately HK$609.0 million (2007: HK$32.2 million); and
after crediting an increase in fair value of investments held for trading of

HK$10.2 million (2007: a decrease of HK$7.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses increased by HK$133.9 million over that of 2007
resulted mainly from the absorption of the full year depreciation charge,
staff costs and other administrative expenses of Shenyang Limited (acquired
in August 2007) and Tangula Group Limited (acquired in November 2007);
refurbishment expenses on the Group’s aged hotel chain and provision
for compensation to existing and former employees following the court

judgement issued in January 2009.

Consequent to the global financial tsunami, the Group’s has recorded
impairment on its available-for-sale investments in the PRC of approximately
HK$87.0 million; impairment on hotel properties in the PRC and construction
in progress of HK$316.5 million; impairment on intangible assets attributable
to the Tangula luxury train business and Macau hotel operation of HK$192.8

million.

On the other hand, the gain on disposal of Kingsway Hotel Limited of
HK$82.3 million and discount on acquisition of Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang

of HK$47.3 million did not recur in 2008.

SEGMENT RESULTS
Travel and Related Services

Travel and related services of the Group comprise mainly outbound tours,
air ticketing and air/hotel packages. Affected by the financial tsunami
and the political confrontation in Thailand, turnover of this segment was
HK$1,899.4 million and represented a decrease of 4.7% from HK$1,993.8
million in 2007. Segment profit for the year was HK$20.1 million (2007:
HK$51.9 million) before taking into account impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill attributable to the Group's Sichuan operation following
the disastrous earthquake happened in May 2008. The provision made for
compensation to existing and former employees (presented as provision for
loss contingencies in the consolidated balance sheet) also affects significantly

the results of this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWL R DM

Hotel and Leisure Services

The three “Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels, the Times Plaza Hotel,
Shenyang acquired in 2007, the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel and the Square

Inn budget hotel chain comprise the hotel and leisure business of the Group.

Turnover increased by 16.5% to HK$317.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: HK$272.5 million) with a full year contribution of
turnover from Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang. The segment resulted a loss of
HK$9.4 million (2007: a profit of HK$38.6 million) before taking into account
impairment loss in aggregate of approximately HK$110.0 million on (i) the
fair value of the Group's hotel properties in the PRC following a downturn of
the property market consequent to the financial tsunami especially during the
last quarter of 2008; and (ii) the intangible assets attributable to the Group’s
hotel operation in Macau following the scale down of the gaming business
and tightened regulations in granting entry visa for Chinese Nationals to

Macau during the year.

Luxury Train Services

The Group has 72% controlling interests in Tangula Group Limited
("Tangula”) and its subsidiary has the right to operate two routes on the

Qinghai-Tibet Railway from Beijing to each of Lhasa and Lijiang.

In view of the current recession of both Europe and the United States of
America, where the major customers group Tangula is targeting on, and the
prolonged political and social instability in Lhasa, commencement of the

business has been further postponed to the first quarter of 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Results for the year ended 31 December 2008 was a loss of HK$432.2 million
(2007: a loss of HK$6.2 million) after charging impairment loss on intangible
assets and construction costs of the train compartments in aggregate of
approximately HK$400 million (2007: HK$nil). This impairment provision was
determined by the management based on the revised budget on this luxury
train business and taking into consideration the risk associated with the
current political situation in Tibet and the worldwide economic environment.
The management shall review and assess the situation at the next balance
sheet date to determine if further provision of impairment is required or
a reversal of the provision is justified as allowed by the current applicable

accounting standards.

Securities Trading

During the year, the Group has, through its wholly owned subsidiaries,
involved in the trading of securities actively. Profit generated from this
segment for the year ended 31 December 2008 was HK$10.2 million (2007:
a loss of HK$7.2 million).

Associates

The Group's associated company, Travoo International Limited (“Travoo”)
transacts its air ticketing and hotel bookings business in the PRC. The Group's
share of loss in this associated company for the year was HK$6.5 million

versus HK$9.3 million for 2007.

The main business of Sino Express Travel, Ltd. (“Sino Express”), is the
investment and operation of a hotel resort and theme park in the Guangdong
Province, the PRC. As disclosed in the Group's interim financial report,
the postponement of putting into place the second phase of the hotel
development resulted an impairment loss of goodwill recorded in the books
of Sino Express and shared by the Group as to HK$35.7 million. As a result,
the Group's share of loss of this associated company for the year ended 31
December 2008 was HK$39.0 million against the HK$35.9 million in 2007.
In December 2008, the Group, after taking consideration the development
potential of the resort held by Sino Express and the surrounding hotels and
tourism attractions, acquired further interests in Sino Express and it became

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group since then.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Material Acquisitions

On 31 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the
entire share capital of and the shareholder loan to More Star Limited (“More
Star”) for a consideration of HK$20,000,000. The sole asset of More Star is
its investment in the entire issued share capital of Fortress State International
Limited (“Fortress State”). Fortress State has been awarded the tender
and entered into the Memorandum of Agreement to acquire the property
located at Tai Kok Tsui Road (the “Property”) for a total consideration of
HK$163,880,000. The acquisition of More Star and the Property were

completed in January and February 2008 respectively.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 15 May 2008 and 4 June 2008, the Company has entered an
underwriting agreement and a supplemental agreement for a rights issue
on the basis of four right shares (with bonus warrants) for every one
share held on the Record Date at HK$0.06 per rights share (the “Rights
Issue”). A total of not more than 10,594,505,212 shares and not less than
7,283,034,080 shares would be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue. The
Company intended to raise not more than HK$635.7 million and not less
than HK$437.0 million from the Rights Issue before expenses. The proceeds
from the Rights Issue would be utilized for (i) the expansion of the Group’s
travel and related business in the PRC; (ii) the investment opportunities in
the hotel and/or leisure resort related properties in Hong Kong and in the
PRC; (iii) the repayment of certain bank and other borrowings; and (iv) the
general working capital of the Group. The Rights Issue was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting held on 2 July

2008 and 7,295,874,988 rights shares were being allotted.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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At the balance sheet date, the Group's total borrowings were as follows: REER AEEZEBEBBNT:
As at As at
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
HK$ million HK$ million
R=ZBNF RZZTLF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+—8
BEER BEATT
Loan from related companies B2k 189.0 277.0
Borrowings — amount due within one year 411.9 88.8
Borrowings — amount due after one year BE——F& 38R 61.7 366.7
Consideration note - 215
Promissory note 70.0 106.5
Convertible notes 593.2 554.2
1,325.8 1,414.7

The convertible notes issued in June 2006, due in June 2011, bear interest R ZZTERFNABTER T ——F <A
at a fixed rate of 2% per annum and a loan from a related company of  Z|Hiz ] # IR Z IR E F A RS F2ET S
ER

outstanding principal of approximately HK$188.2 million as at year end bears m—
18

fixed interest rate of 10.32% per annum. All other borrowings bear floating

interest rates.

FAEARERNFRZAEBELASELY
8,200,000/ 7t RII3Z B & M| R F F10.32/2 5F
BB EMEESRZEFIRETE -

oH

In March 2009, the Company has renewed with a local bank for a facility of R -ZTZTAE=F A QA A2 EH—BAHETT
HK$430 million. The new bank loan is repayable by instalments and in full by~ $£430,000,0005 JT 2§ & 584 4 » #iE R 1T

March 2012.

RAR_ZE-—_F=ARoHEBEERE

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2008, expressed as a percentage of total MR -_ZEZENF+_-_F=+—H BEAXRBELX
borrowings to equity attributable to shareholders of the parent, was 72.2% (REERBRESATIRFEGER 2B D

(At 31.12.2007: 69.2%).

Pledge of Assets

LEAR) B722% (R—EELF+-_A=+—
H:69.2%) °

EEEA

At 31 December 2008, certain assets of the Group at net book value of R-_ZEZN\F+-_A=+—H AEBEH
HK$850.4 million (2007: HK$629.0 million) were pledged to banks and  BE ;% {& £850,400,000/8 7T ( — &+ 4 :

financial institutions for credit facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2008.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities and business transactions

were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.

As at balance sheet date, the Group did not have entered into any hedging
arrangements. However the management will continue to monitor closely
its foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for further

hedging facilities when necessary.

Employees

At 31 December 2008, the Group has approximately 2,280 employees of
which 27 employees were stationed overseas and 1,376 employees were
stationed in the PRC. Competitive remuneration packages are structured
to commensurate with the responsibilities, qualifications, experience
and performance of individual employees. The Group also provides
training programmes, provident fund scheme and medical insurance for
its employees. Total staff remuneration incurred for the year ended 31
December 2008 were approximately HK$214.1 million (2007: HK$169.9

million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group had a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved
and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May 2002, to enable
the directors to grant options to employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive and non-executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and any suppliers,
consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute or have contributed to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries as incentives and rewards for their
contribution to the Company or such subsidiaries. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme, when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Scheme (the “General Limit”). The Company proposed to
refresh the General Limit so that the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as “refreshed”.
The refreshment of the General Limit was approved by the shareholders of

the Company in the annual general meeting held on 23 May 2008.

All outstanding share options were lapsed as at balance sheet date.

PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong Government has issued a warning of the second wave of
financial tsunami. Economists envisaged that the impact of this second wave
will be even more devastating than the first wave we are experiencing. While
there is no authoritative estimation of the timing of the economic recovery,
without any doubt, the coming year will be a hard time to the tourism

industry.

The China Focus

Notwithstanding the financial crisis, China continues to be the world tourism
focus on both domestic and international travel. The ITB World Travel Trends
Report written and publicised by IPK International at the Berlin Travel Trade
Show in March 2009 said that China is the most welcome nation and is one
of two new hopes of the travel industry. The Report predicted that there will
be a lower growth rate of the tourism industry in China in 2009 despite of
the financial tsunami and the tourism industry will be recovered by the end

of 2009.

EEEWL K DM

REEERA BB 8 ([%518]) - &&t
ER_TE_FRA=-AEERDARRIER

R BEEREU A AAR R REEMHERF
BE TTRABSSARE (BREARRHEE
M B AR 2T RIFMITES) - URBER
LRUARNBSEEMAMBRRELER 2K
FER - BERR  RIBAAARK LB - A
RE R EERES AR B HZESNE R BME
ZERBR - RIBZET EIARE R H 2 AR TS )2
Z Rty AR R A E I PSRz Bty — B Et
8 BEARTHEBARBRRIERRAZ
AEIHBZEBEITRA10% ([—ARIRE]) - &
RADEREH —RRE BEREZE R
AR BRI E B ARERT BB Z BB
REITERAETZRNEE ENE—RE
FREHE [ | EREBTRMNZ210% - AR
ARRERZZZENFEA-T=ZHETZK
RBFRG LHEFH KRR

REEBMBRARITRZBRED RN -

<)

EERNERSREME RBEHESE L
BREF HAEERREZE K FRL
FERBERRE -BERBALERBALEER
B R AR B ZEER REHIRER
= # AR A -

=l

TEERE

BEEH RS B EREE A K B R
e 77 Y R 4B /5 2 BRIk b 35 2 R Bh o AR AR AR IPK
International## & I ¥ — ZZ 1.4 = A #EBerlin
Travel Trade Show (TEMIKEE 5 & ) #4h 2 The
ITB World Travel Trends Report (ITBtt FAikiziB 5
HE)  HEARZEDBIR - &k 5 R E
MHLEZ — - ZBERA GEXERBERY
. PEREER ST NFNASFRIEE
RE MREEBR SN FFREF-

)-)- 2008 43 - KRB (ER) HRAT



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWL R DM

The Group has formulated strategies to expand its PRC network in the
coming year through (i) acquisition of travel agents; (i) expanding its “Square
Inn" hotel portfolio through leasing and self-construction; and (iii) acquisition
of further 4-star rated business class hotels to strengthen its Rosedale
hotels chain. Despite the financial downturn, the Company sees it a good
opportunity to expand at lower costs, equipped and prepared itself for the

possible economic recovery in 2010-2011.

Tangula Luxury Train

Considering the prolonged political stress in Lhasa and the economic
recession of Europe and the United States of America where the majority of
the target customers are coming from, the Group considered that it would
be beneficial to the company to postpone the commencement of the train
operation to the first quarter of 2010. The Company considered that the
postponement of the operation will help to rebuild visitors’ confidence to
enjoy their trip to a stable and peaceful Tibet. Given that Tibet is a very
attractive place to western visitors and the fare of the journey has been
reasonable priced, the Group is confident that the Tangula luxury train will
become the most preferable choice for those travellers visiting Tibet. This
will further enhance the status of the Group in the market and will provide

considerable contribution to the results of the Group in the future.

The Hong Kong Travel Business

The Hong Kong outbound business will continue to be the major revenue
contributor to the Group in the foreseeable future. The Group shall continue
to put in resources and effort to enhance the service quality and to uplift
the status of our prestige customers. Considering that the downturn of the
local economy will persist throughout 2009, the Company, by reviewing the
pricing and costs structure of its product line and through the co-operation
with airlines, hotels and other service vendors, will launch series of valued
products for our prestige customers to enjoy continuously our quality service
at a more meaningful price level. The Group is confident that its traditional
tour business will maintain its competitiveness in the market and survive this

financial storm and provide considerable contribution to the Group.

Furthermore, the Group is actively identifying acquisition and joint venture

targets in the south east Asia to enlarge its network and market sharing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hotel Operations

The Group has identified certain targets in the Henan Province, the PRC
where there is a number of cultural attractions such as the Shaolin Temple
and the Mount. Dapi. The Group is in an active stage of negotiation with
respective owners and has obtained satisfactory progress. It is envisaged that
the Square Inn branded budget hotel chain will be expanded sizely towards

the end of 2009.

The acquisition of the Tai Kok Tsui Road project was completed in February
2008. Site foundation and superstructure work is underway. Operation of the

new hotel is targeted to commence in the first quarter of 2011.

The Group shall continue to look for further acquisition target to strengthen

its Rosedale business hotel network and to increase its sharing in the market.
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Directors Profile

ESEHN

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 55, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since October 2003. Mr. Cheung graduated from the University of
London with a Bachelor of Arts degree and has over 31 years of experience in
real estate development, property investment and corporate finance. He has
worked in key executive positions in various leading property development
companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Cheung is the chairman of ITC
Properties Group Limited and an executive director of ITC Corporation
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of International
Entertainment Corporation and Future Bright Holdings Limited (formerly

known as Innovo Leisure Recreation Holdings Limited).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 53, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since April 2002. He obtained the honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and
has over 25 years' experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap
is the chairman of Hanny Holdings Limited; executive director of Big Media
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the GEM board of
the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong; and chairman and chief executive officer
of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the
OTC Securities Market in the United States of America. Dr. Yap is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a
company whose shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada
and Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany; and an executive chairman of PSC
Corporation Ltd and Intraco Limited and a chairman of Tat Seng Packaging
Group Ltd, companies whose shares are listed in Singapore. He is also the
chairman of MRI Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the

Australian Securities Exchange.
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Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 58, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor, master of
ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator. Mr. Chan has over 23

years' experience in the entertainment and film industry in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since December 2002. He was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of business
administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and investments
business for over 24 years, principally in the senior managerial position
leading a sizable sales team. He is also an independent non-executive director

of ITC Properties Group Limited and Hanny Holdings Limited.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 47, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since March 2007. He graduated from
the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Poon is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.
Mr. Poon is currently the independent non-executive director of Hanny

Holdings Limited.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and shareholder of
a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data storage media and
computer related products in Asian countries. Mr. Sin obtained a diploma
in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He has over 10 years' experience in banking
field and has over 10 years’ sales and marketing experience in information
technology industries. He is also an independent non-executive director of

Hanny Holdings Limited.
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Senior Management Profile
SREBEAEBRN

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 43, has been the Qualified Accountant of the
Company since September 2004. Ms. Chan is the Group Financial Controller
of the Company and director of major subsidiaries of the Group. She joined
the Company in May 2002. Ms. Chan has 20 years' experience in auditing,
accounting and finance in both international accounting firms and listed
companies. Ms. Chan oversees the accounting and financial management of
the Group. She is a core member of the Travel Division’s Strategic Planning
and Operations Management team. She also focuses on corporate matters
of the Group. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and also a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan is an executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited and independent non-executive director of Trasy
Gold Ex Limited, companies whose shares are listed in Hong Kong. She is also
the deputy chairman of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares
are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United States of America and
a director of MRI Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the

Australian Securities Exchange.

TRAVEL BUSINESS

Ms. Leung Kong Lan, Lanny, aged 48, is the Chief Executive Officer
of Hong Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited and director of a few
of the Company'’s subsidiaries and associates. She joined the Group in
November 1984. Ms. Leung focuses on formulating strategies for the overall
management of travel division, exploring business opportunities in new
markets including the potential mainland China market and promoting the
development of the travel industry. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Leung is the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Association of China Travel
Organizers Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee on Cruise Industry
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the
Outbound Committee of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, and a
certified instructor of both the Tourism Industry Skill Upgrading Scheme and
the Outbound Escort Examination Course of the Travel Industry Council. She

has over 20 years of experience in the travel industry.
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Senior Management Profile

Ms. Chan Shuk Fong, Jo Jo, aged 44, is the General Manager of Hong
Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited. She joined the Group in December
1994. She is a core member of the Strategic Planning and Operations
Management team of travel division. Ms. Chan’s expanded role includes
strategic development and operations management in all aspects of Hong
Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited. Ms. Chan currently serves in the
Inbound Committee of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, and the
Council of the Hong Kong Association of China Travel Organizers Limited.
She is a member of the University of South Australia Tourism & Hospitality
Management Advisory Panel, and the Hong Kong Baptist University College
of International Education Advisory Committee; as well as program advisors
of the Associate of Social Science in Leisure and Tourism Management of
Community College of City University, and the Associate of Social Science
(Tourism) of Hong Kong Institute of Education. Ms. Chan holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and a Postgraduate Diploma from the
University of Leicester. She has over 15 years of management experience in

travel and related industries.

HOTEL BUSINESS

Mr. Ng Chack Yan, aged 58, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited
in November 2002 and appointed as the Assistant General Manager since
April 2003. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and
a master’s degree in accounting. He has over 21 years of experience in the
hotel industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng held a number of executive
positions in various hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in the

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and Indonesia.
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Senior Management Profile

SREBAEEN

Mr. Cheng Chun Chau, aged 43, participated in the foundation of Rosedale
on the Park (“Rosedale-HK") in 2000. Mr. Cheng is currently the General
Manager of Rosedale-HK and was also appointed as the General Manager
of Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Guangzhou since August 2008. Mr. Cheng holds
a master’s degree in strategic hospitality management and is a member
of the Institute of Hospitality, UK. He has over 24 years of experience and
knowledge in managing hotels and projects in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng held a number of executive positions

in various hotels in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Wan Lok Tin, Ivan, aged 50, joined Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Beijing as
the General Manager in March 2005 and held the concurrent position of the
General Manager of Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang since April 2008. Mr. Wan
is rewarded as a Certified Hotel Administrator by the American Hotel & Motel
Association. Mr. Wan is also a member of the Hotel & Catering International
Management Association. He has over 31 years of experience in the hotel
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wan worked as the General Manager

in various hotels in the PRC and Macau.

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(

N_EEE

N —— ==

BRERRK A - IREF435% - 1
HBBE ([E81E])2 TIE-8p5c4
REEBIHB ALE YR-_ZETN\FN\A
BEZEAEMNIABEE 2 8818 - B £ 45
BRSNS EIRE T 20 WA KB Institute
of Hospitality2 & & - FREE KRB 28
ERIBEEREFEES4FE KR KETN
HEMAXRERR REREBRPEZH
BE TR ER:

ZEMATE

BERKE HES0 N_TEZRF=AM
AL RIARBEELFACE - WH-FT
N\E A RFREERS R R ESEERSE R
S AR B SR BB JE R R S e B R T B IR
ABZEEBRK - RFEETREBEERKR
XEREEBE S8 - BNV EEREB3F
B TEMAKREBER B KA NP E KR
NEAG VIR F b



Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests
of the Company'’s shareholders. To accomplish this, the Group has adopted
practices which meet the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). During the
year, the Company has complied with the Code except code provisions A.2.1,

A4.1and E.1.2.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the directors. Having made specific enquiry on all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard as set

out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors comprises the managing director, two executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors. The Board of
Directors is principally accountable to the shareholders and responsible for
the leadership and control of the Group including overseeing the Group's
businesses, strategic directions, financial performance, setting objectives and
business development plans, and monitoring the performance of the senior

management.
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Corporate Governance Report
AREARE

The Board of Directors meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy, monitor business development as well as the financial
performance of the Group and has formal procedures on matters for
consideration and decision. The Board of Directors has delegated certain
authorities to the senior management for the day-to-day management of the
Group's operation. The attendance of directors at the five full board meetings

held in 2008 is as follows:

Director Attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Managing Director) 5
Dr. Yap, Allan 4
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 3
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 5

(resigned on 9 January 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 5
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 5
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 5

(appointed on 28 January 2008)

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer with the title of
chief executive officer (“CEQ") but instead the duties of a CEO are performed
by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, the Managing Director of the Company, in the same
capacity as the CEO of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The chairman of the Company had resigned. The Company is in the process

of identifying suitable candidate to fill the casual vacancy of chairman.

Under the code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting. As the Company is in the process of identifying the
chairman, the other executive director, present at the annual general meeting
held on 23 May 2008, took the chair of that meeting in accordance with Bye-
Law 68 of the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors as required under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference with reference to the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and such terms of reference are in line with the code

provisions set out in the Code.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year for reviewing the reporting
of annual and interim results and other information to the shareholders, and
the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit process. Additional meetings
may be held by the Audit Committee from time to time to discuss special
projects or other issues which the Audit Committee considers necessary. The
external auditor of the Company may request a meeting if they consider
that one is necessary. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the
scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and

objectivity of the auditor.
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NEERHRE

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and
the Company’s auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the audited financial statements and unaudited interim

financial statements.

The members and attendance of the three meetings of the Audit Committee

in 2008 are as follows:

Director Attendance
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 3

(appointed on 28 January 2008)

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The current independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term.
However, all directors (including executive and non-executive) of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting

in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in April 2005
with written terms of reference in line with the Code. The Remuneration
Committee will meet at least once a year to consider and recommend to
the Board the Group’s remuneration policy and structure and to review
and determine the remuneration packages of the executive directors and
senior management. The directors are remunerated with reference to their
respective duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s

performance and current market situation.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive

directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the remuneration policy and review and approve the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and senior management of the Company. The

members and attendance of the meeting are as follows:

Director Attendance
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 1
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 1

(resigned on 9 January 2009)

Details of emoluments of the directors from the Group for the year are as

disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.
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NEERHRE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board of Directors has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board of Directors.
The nomination should be taken into consideration of the nominee’s
qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company. During
the year, a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company which were
attended by Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard were held to appoint
independent non-executive director and member of the audit committee of

the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, the directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The directors
are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group, for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Corporate Governance Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the year, the auditor of the Company received approximately

HK$4,860,000 for audit and audited related services.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 43.

Internal Control

During the year, the Company reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control procedures which include the policies, procedures,
monitoring and communication activities and standard of behaviour
established for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the

Company.

REERRE

% BN 2 B 5

FRARD B LA E B AL N EBAZ AR RIS
I B #474,860,0007% JT. ©

ARARZBENE R REE(EH 2 BAFNE
A3EZ B ZBENRE ©

A
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the

"Group") for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the business of providing package tours, travel and
other related services, hotel operation in Hong Kong and the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC") and trading of securities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in

the consolidated income statement on page 45.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 188.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out

in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Particulars of the convertible notes of the Company are set out in note 44 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which were
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2008 were

approximately HK$433,520,000 (2007: HK$616,392,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out

on pages 189 to 192 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEE®RE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Managing Director)
Dr. Yap, Allan
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(resigned on 9 January 2009)

55
RENRRERRE B FARSIESS

HITES:

REGSTE (EFshum)

Yap, Allanf# +

BRE A EE

BIER A
(RZZTTNF—ANAEE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYEHTES:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva ELEE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert v B B S A
Mr. Sin Chi Fai Vi - Yika s
(appointed on 28 January 2008) (RZZEENF-—A=ZTN\BEZE)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Cheung Hon ~ RIEAR A E 2 A AN BS998R 7F » OB HE ST
Kit and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert will retire by rotation and, being eligible, A=} & B #1455 A 15 70 fE JE IR R B FF A 2437 iR

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. T ERETEERLEREERET-

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject ~ RIFEARR G Z A FIMEIE T BIUIFNITES
NET B AR FERT -

to retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-Laws.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had transactions with certain directors of the
Company and certain companies in which directors of the Company have
interests, details of which are set out in note 59 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange were as follows:—

NF+ZA=+—RB KTREEFRH
TTRBHNA DR R EEEAE (E&LE
KR RD) (TE 7 R ARG ) BEXVER) 2
- HEBROXEFTREAQREEZRAE
GPIEXVERE 7R FE8 D & (R IERIEE 7 M
BIGHIA BIGXREEIR RBEA Z R TOX
BIAMNEARARARRBEERERHMAERRAA
(TEEZXFT ) - S(b)iRIBE 7 K B & 15 5352
GRAAZIGDIFTIE 2 B M A - (R IRE
R EmARA ([ LRI Rz ETET
AEFETEFRZHRESTRI ([FEFA])
AHEARNRBI Rz LRRIT : —

Interests in the shares RG22 s
Approximate
Long position/ Nature Number of percentage of
Name of director Short position Capacity of interest shares held shareholding
Fifs R A 2 #E
EEEB ®aE/KE 51 EEME gvy 4= KWEDL
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 150,000 0.002%
A TR BEmBAA (BN 525 150,000 0.002%

Interests in underlying shares under equity
derivatives

The directors or chief executive of the Company have been granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”), details of

which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Share Option Scheme EARAEL &

The Scheme which was approved and adopted by its shareholderson 3 May R=ZZZE=_FAHA=H AQFIZREEIE

2002 and amended on 27 May 2005, is valid and effective for a period of 10 ~ MEMZTE YR —_ZTHRFRA - ++AH

years since the date of adoption until 2 May 2012. ELER] %At B B R BT T FRNBA R K
ERE-_T——FREA=A-

Details of options granted and a summary of the movements of the — RER - BiFZEIDHH & K170 B

outstanding options under the Scheme during the year are as follows: R BEFHBO:
Number of share options
BREYE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding
asat during during during during asat  Exercise price
Eligible participant 1 January 2008 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2008 pershare Date of grant Exercisable period
HKS
RZ2BNF RZ2BNEF
—-A-H t=A=1-H
RERAL HRTR REARH RERTE RERXK RERTH HATE  BRORE RHAM fig:E
BT
Director
Ez
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
FERTE
Dr. Yap, Allan 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Yap, Allanfs +
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
RE#RE
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(resigned on 9 January 2009) 3,600,000 - = 3,600,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
AkREE
(R=RBNF-ANBRE)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 250,000 - - 250,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
BREURE
Employees 25,935,000 - - 25,935,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
&I
Eligible participants 7,400,000 - - 7,400,000 - - 0.728  22.6.2006 22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
RERAL
46,685,000 - - 46,685,000 - -

)-)- 2008 % - XTI (ZR)ERAT 29
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such

subsidiaries.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the

date of approval and adoption of the Scheme.

As at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2008, an
ordinary resolution was passed to amend the Scheme so that the Scheme sets
out that when determining the “refreshed” 10% limit under the Scheme as
at the date of approval of the limit, options previously granted (i.e. before the
date of approval of the limit) under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for

the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any individual
in aggregate in any 12 month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their respective associates
(as defined in Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result in the number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12 month period up to and including

the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the shareholders of
the Company who are not connected persons of the Company as defined in

the Listing Rules.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days of the date of offer. The
consideration payable for the options is HK$1. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date of acceptance of the share options to such date
as determined by the Board of Directors but in any event not exceeding 10
years. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, (ii) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of

the shares of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 182,075,852 shares and represents 2% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year; and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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EEE®RE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Interests of the directors of the Company in competing businesses as at 31

December 2008 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing

Rules were as follows:

Name of director

ExfE

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group
HEBREREXRER 2
EBARFMHR
AEEEREEZERER

X

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group
HEBREREXRERE 2
EBEHEMR
AEEAREHEZERET

ESENALFEEET 2 ER

BRIELTRAUESI0GATRERRREER
TERN\FT A=t HREABRFUELZ

Nature of interest of
the director in the entity

EERZER ERNE

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

REGEE

ITC Properties Group
Limited (“ITC Properties”) and its
subsidiaries

EFMESREBR DA
(TErEE]) REHE A A

China Development Limited

Rz EERARAR

Artnos Limited

BAfE AR A A

Co-Forward Development Ltd.

ERERERAF

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -*(

Property investment in

Hong Kong

REENEMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBHEHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Chairman of ITC Properties

BRMEZTRE

Director and shareholder

BEENER

Director and shareholder

BEEMBR

Director and shareholder

EERRR



Name of director

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

Report of the Directors

Description of businesses of

the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

EEEHRE

Nature of interest of
the director in the entity

HEBRRRELEEZ HEBHRARIEEZ
EREBRIMR EBEHRIMR
EBEB THEREE2EEEE THEABFECERER EERZERcREEtE
Orient Centre Limited Property investment in Shareholder
Hong Kong
REBRAFE REBEFHERE AR

Super Time Limited

REER AR

Asia City Holdings Ltd

TEHEEFR AT

Supreme Best Ltd.

Supreme Best Ltd.

Orient Holdings Limited

RAKBEERQH

Link Treasure International Ltd

FERRERAA

Silver City Limited

RBERAA

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBRFHERSE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBEFMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREFHERSE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
RNEBRFEMERE

Director and shareholder

EERRR

Director and shareholder

BEEMER

Shareholder

B IR

Director and shareholder

EERRR

Director and shareholder

BEEMER

Director and shareholder

EERBR

)-)- 2008 43 - KRB (ER) HRAT

33



34

Report of the Directors

EEE®RE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, so far as was known to the directors or chief

executive of the Company, the following persons (other than directors

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in

the shares and underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Interests in the shares

FERR

RZTENF+ZA=+—8"
SATBABEFA LA NALT (RARIEEHIT
BABHER M) &) R ABRE R R HE B IR B B
HRHAEBMNEXVEE2REIDBERAA

REZEDRIRR:

() Rz

RAEARRES

Approximate
Name of Long position/ Nature Number of percentage of
shareholder short position Capacity of interest shares held shareholding
Rz
RRERH HE/ %R L) BEME FisRGHE BHAADL
(@) Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 22,649,000 0.25%
(Note 2)
FREISR 1+ A E=EEAA AR 22,649,000 0.25%
(T 2£2)
Long position Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 1,529,230,000 16.77%
corporation
R XEHRA ER  ARER 1,529,230,000 16.77%
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Long position Interest of spouse Spouse interest 1,551,879,000 17.02%
(Note 2)
gzt H#E [y 3 [y 3 1,551,879,000 17.02%
(T 2£2)
ITC Corporation Limited Long position Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest 1,529,230,000 16.77%
("ITC") (Note 2) corporation
EHLREEERA iHa XEHRA ER  ARER 1,529,230,000 16.77%

([EERZE]) (W:2)
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Approximate
Name of Long position/ Nature Number of percentage of
shareholder short position Capacity of interest shares held shareholding
REZ
RRAB HE/ %A 51 BEME FisRGEE BHEDL
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(Note 2) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited 1R REGAR BE RAER 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(TH322)
Leaptop Investments Limited Long position Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(Note 2) corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited I58) REGIAR R DAERE 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(TH3£2)
Asia Will Limited Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(Note 2)
BEBRAR e ERfBA NI 5 1,529,230,000 16.77%
(T222)
(b) China Enterprises Limited Long position Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 1,165,208,488 12.78%
("CEL") (Note 3) corporations
China Enterprises Limited e XEBHNAz#R  ARER 1,165,208,488 12.78%
(TCELY) (M33)
Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 5,000,000 0.05%
e ERfEBA NI 5 5,000,000 0.05%
Cosmos Regent Ltd. Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 866,511,083 9.50%
(Note 3)
Cosmos Regent Ltd. 58) ERBEEA NAlER 866,511,083 9.50%
(T 2£3)

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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(ii) Interests in the underlying Shares under equity (i) RRASTETAPHEERSG 2&E

derivatives m
Number of Approximate
underlying Shares percentage
(under equity of the issued
Name of Long position/ Nature derivatives of share capital of
Shareholder Short position Capacity of interest the Company) the Company
HERH EERATE
(KRR ZBRAE BRiTRAZ
RRERH R/ %R 5 BEMEE fTEIR)HAE BAEA
(@) Mr. Li Ka-Shing (Note 1) Long position Founder of discretionary ~ Corporate and other 589,970,501 6.47%

trusts and interest of interests
controlled corporations

FEUKE (Wl) e S2REFZRIAR  DARAMER 589,970,501 6.47%
R ARz B

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Long position Trustee and Other interest 589,970,501 6.47%
Corporation Limited (as beneficiary of a trust
trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust) (Note 1)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee HE EEARGERRA  Hit#Ex 589,970,501 6.47%
Corporation Limited (£
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
TrustZ fE5EA) (1)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Long position Trustee and Other interest 589,970,501 6.47%

Limited (as trustee of another beneficiary of a trust
discretionary trust) (Note 1)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp e EEARGEZRA  Hit#Esz 589,970,501 6.47%
Limited ({fER 5 —B 21
ERZEFEA) (Kl
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Number of Approximate
underlying Shares percentage
(under equity of the issued
Name of Long position/ Nature derivatives of ~ share capital of
Shareholder Short position Capacity of interest the Company) the Company
HERS EERATE
(RARZBAR BOREZ
BRREH #E/ KR 54 BEMEE fTEIR)HAE BAEA
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Long position Trustee Other interest 589,970,501 6.47%
Company Limited (as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust)
(Note 1)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee e EFEA Hit##z 589,970,501 6.47%
Company Limited ({E%
The Li Ka-Shing Unity
TrustZ fE5EA) (Bazl)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 589,970,501 6.47%
("CKH") (Note 1) corporations
RIE% (RB)ERAR e L NI 5 INSIL:F 589,970,501 6.47%
(IREEE]) (M1
Hutchison Whampoa Limited Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 589,970,501 6.47%
("HWL") (Note 1) corporation
MR &EHERAA e S AR 2R NG5 589,970,501 6.47%
([ME]) (M1
Hutchison International Limited Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 589,970,501 6.47%
("HIL") (Note 1)
Hutchison International Limited e ERBEAA RElER 589,970,501 6.47%

(THILT) (m321)
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Number of Approximate
underlying Shares percentage
(under equity of the issued
Name of Long position/ Nature derivatives of  share capital of
Shareholder Short position Capacity of interest the Company) the Company
HER B EEAFE
(RARZBRE BTRAZ
RRE® #R/ %R & BEME FETR)HA BHAEDL
(b) Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 4,529,800 0.05%
Charles (Note 2)
BE®EL (B:x2) HE EREBA EAER 4,529,800 0.05%
Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 305,846,000 3.35%
corporation
HE RRHIAR 2 s RNEER 305,846,000 335%
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse Spouse interest 310,375,800 3.40%
MR LT (W) HE i BEs Ao B 310,375,800 3.40%
[TC (Note 2) Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 305,846,000 3.35%
corporation
EREDE (H32) HE RAEH DAz s NGIL: £ 305,846,000 3.35%
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 305,846,000 3.35%
(Note 2) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited 78 XEH R A2 #n NG £ 305,846,000 3.35%
(M:£2)
Leaptop Investments Limited Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 305,846,000 3.35%
(Note 2) corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited HE Sy NI 3 AR 305,846,000 3.35%
(Tz22)
Asia Will Limited (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 305,846,000 3.35%
BEERAF (H3x2) HE EnEBA RAAER 305,846,000 335%

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Number of Approximate

underlying Shares percentage

(under equity of the issued

Name of Long position/ Nature derivatives of ~ share capital of

Shareholder Short position Capacity of interest the Company) the Company

HER B EERATE

(RARZBRE BTks2

BRRERH #R/ %R 5% BEMEE fTEIR)HAE BHEDL

(c) CEL(Note 3) Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 232,511,481 2.55%

corporations

CEL (M 323) e RESIAR 2 #s DRER 232,511,481 2.55%

Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 186,840,707 2.05%

e ERBEAA NIl 3y 186,840,707 2.05%

Cosmos Regent Ltd. (Note 3) Long position Beneficial owner Corporate interest 172,772,000 1.89%

Cosmos Regent Ltd. (i :3) e EaBAA NElER 172,772,000 1.89%

Notes: P22 ¢

(1) Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing, (1) ZEWEE ZBELERIE/RE

Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in
one-third of the entire issued share capital, owns the entire issued
share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited. Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust, together with certain companies which Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Company Limited as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of
the voting power at their general meetings, hold more than one-third

of the issued share capital of CKH.

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire
issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
("TDT1") as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust
("DT1") and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2") as trustee
of another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds
units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust. The discretionary beneficiaries
of DT1 and DT2 are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and
children and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard.

4 Z B ¥ AL Ka-Shing Unity Holdings
Limited2BEHITREAZ=D2—"
MmaZ A" AI# AL Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Company Limited 2 2 2 217 i%
7K Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
LimitedAThe Li Ka-Shing Unity Trusts
FRAZEG ERETARGHIFER
BEEE=0 22— U EZ2BBITRA:
MLi Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
LimitedAThe Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust(Z
FEAZENEREZZIRARZKRERN
g LIRS ERITE=S 22— EZ

RERE-

Bt SN v Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings
Limited R A Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Corporation Limited ([TDT1]) ({EA&
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust
(IDT1]) Z57E A) LA KLi Ka-Shing
Unity Trustcorp Limited ([TDT2]) ({E
BB —IEEREES (IDT2]) 2E7EA)
Z 2 EPE BTN - TDT1 R TDT2%& 5
B The Li Ka-Shing Unity TrustZ (S7EE
- DTIRDT2 2 AlgES s A 3 (H
BIE)ZREEE HREBRFLZ B
MBI
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Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of HWL. HWL holds the entire issued share capital of HIL.

By virtue of the SFO, each of HWL, CKH, Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee
Company Limited, TDT1, TDT2 and Mr. Li Ka-Shing who is the settlor
and may be regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the
purpose of the SFO, was deemed to be interested in 589,970,501
underlying shares (in respect of unlisted equity derivatives of the
Company) held by HIL.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 23 March 2006 and
entered into between HIL and the Company, HIL conditionally agreed
to subscribe for a 2% convertible exchangeable note due 2011
(the “HIL Note") issued by the Company with a principal amount of
HK$200,000,000. Completion of the subscription agreement took
place on 8 June 2006. HIL is entitled to convert the HIL Note into
589,970,501 shares on full conversion at an adjusted conversion price
of HK$0.339 per share (subject to any further adjustment) at any time
up to and including the date which is 7 days prior to the maturity date
of the HIL Note.

In accordance with the SFO, Asia Will Limited has total interest in
1,835,076,000 shares, of which 305,846,000 shares relate to its
derivative interests, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop
Investments Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Investment Holdings Limited. ITC Investment Holdings Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr.
Chan") directly holds approximately 4.69% of the issued share capital
of ITC and indirectly holds approximately 30.08% of the issued share
capital of ITC through his indirect wholly-owned company, Galaxyway
Investments Limited. Dr. Chan has beneficial and corporate interest
in 1,862,254,800 shares, of which 310,375,800 shares relate to his
beneficial and corporate derivative interests. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy,
the spouse of Dr. Chan, is also deemed to be interested in the above
1,862,254,800 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(
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Report of the Directors

(3) In accordance with the SFO, Million Good Limited, Cosmos Regent
Ltd. and Cyber Generation Limited have interests in 128,036,886
shares, 1,039,283,083 shares and 230,400,000 shares respectively
and are wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEL which has total interest
in 1,589,560,676 shares, of which 419,352,188 shares relate to its
derivative interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the directors or chief
executive of the Company were not notified of any other persons who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31

December 2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the total value of

the Group's purchases and turnover respectively.

EEEHRE

) REFHKHEED - Million Good
Limited: Cosmos Regent Ltd. %
Cyber Generation Limited? Bl &
128,036,886 % 17 ~ 1,039,283,083%
% {7 %.230,400,000/% B 15 2 #E = - ™
ZERNFARCELZZEMB AR M
CEL7E B 1,589,560,676 % AR {7 2 481
7 # H419,352, 1880 Ak 17 B HL 47 4
HEmARE-

B EXHBEEN RCBBNFT _A=+—
B ARREERITRAEY BEBNEME
ALTRARRSEETEEEE (8 RE
7 MR ERBIEXVER) 2 B tn - SRR 1D S ME
FHRBEAREES KA ROEXVEARAR
B M B PR 2 RS KR ©

BE -HEIEEAQF L™
B

RARHEEMMBRRANRBE —TZT/\F
T-A=+—RLFEAREBE HEXE
Bl AR BMEMR ETES

BrBEERE

B R T R 30 A S E AR A
HEAR 2 ] 2 2% A48 R 75 4 B SR 2
o

TEREFRHEER
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the Company

has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to

HK$1,010,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHEUNG HON KIT
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 24 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WING ON TRAVEL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 187, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 April 2009

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(

B NAITIRF LNERE SRS M IRRmM
HemRRBEEN CERER -MERZER
BURAZ B8R0 2 #1 8 B 15Tl ROREF il
RMETR AV BRRTFEEAGERRAL 2R
i o TEAT (A 5% 5 BB I - 12 80AM & 8 6 % (A 88
RENEEMN QT RER A MG HRRERZ
A EBIE S ARFTEE 2 BZIEF B3R
HER 2 ABEH 2 RBEERER -BRITE
EHEEEMRAZ G RR ZAE M RAE
Hzgsthet 2 BB ARG ESE M ®R
RZEBIHA -

TITHE  ATEESRENEE 2 BREE
RARTZERERREHER-

=R

RIIRR ZEHEEVBHRRERBETENE
SHAEEMATFHRE EEER_ZET
NE+ZA=FT—HAZEBRRN B EZA L
FE BEEEZBERRERE YERRE
BARBGDD) 2WBEREZRRE -

BE e BAERSE AT
B 2T AN

B
—ZETAFMNA=+MA



Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008

e W R

BEZRENF+ A=+ —BLFR

2008 2007
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2ENF —ETLF
B 5 FERT FHT
Turnover - 5 2,216,897 2,266,163
Direct operating costs HELEKA (1,793,199) (1,849,528)
Gross profit £ 423,698 416,635
Investment income TERA 7 11,296 30,484
Other income E A 8 6,040 8,657
Distribution and selling expenses DIERIHERT (51,718) (51,835)
Administrative expenses THAX (471,565) (337,744)
Finance costs BlE AR 9 (93,733) (139,123)
Share of results of associates BB E N R EE (45,345) (44,891)
Share of result of a jointly i —RERESI B 2 ¥ E
controlled entity (6,760) (650)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of JEUWE FX K | 8 2 B R
loan and interest receivables VRN SEi=] - (14,534)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AJft H &% & 2 B #ER
available-for-sale investments REEE (87,008) (6,440)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of £~ B HERBEE 1B
goodwill (12,705) (11,214)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of E b £ & & » B HER
other intangible assets REEE (192,840) =
(Impairment loss recognised) reversed ~ #2  #22 K R E 2
in respect of property, plant and (BRI EEE) &L
equipment (316,473) 2,137
Loss on disposal of properties under HEEEMEZEE
construction - (19,600)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of BEBEREZ AT EEE N
investments held for trading CR) 10,228 (7,143)
Increase in fair value of derivative ESBMI A2 AT EMEEM
financial instruments 3,073 3,783
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 52a,b &c 2,729 82,265
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR EE 52d - (274)
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ UZBEHI B A &) 2 T 53a, d 161 47,344
Change in fair value of investment REWMFEZ AN FEEE
properties (4,826) -
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE 10 (825,748) (42,143)
Taxation (expense) credit I (ZH)#E 12 (7,165) 46,631
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (EE)=F (832,913) 4,488
Attributable to: FEAh
Shareholders of the parent FARIE (688,918) (16,199)
Minority interests DENE R (143,995) 20,687
(832,913) 4,488
Dividends % 2 13 9,103 11,908
HK$ HK$
BT ST
Loss per share BRERE
- Basic and diluted —ERREE 14 0.12) (0.01)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

At 31 December 2008 7+ =—RENF+ - =+—1

2008 2007
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Sr Ty —2Rts
B3 FExT FHAT
Non-current assets EMEEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERE T 15 2,679,888 2,300,940
Investment properties REME 16 217,777 174,938
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERIE 17 154,019 =
Interests in associates E’\Hﬁfﬁa‘*’R 7Z$§ﬁ_ﬁ 18 2,737 66,144
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—REREGI T 2 19 9,069 6,329
Available-for-sale investments TL& ’%&é 20 162,984 249,992
Goodwill [k 21 - 12,705
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 23 263,191 466,286
Investment deposits and other assets BETeRAMEE 24 109,066 279,864
Club debentures, at cost SMES  BRAE 713 713
3,599,444 3,557,911
Current assets REAE
Inventories =& 25 7,559 9,283
Amounts due from related companies FE U BEE A B FIE 26 36,419 64,583
Amounts due from associates i NCIF /@] 27 140,374 239,145
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH b U AR X 28 266,689 481,574
Prepaid lease payments BN HEERE 17 5,635 =
Loan receivables FEWE K 29 37,744 94,349
Loans to related companies BTEEBERAZER 30 8,757 30,000
Derivative financial instruments TEemIT A 31 - 5,972
Investments held for trading FIEEBZIRE 32 10,190 27,531
Tax recoverable EIRdEk 5 =
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIFER 33&55 12,063 11,916
Trading cash balances B R eER 33 238 273
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 33 498,609 198,774
1,024,282 1,163,400
Assets classified as held for sale DEARFELHEZEE 34 - 92,314
1,024,282 1,255,714
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EM IR 35 611,095 426,936
Provision for loss contingencies HAEIE  EERE 36 17,000 =
Loans from related companies BE LB ER 37 188,981 277,045
Amounts due to associates JE 5Bt = R B 5K 0A 27 10,075 12,749
Tax liabilities BIEEE 16,273 2,105
Amounts due to related companies FEEEE A R IE 38 51,627 54,544
Amount due to a jointly controlled PR — R LR 6 B B RIE
entity 19 920 -
Obligations under finance leases BEML 2 AE
- amount due within one year ——F R E| HKRIE 39 284 45
Borrowings EE
— amount due within one year ——FRE| B8 40 411,901 88,753
Promissory note EGTES 41 70,000 106,455
Consideration note REZE 42 - 21,545
Amounts due to minority shareholders FEAS B8 A Bl DB R K
of subsidiaries 43 105,167 98,761
1,483,323 1,088,938
Liabilities associated with assets classified D AZFEHEEE 2 HEEE
as held for sale 34 - 21,019
1,483,323 1,109,957
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 December 2008 #=REN$+ = =+—8H

2008 2007
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—22NE B
Bt sE FHET FHET
Net current (liabilities) assets e (BB EESFE (459,041) 145,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRSARE 3,140,403 3,703,668
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Obligations under finance leases A& M4 2 A
— amount due after one year ——FIEE| B FRIE 39 499 165
Borrowings B
— amount due after one year ——F & E HFRIE 40 61,670 366,659
Convertible notes AHRRER 44 593,235 554,215
Deferred taxation BT IR 45 233,484 220,102
888,888 1,141,141
Net assets BERE 2,251,515 2,562,527
Capital and reserves BARGEE
Share capital [N 46 91,199 182,076
Reserves i 49 1,745,145 1,862,406
Equity attributable to shareholders of R AR EG
the parent 1,836,344 2,044,482
Minority interests LER R R 415,171 518,045
Total equity R AR 2,251,515 2,562,527
The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 187 were approved — N FASEEF187TE 2 A M BHRERE N =

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2009 and are ~ ZTEAFA -+ BEESESHERFET)

signed on its behalf by: T WAHTNIEEREES:

CHEUNG HON KIT DR. YAP, ALLAN SE e HATEF
MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RIEG YAP, ALLAN{E £

)-)- 2008 3% - XTI (BR)ERAT 47



48

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREREH X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EEZN%+_H =+—8LFHE

Attributable to shareholders of the parent

BLERRER
Retained
Share  Convertible Asset profits
Share Share Special Warrant options notes  Translation  revaluation Statutory ~ (accumulated Minority
capital premium feserve feserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves losses) Total interests Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(Note 49)
Bl BRE  TBRER REEH REEA YRR
B& BiHER KHER i #f i EXGR (i EERE  (RiPEE) i L5 ait
Fin FEn T FiEn FERL ThER Tin FEr FiEn T Fin FiEn T
(Bita9)
At 1 January 2007 RZ2FLE-A-R 61,09 101,705 652290 = 12,006 205,139 30209 = 150 192,754 1255312 31475 1,686,787
Exchange difference arisng on tenslation o finencial -~ B BB &R,
statements offoreign operation recognised BB BRRRELL
directlyin equity EfzE - - - - - - 53 - - - 453 18807 60,360
(Loss) profit for the year - - - - - - - - - (16,199 (16,199 20,687 4488
Totalrecognised income and expense for the year RERRERMAR
Rxug = = = = = = 4153 = = (16,199) 5334 39514 64848
Iste of shares BRh 75000 405,000 - - - - - - - - 280,000 - 480,000
Shares ssue expenses [OELGEST - (12,080) - - - - - - - - (12,080) - (12,080)
Recogniton of equity-setled share-based payments ~~ ESEMRAEE 2
WRARZ A - - - - 19 - - - - - 294 - 194
Shares issed on exercie ofshare options ERRERSTZRE Ly 3837 - - (1,146) - B B - = 3119 - 3119
Conversion ino shres from RTARSE B ARN
convertile notes 45510 329892 = = = (73.850) = = = - 301612 - 301,612
Disposal of subsiciaies HEHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - (12431) (124237)
Acquiston of subsidiaries hEHEAR - - - B - - - - - B - 177299 177,299
Release of statutory resenves BRETRE - - - - - - - - (150) 150 = = =
Issue of shares as scrp diidend BHRREZ AR 19 150 - - - - - - - - 169 - 169
Dividends paid Efifkg - - - - - - - - - (11.908) (11,908) - (11,908)
Dividends paic to minoity shreholders of AHER A HRRELRE
subsidlaries - - - - - - - - - - - {6,006) (6,006)
At31 December 2007
182,076 828504 652290 = 13,784 131,289 1174 = = 164797 2,044482 518,045 2562501
Exchange difference arsing on transation of financial ]
tatements offoregn operations recognised REBIATHBRARES,
directly in equity EfEH = = = = = = 66,659 = = = 66,659 27,283 83942
Loss for theyear RERFE - - - - - - - - B 11 N N X
Total recogrised income and expense for REREERRAR
the year e = = = = = = 66,659 = = (688.918) (622.259) (116,712) (738971)
Issue of shares as scrip dvidend BURREZARH Bl m - - - - - - - - 563 - 563
Reduction nshare capital Bt (164,157) = 6013 = = = = = = 158,144 = = =
Issue of shares and warrants on subscrption of FRLBEEOROR
rights issue e 72959 334,593 = 30201 = = = = = - 27753 - 173
Shares ssue expenses RAZARX = (16811) - - - - - - - - (16811) - (16811)
Reserve released upon lapse ofshare options BRBANGERER - - - - (13784) - - - - 13784 - - -
Acquiston of subsidiries hEHEAR - - - - - - - 1719 - - 1719 1383% 15557
Dividends paid Bfifkg - - - - - - - - - (9,103) (0103 - (9,103)
At31 December 2008 R-BBNET-A=T-R 91,199 1,146,528 658303 30,201 - 131,289 138401 119 - (361,296) 1,836,344 51 2251515
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2ENF —ETLF
FAx FHT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBZHRERE
Loss before taxation CIN E (825,748) (42,143)
Adjustments for: EE
Share of results of associates FEAG B & A R 4R 45,345 44,891
Share of result of a jointly JEMR—RERIEH B 25
controlled entity 6,760 650
Depreciation of property, M ERREEINE
plant and equipment 68,586 58,455
Interest income FEUW A (11,296) (30,484)
Interest expenses AEBFX 41,830 77,255
Finance lease charges BERLNE A 37 11
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BERZEZEE
plant and equipment 518 1,839
Loss on disposal of properties under HEERMEZER
construction - 19,600
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZBREE 1,705 3,974
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,530 1,381
Impairment loss recognised in respect EWEREFEZ
of loan and interest receivables BRI EE R - 14,534
Impairment loss recognised in respect JE L B 4 1 RINIB 2
of amounts due from associates B ERBEEE 9,020 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect AHEERE 2
of available-for-sale investments BRI EE R 87,008 6,440
Impairment loss recognised in respect 8z BRI EEE
of goodwill 12,705 11,214
Impairment loss recognised in respect HihmLEEZ
of other intangible assets BRI EE R 192,840 -
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) ERE YN
in respect of property, plant and BRI EE R
equipment (#m) 316,473 (2,137)
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries g1 b YNNG i (161) (47,344)
Effective interest expenses of CIEY & =]
convertible notes 51,866 61,857
Decrease in fair value of KEMEZ A TFEBERD
investment properties 4,826 -
(Increase) decrease in fair value of RIEEEKREZ
investments held for trading ANTEEE (3G h0) Rk (10,228) 7,143
Increase in fair value of derivative MESRBIAEZ A FEMEEM
financial instruments (3,073) (3,783)
Employee share option expenses EEBRESZH - 2,924
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB QR Z WS (2,729) (82,265)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE - 274
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEERE 2 W
investments - (564)
Loss on disposal of properties HERFEMEZER
held for sale - 68
Amortisation of other intangible assets H fth B & B 2 B S 7,825 2,608
Provision for loss contingencies RAFIE 2 EIERE 17,000 -
Operating cash flows before movementsin 2B E & EHA 2K LIRS R E
working capital 12,639 106,398
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % — R RN+ =0 =+ — 8 LF i

2008 2007
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELF
Mt FET FET
Movements in working capital BEES EE
Decrease (increase) in investments REEBR ZIRERAD (3Em)
held for trading 29,022 (27,549)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD () 266 (2,228)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from Uk BEE A T K IB R A (120)
related companies 3,617 (5,066)
Increase in amounts due from associates JiE LA BS: & N R FRIEE N (871) (3,633)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K Eo At FE U BR SR 3L N (56,918) (79,813)
(Decrease) increase in trade and Z 5 REAMERER Ofd)Em
other payables (36,746) 89,840
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE B R R SRIER (2,674) (601)
Increase in amount due to a jointly FE 1 — 5% 4% 12 1 2 B 2 m 8 A0
controlled entity 920 -
Decrease in amounts due to JEfTBEE R R SRIER
related companies (5,177) (39,094)
(68,561) (68,144)
Cash (used in) generated from operations ~ && %% (FTA)EA 2R S (55,922) 38,254
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid EREMAE#ER 2 BIIE (5) (30)
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded ERE H A AR R 2 HiIE 29 21
Net cash (used in) from operating activities #X& 27 (FTH)FIB 2R & 558 (55,898) 38,245
Cash flows from investing activities KREEBZHEERE
Earnest money refunded REIZER® 356,017 =
Investment deposit refunded REKERT & 216,600 =
Repayment of loans advanced to ATRRERERGZER
certain companies 120,732 476,194
Repayment from (advances to) associates Bt % /2 &) 38 X
(BRTEE A 90,622 (236,279)
Repayment from (advances to) related B R RER
companies (BRTEAEQF) 45,324 (30,000)
Consideration receivable from disposal of B U H E KB A 7] 2 EUWAE
subsidiaries received 19,685 -
Interest received 2 U F B 11,296 30,484
Proceeds from maturity of derivative PTEE R T AEHETEHKIE
financial instruments 9,045 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE Y Hes kR ETEHIE
plant and equipment 500 21,897
Additions to property, plant and NBEYE R EEE
equipment (340,822) (101,469)
Additions to prepaid lease payments TR & FRIEE AN (163,880) =
Earnest money paid BENE fjﬁ 24 (100,000) (356,017)
Cash outflow of loans advanced to ME T 27 REARS
certain companies and individuals BERZBEeRH (65,000) (219,142)
Acquisition of investment properties Hﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁ'f*@% (31,719) =
(Advance to) repayment from other (BT H Ath FEUARFR)
receivables ﬁwﬁu& AR KB R (17,871) 323,112
Capital injection in a jointly FE —RERIEHE
controlled entity (9,500) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries i W%ﬂﬁj 53 (4,938) (239,968)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA 52 (363) 226,200
Increase in pledged bank deposits Eﬁﬁfifﬂ_ 7l (147) (481)
Deposit received for the disposal of assets & 248 Frﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬁ BEZ
classified as held for sale B Wiz - 3,500
Proceed from disposal of & AT B R B P15 RKIE
available-for-sale investments - 570
Proceeds from disposal of properties HEFEMEMSKIE
held for sale - 30
Purchase of available-for-sale investments  && B a] { H £18& - (183,700)
Payment for investment deposits R ER & - (84,864)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities & EENFTS (FTH) 2R &5 135,581 (369,933)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

RERER

EENF+_A=+—RLFR

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EENE —ETLF
FET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities ﬁﬂﬁfﬁ@ﬂzfﬁi\ﬁ%
Proceeds from issue of EITHTIRPTIS IR &
new shares for cash 437,753 483,119
New bank loans and other loans raised FERTERREMERK 144,144 365,930
Repayment of bank loans and other loans ~ BERITER N EMER (119,579) (666,968)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from loans from  BE:E A RIE R 2
related companies Be (Rt mAERE (88,064) 94,470
Interest paid BT B (74,513) (93,313)
Repayment of promissory note BEA R EE (36,455) =
Repayment of consideration notes BEERERR (21,545) =
Share issue expenses RRID 1 TR X (16,811) (12,080)
Dividends paid 2R E (8,540) (11,739)
Repayment of obligations under B R R B ML) AHE
finance leases (218) (42)
Finance lease charges paid XN ERNER (37) (11
Repayment to a related company BE—REBERAT K - (171,260)
Repayment of amounts due to EREN D BRR IR
minority shareholders - (8,612)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of B4 i B2 7] D iR L S
subsidiaries - (6,006)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities B & EENFTE (BT )R L F58 216,135 (26,512)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash HekBHeEBEHEEZ
equivalents = O ) F58 295,818 (358,200)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#¥8 & &I 4 E(EIAEF
the year 199,410 555,524
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE DE R BB 2 2 3,619 2,086
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F# 2 & KIS EEHEE 498,847 199,410
Represented by: A
Bank balances and cash RITRAM KRR 498,609 198,774
Bank balances and cash included in assets st ADIEBBIEHEEE 2
classified as held for sale RITHEBR LR ® - 363
Trading cash balances B 5ok 238 273
498,847 199,410
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GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in

the corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of providing package tours,
travel and other related services, hotel operation and trading of

securities.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are or have become

effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods
have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

FERFET R BT 2B R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) = Int 9 &
HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13
HK(IFRIC) = Int 15
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) = Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs’

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising
on Liquidation?

Eligible hedged items’

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations’

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives?

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners’?

Transfers of Assets from Customers’

BHRELEQ (FRMBRE

28 ]) )

-+

AEBEYERFEAATEBEME AL
M2 HE] RS ERT R (BRI R -

BEMBREER (£3])

BEESIENEIR
(BET)

BEGENE3R
(8BET)

BEGHEN TS
(53T)

BESERNERRIR
€:5))

BB @FHERIE393
(&30)

BEMBREENERR
BB B ENF2TH
(&5])

BEMBREENR2R
(&5])

BEMBREEREN
(BEiT)

BAMBREENETH
(&5])

BEMBREENFSH
BCLErEEE
Z8g) -2EF9
REBGENEH
(f&5])
it (ARHHRERE
Z8g) —2EF13%
it (ARMBaERE
ZEg) -REF15%
Bt (BARMBRERE
Z88) -REFI16H
UGy EEE
Z8g) REFH
BCLErEEE
ZB8) -RER 8%

BEMBREELZ
P4
MiswE 2 251

EEmMA
SRRBUMBER

TEEERTARARE
EEZEF

AERHMER’

HREHE

R B A
ERRIREZ

e
A2
R IRf R

7/
/N
I

BRERLBIAY
e
BEHE

RAATAET A

EPRHBE B

Bt ERR H#
BRI B A
AEEAD KRS

EE
RFPEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

7 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting

for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1

January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment

for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. The

directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other

new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no

material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

3.

A B RARME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % — R RN+ =0 =+ — 8 LF i

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant

acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 January
2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005
onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which

the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Gooawill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
business at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less

any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwiill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 R ENS$+=-fA=+—BLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment testing on capitalised goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
(“discount on acquisition™)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a business for
which an agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination.

Discount on acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint

venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group'’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the

investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the

relevant associate.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the

investment.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Income from tour and travel services and other travel related services is
recognised when the services are rendered. Revenue from sales of air

tickets is recognised when the tickets are delivered.

Hotel revenue from rooms and other ancillary services are recognised

when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and title has been passed.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes other than properties under construction and construction in
progress are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction and
construction in progress over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight

line method.

Construction in progress includes plant and equipment in the course
of installation and for own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other plant and equipment,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Properties under construction are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all development expenditure and
other direct costs attributable to such projects. Properties under
construction are not depreciated until completion of construction. Cost
on completed properties is transferred to other categories of property,

plant and equipment.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated

useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out

below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

dividend earned on the financial assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including amounts due from related companies, amounts
due from associates, trade and other receivables, loan receivables, loan
to related companies, pledged bank deposits, trading cash balance
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable or a loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s

financial liabilities are generally classified as other financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of

the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes

reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component, represented by the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain
in convertible notes reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits (accumulated losses). No gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible notes

using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, loans
from related companies, amounts due to associates, amounts due to
related companies/a jointly controlled entity, borrowings, promissory
note, consideration note and amounts due to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss

that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or

disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

is calculated using the weighted average cost method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #. % —

3.

BENSF+_A=Z+—BLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and

is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor

the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred

tax is also dealt with in equity.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful

lives is provided on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated

income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % — R RN+ =0 =+ — 8 L F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of

interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on

a straight line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and buildings element of a lease of land and buildings are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings element, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated
as a finance lease and account for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating lease, except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties

under the fair value model.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose and classified as an investment property,
and carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of the leasehold land are
recognised directly in profit or loss for the period in which changes take
place. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in

which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #. % —

3.

EENF+ A=+ —BLEFR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are charged as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligations. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date and are discounted to present value when the effect

is material.

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees of the Group
and other eligible participants

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share options reserve).
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3.

EENF+ A=+ —BLEFR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to directors, employees of the Group
and other eligible participants (Continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share

options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained

earnings (accumulated losses).

Other eligible participants represent individuals who rendered services
to the Group and the services rendered are similar to those rendered by

employees.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own

equity instruments are classified as an equity instrument.

The fair value of warrants on the date of issue is recognised in equity
(warrant reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium upon exercise of the warrants. Where the
warrants remain unexercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in warrant reserve will be released to the retained profits or

accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 7 %

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Estimated impairment of other intangible assets

When there is impairment indicator, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows to be generated from use of the
intangible asset. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at a suitable discount rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material

impairment loss may arise.

At 31 December 2008, an impairment loss of HK$192,840,000 (2007:
Nil) was recognised and the carrying amount of other intangible
assets was written down to approximately HK$263,191,000 (2007:
HK$466,286,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in note 23.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment in
relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity
securities, the Group takes into consideration of the decline in market
values of the properties held by its investees. Judgment is required when
determining whether it is necessary to make any impairment on the
investment cost in these available-for-sale investments by taking into
consideration of the decline in market values of the properties held by
its investees over the respective costs. Where the market price of the
properties declines more than expected, a further impairment loss may

arise.

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
investments is HK$162,984,000 (2007: HK$249,992,000). The
directors performed impairment assessment of the Group's available-
for-sale investments and an impairment loss of HK$87,008,000 (2007:
HK$6,440,000) was recognised in the consolidated income statement

during the year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the fair value of the property, plant
and equipment less costs to sell or the value-in-use calculations. An
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately HK$2,679,888,000 (net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment of approximately HK$661,930,000). The
directors performed impairment assessment of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and a net impairment loss of HK$316,473,000
(2007: reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,137,000) was recognised in

the consolidated income statement during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 7 %

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group’s carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31 December
2008 was approximately HK$1,956,750,000. The Group depreciates
the hotel properties on a straight-line basis over their remaining
unexpired terms of the leases. It reflects the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s hotel properties. During the year, the useful lives
of the hotel properties have been reviewed and these estimates are
considered to be appropriate. Included in the above amount is a hotel
property with a carrying amount of approximately HK$247,503,000
of which a subsidiary of the Company has been granted the right to
operate and manage the hotel in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") for a period from January 1987 to January 2017,
and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the
operating period may be extended for a further period of 20 years.
Should the conditions not be fulfilled, the depreciation period of the
hotel properties would be adjusted and up to January 2017 only. When
estimating the useful life of this hotel, it is assumed that the right to

operate and manage the hotel can be extended for 20 years.

Provision for loss contingency

The Group makes provisions for all loss contingencies when information
available prior to the issuance of the consolidated financial statements
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. As disclosed in note 36, the
Group is involved in legal proceedings with its ex-employees for claims
relating to calculation of tour escort’s holiday compensation allowance
and the Group estimates the provision based on information from
its legal counsels, the actual amounts settled for some of the claims,
and the best estimation of management. The actual settlement of
these claims may differ from the estimation made by management.
If the claims are settled for an amount greater than management’s
estimation, a future charge to consolidated income statement would
result. Likewise, if the claims are settled for an amount that is less than
the estimation, a future credit to consolidated income statement would
result. As at 31 December 2008, the provision for loss contingencies

amounted to approximately HK$ 17,000,000 (2007: Nil).

4.

A B RARM A

—EEANFT_AZ+—BEEE

HET TR R 2 EFEZRR

/N

(45)
\ "8/

BIEYREITE

RZEENF+_A=+—HAEEH
JEYI%E 2 BRE{E4)51,956,750,00078 7T ©
AEBELESERBIEDE 2 BHOF R
FHFAERE DRBEEENZHABA
ZAhET BIASETEIEBEMEZE
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B E W) 2 2 AT R A B Az A AT R
REE LR ERE-—EHEABEANAR
247,503,000/ 7T 2 B W3 - & % FT
AR ZEAREFME ([RE])EMN 2B
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RIRERBAEZ M ET - MR REX
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Wk BEAME K BILRF - MR
B2z @BIONEET  SEBRE
WHXKABBHER R N\F+=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

5.

TURNOVER 5. EX#
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable from outside EEBRINFANBRRERIMNEEF 28R
customers, less trade discounts and returns during the year. An analysis FRESTMEER - REELEEE 2D
of the Group's turnover is as follows: T
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2e/f B
FHET FHET
Travel and related services (Note) MR AR R AR TS (B EE) 1,899,370 1,993,792
Hotel and leisure services B E AR B RS 317,527 272,371
2,216,897 2,266,163
Note: Included in the turnover of travel and related services is turnover Mick: RERBERGE 2 EEXEFREEH
in respect of sale of air tickets of HK$194,357,000 (2007: 22 G5 7 & 3£ 58194,357,000/5 7T
HK$254,354,000). (ZZTZT 4 :254,354,0007T) °
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. FHRMIHDHE

Business segments

In 2008, due to the increasing significance of securities trading and the
Group's involvement in the business of providing luxury train services,
management of the Company have identified two additional segments
and have determined that they are separate reportable segments in
2008. Prior period segment data that is presented for comparative
purposes have been restated to reflect the new reportable segment as
a separate segment. Accordingly, the four operating divisions — travel
and related services, hotel and leisure services, luxury train services and
securities trading are the basis on which the Group reports its primary

segment information for the respective periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Business segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as follows:

6. ¥ KkMimoE w2

E¥BoE®
BEEE S SEEN2HMT

Travel and Hotel and Luxury
related leisure train Securities
services services services trading Elimination Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HER EER EESTE
HERS RERH FR 7% RHER He E)
TiER TiEn TR TR TR TR
For the year ended BE-ZENF
31 December 2008 t=A=1+-H
LLEE
Turnover R
External sales HMEE 1,899,370 317,527 - - - 2216897
Inter-segment sales RRIRHE - 3n - - (372) -
Total At 1,899,370 317,899 - - (372 2216897
Inter-segment sales are charged RRIRHERERTE
at prevailing market price. Mo
Results %%
Amount excluding impairment losses  £% (T BEFE Zfh
recognised in respect of goodwill,  EFEERNE
other intangible assets and BERRBEERR
property, plant and equipment REEE) 20,132 (9,400) (32,189) 10,217 - (11,240)
Impairment losses recognised BE AtEVEER
in respect of goodwil, nE HERREZ
other intangible assets and ERRREER
property, plant and equipment (12,033) (109,985) (400,000) - - (522,018)
Segment results NEEE 8,099 (119,385) (432,189) 10,217 - (533,258)
Interest income FEMA 11,29
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR R 2,729 - - - - 2,729
Impairment loss recognised in respect  AI4E i & 1% & 7 B
of available-for-sale investments REEE (87,008)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAAREERT (73,669)
Finance costs BEKA (93,733)
Share of results of associates NGRS (45,345) - - - - (45,345)
Share of result of a jointly controlled B/ —R R 25 &
entity b < - - (6,760) - - (6,760)
Loss before taxation BB AIER (825,748)
Taxation expense RE (7.165)
Loss for the year rEEER (832,913)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

6. ¥ RitiEoE &

\
)

(CONTINUED)
Business segments (Continued) X¥BoEm)
Travel and Hotel and Luxury
related leisure train Securities
services services services trading Consolidated
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR R AR B RARE RE5E
PR % PR % EHEE o)
TR THERT TR TR TR
At 31 December 2008 R=ZBENF+=A
Sr=[
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 237,255 2,440,298 638,943 10,341 3,326,837
Interests in associates N AN WA £ 2,737 - - - 2,737
Interest in a jointly controlled R—FEREHERZ
entity = - - 9,069 - 9,069
Unallocated corporate assets AOEEEEE 1,285,083
Consolidated total assets GeAEHE 4,623,726
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities HEEE (285,068) (83,524) (247,296) - (615,888)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA BE%EE - - - - (1,756,323)
Consolidated total liabilities HEaERE (2,372,211)
OTHER INFORMATION Hir&H
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,530 - - - 1,530
Allowance for bad and REREE
doubtful debts - 1,705 - - 1,705
Amortisation of other Hivmf B s B
intangible assets - 7,825 - - 7,825
Capital additions B 33,048 457,957 347,950 - 838,955
Depreciation of property, ME BBRZEZNE
plant and equipment 6,730 61,654 202 - 68,586
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BRRFHE
plant and equipment B 8 510 - - 518
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A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

6. ¥ KkMimoE w2

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Business segments (Continued) XBo¥E@E)
Travel and Hotel and Luxury
related leisure train Securities
services services services trading Elimination Consolidated
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TREREH BERKA EESE
% % % EHEE Eafc Ga
Titn Titn Tin Tin Tin Ti#n
For the year ended BE-23tE
31 December 2007 +ZA=t+-H
LLEE
Turnover BEE
External sales HINEE 1,993,792 272,371 = = = 2,266,163
Inter-segment sales HhR#EE - 159 = = (159) =
Total AEt 1,993,792 272,530 - - (159) 2,266,163
Inter-segment sales are charged at B RIRISEERERNE
prevailing market price. Mo
Results E4 |
Amount excluding impairment loss 43 (TREREE
recognised in respect of goodwil ~ ERAHESE) 51,854 38,647 (6,162) (7,154) = 77,185
Impairment loss recognised in respect % 2 B AR EFE
of goodwill (11,214) - - - - (11,214)
Segment results PEER 40,640 38,647 (6,162) (7,154) = 65,971
Interest income FIEMA 30,484
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LENBLR L Na - 82,265 - - - 82,265
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZER (274) = = = = (274)
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries  UeEEHI B AR 2 172 - 47,344 - - = 47,344
Impairment loss recognised in respect AT HERE 2 E#R
of available-for-sale investments REER (6,440)
Increase in fair value of derivative MEEBMIAZAT
financial instruments EEsEm 3,783
Loss on disposal of properties under — HEERYE 2 FE
construction (19,600) - - - - (19,600)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAREERT (61,012)
Finance costs BERA (139,123)
Share of results of associates EEBENREE (44,891) = = = = (44,891)
Share of result of a jointly IR AR EHEE
controlled entity £ = = (650) = = (650)
Loss hefore taxation BHRIEE (42,143)
Taxation credit HEEE 46,631
Profit for the year AEE R 4,488
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

6.

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

6. ¥ RitiEoE &

\
)
/

(CONTINUED)
Business segments (Continued) X¥BoEm)
Travel and Hotel and Luxury
related leisure train Securities
services services services trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR RAEH BIE RIKEE RE|E
R PR FR% EREE A
FET THEL FET FEL THEL
At 31 December 2007 R-BBLE
+ZA=1+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 749,976 2,023,693 739,455 27,552 3,540,676
Interests in associates NN WA £ 66,144 - - - 66,144
Interest in a jointly controlled R—FKEREHE
entity B = = 6,329 = 6,329
Unallocated corporate assets AOEEEEE 1,200,476
Consolidated total assets GeAEHE 4,813,625
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities HEER 347,385 84,703 55,046 = 487,134
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA REEAE 1,763,964
Consolidated total liabilities nmAREEE 2,251,098
OTHER INFORMATION Hip &R
Allowance for bad and RERRE
doubtful debts - 3,974 - - 3,974
Allowance for inventories FERRE 1,381 - - = 1,381
Amortisation of other Hiv BB 2 B
intangible assets 2,608 - - - 2,608
Capital additions BN 70,887 392,824 690,072 = 1,153,783
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRRIEBEINE
plant and equipment 7292 51,091 72 - 58,455
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZEL
plant and equipment BE 1,152 687 - - 1,839
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A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. EHRuFDE )
(CONTINUED)
Geographical segments Mg 5 B
Approximately 90% of the Group's revenues were derived from Hong REEK90% 2 WA RBEE LA TFI&R
Kong. The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue REAEERERE AL E TS
by geographical market based on location of customers, irrespective of IS A Z DT - & I 38 & AR5 2R
the origin of the services: b :
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEN\F —ETAF
FHET FET
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERS) 221,222 184,279
Hong Kong &5 1,947,262 2,038,982
Others Hh 48,413 42,902
2,216,897 2,266,163
The analysis of carrying amount of segment assets and additions to DIEEERAERYE B REE T8
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, goodwill and NEERIE HEREMELEEZARE
other intangible assets by the geographical area in which the assets are BEEMBE @A ITT

located is as follows:

Additions to property,
plant and equipment, prepaid

Carrying amount of lease payments, goodwill and

segment assets other intangible assets

M- WERRE
AAEERE
SEEEZRAME BEREGENEEZRE

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BEN\F —ERLF —BENF —ETLF
FHET T FET FET
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) A& (TNEEEE) 2,184,821 2,148,051 579,460 1,071,814
Hong Kong s 1,092,189 1,377,079 259,137 12,333
South-east Asia REI 22,000 12,810 2 68,917
Korea B2 3 22,337 - - -
Others HAfib 5,490 2,736 356 719
3,326,837 3,540,676 838,955 1,153,783
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ A =+—H L5 &

7.

INVESTMENT INCOME 7. REWA
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZTTLF
FHET T
Interest income on: TRE TAFEZFBHWA
Bank deposits RITER 7,042 4,086
Loan receivables R E R 3,905 23,718
Loans to related companies HBTREBEBRARIZER 349 2,680
11,296 30,484
OTHER INCOME 8. Hlr A
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BTNF —TTLE
FHET FHET
An analysis of the Group's other REEZ HMWASHTT :
income is as follows:
Exchange gain, net P& 5 Uy =5 % 58 830 58
Gain on disposal of HEHREERE 2 WeE
available-for-sale investments - 564
Sundry income B A 5,210 8,035
6,040 8,657
FINANCE COSTS 9. BIERA
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
SELI: —PELF
FERT T
Interest on obligations under finance leases B & 49 2 &&= F & 37 11
Interest on borrowings wholly ARAFREHEREEZHE
repayable within five years 57,080 91,392
Loan facilities fee EXmEEA 24,773 =
Effective interest on convertible notes AR R 2 BREAB 51,866 61,857
Interest on promissory note and EHEBRREREZFE
consideration note 4,587 3,205
Total finance costs 42 30 & A AN 138,343 156,465
Less: amounts capitalised to B EEMERERIEZKIEA
construction in progress (44,610) (17,342)
93,733 139,123

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general

borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of

10.2% (2007: 14.8%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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A B RAR M A

A E

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. BRBL BT B 18

—EEANF+_AZ+—BEERE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gENE —ETHE
FET FET
Loss before taxation has been arrived BRILATEIRE MR T3 H
at after charging:
Depreciation of property, M BRREEZNE
plant and equipment 68,586 58,455
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hin M\ & E 2 # 8 7,825 2,608
Total depreciation and amortisation mEREHBEE 76,411 61,063
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZREE 1,705 3,974
Allowance for inventories TEEE 1,530 1,381
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B 4,860 4,692
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses B ER AL H 2 F &K A 39,106 32,590
Cost of sales of air tickets R I & R 183,403 240,624
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FE Uk B & R BB 2 B ERIRBE BB
amounts due from associates 9,020 -
Loss on disposal of properties held for sale  H&EFEY %~ FE - 68
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE MR REE 2R
equipment 518 1,839
Minimum lease payments paid in respect of ~EfTAEWE K& 2 KBS K
rented premises and equipment 30,215 25,831
Share of tax of associates (included in share  FE{RER & A BRI (B IR FE(G B &
of results of associates) NGIE 1)) 445 1,070
Staff costs BERA 214,106 169,901
and after crediting: WEFFA:
Gross rental income from hotel properties HBR811,0008 T EELER S (=
less direct operating expense of T 694,000/ L) & 2B
HK$811,000 (2007: HK$694,000) MEZHESBABE 17,409 17,258
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —EEZNF+_H =+—0LFHE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008

NEEMERESTFMES

AEEXHTRESZMEFBEWT

BE_ZZ/\F+-A=+-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Share-based scheme Total
Fees benefits payment contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HER PN BHRER
e HinEF XARE FTEIHR BHe
T TEx TET TEx THEx
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Note 1) RIEG LA (1) - - - - -
Dr. Yap, Allan (Note 1) Yap, Allant& £ (FizE1) - - - - -
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BRAafLE - - - - -
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Note 1) &3k R 554 (BizE1)
(resigned on 9 January 2009) (RZBTNF
—ANLBEHE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BAUFHITES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEULE - 68 - - 68
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7B B A 50 - - - 50
Mr. Sin Chi Fai AR
(resigned on (R=2TL4F
27 March 2007 and ZAZTLABER
reappointed on RZZETNF
28 January 2008) —A=+NB
EBREE) 51 - - - 51
101 68 - - 169
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11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2007

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

NEEMERESTFMES

( 435
(&)

BE-_ZZtHF+-A=1+—HLEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Share-based scheme Total
Fees benefits payment contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ey WG RKER
e Hib g R SARE SR Bme
T FTHT THET TR THET
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence RBELE
BBS., MBE., JP BBS., MBE., JP
(resigned on 1 December 2007)  (R=ZFZTLF
TZA—BEf) - - 254 - 254
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Note 1) RIEGR LA (M) - = 254 = 254
Dr. Yap, Allan (Note 1) Yap, Allanf& £ (Fi&E1) - = 254 = 254
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREHEE - - 95 - 95
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Note 1) @ Jk 4% 54 (Fff&E1)
(resigned on 9 January 2009) (RZZTTNF
—ANBEHE) - 152 292 - 444
Independent non-executive BUEHTES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEITE - 84 32 = 116
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7B B A
(appointed on 27 March 2007) (RZBTL4F
=R+t BEZE) 38 - - - 38
Mr. Sin Chi Fai L
(resigned on 27 March 2007 (RZBTLF
and reappointed on A TLARER
28 January 2008) RZZETNF
—A=+NB
EBRZE) 13 - 16 - 29
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph BERRALE
(resigned on 31 October 2007) (RZBTL4F
TA=1+—RHEE) 42 - - - 42
93 236 1,197 - 1,526
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e HRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

No directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31 December

2007 and 2008.

Note 1: These directors are also directors of Hanny Holdings Limited or
ITC Properties Group Limited, which are related companies of the

Group. Their fees, salaries and other benefits are paid by the related

companies and management fees were charged to the Group by

these related companies for services that these directors rendered

to the Group for both years.

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the five highest paid

NEEMERESTFMES

BHE_ZZLFR_ZFTNF+_H
=+ RLEEE BREMESHRETR

WEEETSRBEEEFRD A
SEFHESEBRAR (MEAAQ
R RAEBZBERT) 2ES-
BEZHD  Hoe MEMRBENHZ
FRERAN MZEBERT
ERMEEERZMEFERASE
B L AR T A AN SR B R IR
o

AEEXNTAUKSHMAL (TR

individuals, which did not include any directors are as follows: B )cHMeFBHEHR TX:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2ENF T LF
FExT FHIT
Salaries and other benefits e kEHMmET 11,545 14,929
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTE M ET B R 147 163
Share-based payment VARR (5 3£ A<F 5118 - 335
11,692 15,427
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
Emoluments of the five highest NTAERMNE=EHMALTZ
paid individuals were B <851
within the following bands:
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000

2,000,0017% 7L 22,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7t 23,000,000 7T
3,000,0017% 7£ 23,500,000 7T
8,000,0017% 7T 28,500,000/ 7T

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -é(




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

12. BB () #E

12. TAXATION (EXPENSE) CREDIT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZTTLF
FET FHT
Current tax: BVEATR 1A -
Hong Kong B (5.556) (821)
Other jurisdictions E A aDE R (532) (113)
(6,088) (934)
Underprovision in other jurisdictions RBEFEEMBIERER 2 BET R
in prior years - (1)
Deferred tax (note 45): RERIE (PF5E45) ¢
Current year REE (4,447) (2,707)
Attributable to a change in Hong Kong BB E R G
Profits Tax rate 3,370 -
Attributable to a change in the PRC R TS T R O (L
Enterprise Income Tax rate - 50,273
(1,077) 47,566
Taxation (expense) credit MIE ()&= (7,165) 46,631

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

12. TAXATION (EXPENSE) CREDIT (CONTINUED)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year. The deferred tax balance has
been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to the

respective periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions during the year ended 31
December 2008 is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant

jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law"”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. Under the
New Law and Implementation Regulations, the Enterprise Income Tax
rate of the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC was reduced
from 33% to 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. No provision for the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the assessable profits are wholly absorbed by tax losses

brought forward.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

12. TAXATION (EXPENSE) CREDIT (CONTINUED) 12, Bi3E (2 H) #0m (e
Taxation (expense) credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss REE ZFHIE (L) BB A 8RS W
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: RZBRTAIESEETHROT

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

-z NF —ETLF

FExT FHT

Loss before taxation bR AT E 1R (825,748) (42,143)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% X AN ith FT 1551 £ 16.5%

(2007: 17.5%) “TELF175%)FEZ
Bi1E 136,248 7,375

Tax effect of share of results of associates JEIEHEE R R B 2 RIEHE (7.482) (7,856)
Tax effect of share of results of a jointly Bl —RERZEFIEEFE Y

controlled entity MR (1,115) (114)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7 & & J& 52 1 i 1l B N AT 400802

in determining taxable profit AL MG & (160,871) (54,019)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in FAEE TE FE AR B s | s B AR B 2

determining taxable profit WAz B8 21,650 30,961
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZ BB RE 2R R (14,819) (4,629)
Tax effect of tax losses utilised but not EBREZAARERZRBEREZ

previously recognised Bz 14,352 33,715
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE A RUERER & 2 & A A

operating in other jurisdictions TR Rz 2 1,502 (9,074)
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBNR - (1
Decrease in opening deferred tax BAME T AEHFE

liability resulting from a decrease REFIEE ER D

in applicable tax rate 3,370 50,273
Taxation (expense) credit for the year AEFZFRIE (ZH)#E (7,165) 46,631

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (BR)ERAT 95



96

For the year ended 31 December 2008 7, % —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRARME

EEANSF+ZAZ+—BLFE

No dividend was declared during the year in respect of dividend for

2008, nor has any dividend been proposed since the balance sheet

date.

A final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share in respect of 2007 was

proposed by the directors and approved and declared in 2008.

During the year, scrip dividend alternatives were offered in respect

of the 2007 final dividends (2007: 2006 final dividends). These scrip

dividend alternatives were accepted by the shareholders, as follows:

13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETLF
FExT FHT
Dividends recognised as distribution FABRRBDIKZRE
during the year:
Ordinary shares: @R
Final — dividend for 2007 of HKO.5 cent per  REIRE ——ZTFHRK S
share (2007: Final — dividend for 2006 of FROSHEW (ZET L5
HK1.5 cents per share) KEIRBE ——ZTTNERE
BAR1.58A0) 9,103 11,908

FALER _ZTN\FESRKE B4
B B PAR IR R TR S o

EFRWEN -TTLEERPRETR
05il - HHREEN - FENFEHE
RER:

FR R_FTLFRERE (ZTFL
FETAFEREBBREHUKRKE
ZERTA - BERERSE UK EZE
RITAWTE

2007 2006
Final Final
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETLHF —ETREF
REARRE REARR B
FERT T

Dividends: A% 8.
Cash E& 8,540 11,739
Share alternative AR B K 563 169
9,103 11,908
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A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. 8REE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on the BREAREEBEBR IR T EIEFHE

following data:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BENF —ETLF
FERT FHT
Loss attributable to equity holders of REHESRERNREEEIR 2
the parent for the purpose of SR RIIRERE AEGEE
basic and diluted loss per share 688,918 16,199

Number of shares

R &E
2008 2007
—se/F —eTts
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FR{EstEGRERREEEE 2
shares for the purpose of basic and I AR N T 1A 2
diluted loss per share 5,939,082,627 2,025,121,451
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 Rt EBE_ZTZEN\F+-_A=+—Hi
December 2008 has not assumed the conversion of the Company’s FEZBREEEERTEBRILBAR
convertible notes, and the exercise of the share options and warrants BRI AR R 1R R AT (R R AR A R iR IR i 38
(2007: has not assumed the conversion of the Company’s convertible (ZEZLF: WEKRK LB QA AR
notes and exercise of the share options) as these potential ordinary REERITERRE)  TTEREEER
shares are anti-dilutive during the year. TRRNERNDERES 2 & -
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the basic and REETE M EFE TR EAR R EEE 2
diluted loss per share for both years have been adjusted for the rights TERNEFAHER SN NFLAZ
issue in July 2008. HIRVEL AL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —EEZNF+_H =+—0LFHE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - HE KRB

Office
Leasehold Properties Furniture equipment Construction
land and Hotel under and Leasehold Motor and in
buildings ~ properties  construction fixtures  improvements vehicles  machinery Vessels progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note (a)
HE HE BAERE
1#EEF EENE ERNE  BARXE NERE g RH## L HRIR fit
Fitn Fir Thr Thr Tk Tk Fitn T Thr Thn
M)
cosT RA&
At 1 January 2007 RZEZLE
-A-H 33225 1,667,586 46,728 56,271 45,745 7834 30,363 17,782 - 1,905,534
Currency realignment BERE = 77,681 = 2,944 2,486 431 5,028 = = 88,570
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - 225,500 - 608 - 269 3,921 = 300,269 530,567
Additions WE 6,083 = = 3,899 47,5% 3,379 3,227 9 37,501 101,694
Disposals ek = = (46,728) (9,364) (1,093) (3,453 (788) (6,533) - (67,959)
Reclassified to assets classified  EF1H % AR{E
as held for sale HEEE = = = = = (303) (251) - - (554)
At 31 December 2007 i a3
+-A=1+-A 39,308 1,970,767 = 54,358 94,734 8,157 41,500 11,258 337,770 2,557,852
Currency realignment BEFZ 491 95,961 - 2,920 3,739 567 5,724 - 2178) 107,024
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ YiEEHIBAE = 58,042 = = = = = = = 58,042
Additions RE = 67,220 56,546 5893 35,986 1,271 2,495 33 451,815 621,259
Disposals LE = = = (316) = (1432) (811) = = 2,559)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+=R=t-H 39,799 2,191,990 56,546 62,855 134,459 8,563 48,908 11,291 787,407 3,341,818
DEPRECIATION AND FERBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2007 RZEZLE
—-A-AR 14,340 97,653 12,128 29,280 18,595 2,910 25,593 6,661 - 207,160
Currency realignment BERE - 9,631 - 2,530 1,358 337 4217 = - 18,073
Provided for the year RERRE 467 37,330 - 3,49 10,341 1,555 478 524 - 58,455
Reversal of impairment loss Rt R EE
in the income statement HEER 2,137) - - - - - - - - 2,137)
Eliminated on disposals o530 - - (12,128 (7,983) (1,093) (1,947) (742) (730) = (24,623)
Reclassified to assets classified EF A EARIE
as held for sale HERE = = = = = () (11 = = (16)
At 31 December 2007 RZEZTLE
+=A=+-A 12,670 144,614 - 21,323 29,201 2,850 33,799 6,455 - 256,912
Currency realignment BERE 2 11,973 - 2427 1,763 404 4911 = = 21,500
Provided for the year rEERE 1,646 41,668 - 3811 14,652 1,661 4,89 252 - 68,586
(Reversal of) impairment kR (BE)
loss recognised in HRAEES
the income statement (672) 36,985 - - - - - - 280,160 316,473
Eliminated on disposals HERMR - - - (22) - (1172) (347) - - (1,541)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE
+=A=t-H 13,666 235,240 = 33,539 45,616 3,743 43,259 6,707 280,160 661,930
CARRYING VALUES RmEfE
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+=A=1+-A 26,133 1,956,750 56,546 29,316 88,843 4,820 5,649 4,584 507,247 2,679,888
At 31 December 2007 i 5 o3
+=-A=+-AH 26,638 1,826,153 - 27,035 65,533 5,307 7,101 4,803 337,770 2,300,940
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of remaining
unexpired terms of
the leases and 2.5%
Hotel properties Over the shorter of remaining
unexpired terms of
the leases and 2.5%
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20%
Leasehold improvements 10% - 20% or the term of

the lease, if shorter

Motor vehicles 8.33% - 20%
Office equipment and machinery 20%
Vessels 5%

Construction in progress mainly represented construction cost incurred

for the Group's luxury trains at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

15. ¥ - B RERE ()
W% MERREER DIREREE
TR & RIFE -

HELHRIEF R FIsRFHk
2.5% (LA &

RAE)

B IE T R A FIERF Bk
25% (LA &
RAE)

B REE 10% —20%

HEMEEE 10% - 20% (27
EEH AEKE
& RAE)

HE 8.33% - 20%

WAERBRER  20%

e 5%

RoBENFR-BRLF A=+
A ERTRIESAEBEEI B
Ak -

i3
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Fa)

B R R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

15. E B REZE 8

An analysis of the properties of the Group held at the balance sheet REBRNEEBRFBEZMESTWT
date is as follows:
Leasehold Hotel Properties
land and buildings properties under construction
HETHRET BEENE ERNE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=& %3 - =& J%:3 I ZZENE I
TR THET TR FhT TR FET
Long leases in Hong Kong WEB 2 REBRY 20,069 14,700 597,894 603,548 - =
Medium term leases in Hong Kong WA &8 2 R4 - 5,890 - - 56,546 =
Medium term leases in the PRC Bz R ER L
(notes a and b) (FisFakb) 6,064 6,048 135885 1222605 - -
26,133 26,638 1,956,750 1,826,153 56,546 -
Notes: Bt 5
(@) Included in the hotel properties at the balance sheet date is a @ MREEBZBEDZEBFENTBIEE

hotel property with a carrying value of HK$138,001,000 (2007:
HK$149,056,000) situated in Luoyang, the PRC. The land use rights of
the hotel property is currently held by Luoyang Power Supply Bureau,
a minority shareholder of the subsidiary holding the hotel property.
Pursuant to a land use rights agreement entered into between
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau and the subsidiary on 15 April 1999
(before the Group acquired the said subsidiary in 2004), Luoyang
Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said subsidiary to use
the land upon which the hotel property is now situated for a term
commencing from April 1999 to April 2049 for hotel use.

Included in the hotel properties held under medium term leases in
the PRC of HK$1,358,856,000 (2007: HK$1,222,605,000) is a hotel
property with a carrying value of approximately HK$247,503,000
(2007: HK$221,357,000) of which a subsidiary of the Company
has been granted the right to operate and manage the hotel in
Guangzhou, the PRC for a period from January 1987 to January 2017,
and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the
operating period may be extended for a further period of 20 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The carrying value of motor vehicles, office equipment and machinery
of the Group held under finance leases as at 31 December 2008 was

HK$900,000 (2007: HK$230,000).

Depreciation expense on hotel properties of HK$41,668,000 (2007:
HK$37,330,000) are included in administrative expenses during the

year.

In view of the recent economic downturn, and the expected decrease
in revenue from the hotel operation, the directors have reviewed the
carrying amounts of the Group's hotel properties as at the balance
sheet date with reference to the fair value of similar properties on an
open market value under existing use basis, and determined that the
carrying amounts of the hotel properties exceeded their recoverable
amounts. Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$36,985,000 has been

recognised in respect of the Group'’s hotel properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, included in the impairment
losses recognised in respect of the Group's construction in progress of
HK$280,160,000 (2007: Nil) are impairment loss on the Group's luxury
trains under construction of HK$263,360,000 (2007: Nil). Details of

which are disclosed in note 23.

15. E B REZE ®)

RZZBZENF+ZA=+—H0 KEEI
BMERNTAEZRE  WAERME R
2 BRTH {8 £900,000/8 7T (Z T T L F -
230,000/ 7T ) °

IR )2 2 3T E B 241,668,000 70 (=
T T+ 4 :37,330,0008 7T) . BIERE
RNZTHFA -

EI RSB TR  ARTERBE X2
WA EEE2RADERBRRR
Bz ARMEAEZAFER EHAS
EBEENMERNEERZREE TEF
BIEMEZEEEBLEAT DS RE-
At AEBE S ERBENE 2 RERE
36,985,000/ 7T ©

HE_TZNF+_-_A=+—AL*F
B AEBERIRZERRNESE
280,160,000 T (Z 2T+ 4 & )8
EAKBEEERENNEZREFE
263,360,000 T (ZEZE+F:&)-F
RARE IS M 234 3 -

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REW %

HK$'000
FHT
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 January 2007 AT+ F—F— =
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — KM B A RIR ATRE A 174,938
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 RZZEZLF+ZA=+—HRK
—EZN\F—H—H 174,938
Additions NE 31,719
Currency realignment BERE 15,946
Decrease in fair value recognised in Rére =R ER 2 A TFEAERBD
the consolidated income statement (4,826)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZBENF+Z=HA=+—H 217,777

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2008 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Norton Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Norton
Appraisals is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar

properties in similar location.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

The investment properties of the Group were situated on leasehold land

under medium-term in the PRC.
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A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17. A HERE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETLF
FHET T
The Group's prepaid lease payments for REEREB 2 FHRBENEE T2
leasehold land in Hong Kong under B EERE
medium-term lease 159,654 -
Analysed for reporting purpose as: WED
Current asset MENE B 5,635 =
Non-current asset EMBEE 154,019 =
159,654 -
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE N Bl 2=
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELF
FHERT T
Cost of investments in associates REEE DR 2 ERA
Tradeable on the Pink Sheets in the AREENAEBEEESE
United States of America - 94,983
Other unlisted investments HfIE EMIEE 14,786 14,786
Share of post-acquisition losses FEAE W B 12 5 48 (12,049) (43,625)
2,737 66,144

;-). 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. REFE DT 2R (1)
Particulars of the Group's associates as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 REBZHEATAN T NER-ZTE
are as follows: +tFEF+ A=+ —HZFHERT:

Issued and
Place of paid up Proportion of
incorporation/ share capital/ issued/registered
Form of establishment registered capital held
Name of associate business structure and operation capital by the Group Principal activities
‘000 2008 2007
EMARL R BERTREHRE rE@ERE
BENRER EBRRBEA REXHE BA/EMES BRT/EMEALE TEER
T —BENE “ZTEF
Advantmark Holdings Limited ~ Limited liability British Virgin Uss- 49% 49%  Hotel management
company Islands services
Advantmark Holdings Limited ~ AR EE R REERRES -% 49% 49%  BIEERRE
Ananda Travel Service (Aust.)  Limited liability Australia A$400 40% 40%  Travel and related
Pty. Limited company services
Ananda Travel Service (Aust) ~ BHREFAA BN 4008 7T 40% 40%  IRERIEBRS
Pty. Limited
Champion Universal Group Limited liability British Virgin Uss- 49% 49%  Leisure club operations
Limited company Islands
Champion Universal Group AREEAT RBERRES =5 49% 49% EERHERER
Limited
Hypermach Limited Limited liability British Virgin Uss- 49% 49%  Hotel management
company Islands services
Hypermach Limited BREEAR EBRBRES —X7T 49% 49%  BIEERRE
Sino Express Travel, Ltd. Limited liability United States of Us$84 - 48%  Travel and related
("Sino USA") company America services
Sino Express Travel, Ltd. BAREEAT ZH 84F T - 8%  IkERIEERE
(Sino USA])
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Y

18. REE QT 2 = (8

Issued and
Place of paid up Proportion of
incorporation/ share capital/ issued/registered
Form of establishment registered capital held
Name of associate business structure and operation capital by the Group Principal activities
‘000 2008 2007
MBS B ERTRESR AEEEE
BENRER EBREER REXBE BA/EMES BRfT/EMERLE TEXH
T ZEENE “ETHF
Travoo International Limited Limited liability British Virgin US$6,120 50% 50% Investment holding
company Islands
Travoo International Limited BREEAT EBRMAEE 6,120% T 50% 50%  REER
Wing On International Travel Sino-foreign equity PRC RMB5,000 49% 49%  Travel and related
Service Co. Ltd., Guangdong  joint venture services
BRARZERRTIHERDR HINEERA HE 5,000\ & # 49% 49%  IKBRABRE
Winner World Group Limited ~ Limited liability British Virgin uss$- 20% 20%  Investment holding
company Islands
Winner World Group Limited ~ BREETAA REBERRES —X7 20% 20%  RERR

On 15 December 2008, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
acquired an additional 18.42% equity interest in Sino USA for a
consideration of HK$5,000,000. Sino USA then became a subsidiary
of the Group, and the cost of investment and share of post-acquisition
losses of Sino USA have accordingly been excluded from interests in

associates as at 31 December 2008.

RZZENF+_A+FHA AEEE
BE2EWE AR WESIno USARE SN
18.42 %% A # % - X f& /&5,000,0007%8
7T ° Sino USAH & B REAK /23 2 5 [E 2 [T /&8
A A MASIno USAZ 18 & A 2 B 4 Ut
BREBEEDCEEMR_ZZN\E+_A
=T —ARREE AR 2SI
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2007, included in the cost of investment in
associates of Sino USA is goodwill of HK$17,484,000 arising on
acquisition of interest in associates (2008: Nil). The summarised

financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set out

18. REFE N T 2R (8)

RZBZELF+_A=+—H AR
Sino USAZ B & A A& & K 78 4 Uk e B

BN B R T A 2 841 7,484,00078 7T
(ZZEZNF |E) N EEBE QR 28

below: HERBESHIET
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2ENF ZTTLF
FET FHT
Total assets BEERE 410,952 619,596
Total liabilities BEHAR (396,536) (505,554)
Net assets EEFE 14,416 114,042
Share of net assets BIREEFE 2,737 48,660
Turnover - 110,589 135,020
Loss for the year REFEE (88,149) (28,698)
Share of results of associates for the year REZ BRI E N RIERA (45,345) (44,891)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of certain
associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of those associates,
extracted from the relevant management accounts of associates, both

for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

AEBCBURERHEEHLE THE AR Z
18 - REE K Rt 2 REREIEZFH
BREFR (FHExEAEHE AR EER
B)&5ImT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2ENF —ETtF
FET FHIT

Unrecognised share of losses of N EARTER BN E QA EE
associates for the year 6,720 221

Accumulated unrecognised share of SEREREL G E A REE

losses of associates 7,038 318
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 19. A—RIAGE4ISEB o #EE

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had interests in the following RZZBZENF+ZA=+—H *~5ER
jointly controlled entity: THREEG B A R
Form of Place and Proportion of
business date of registered capital held
Name of entity structure establishment Registered capital Paid up capital by the Group indirectly Principal activity
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
‘000 '000 ‘000 '000 % %
FEEHE
REER £BRBYA  RUBERAH EMER BARRE FEEMEALR IRER
It 213 it S ZBENE “ERLE ZBENE CBBtE
i Tr i T % %
Tanggula Railtours Ltd. ~ Limited liability ~ PRC RMB102,040  RMB102,040 RMB68,160 RMB59,540 49% 49%  Conducting a tour train service
company 13 December 2006 related business on

the Qinghai - Tibet railway

and other railways in the PRC

B E 512 EREGRR  HE 102040A K% 10200AK%  68160ARH  59540ARH 49% 49% RPEERERRAMER
ARAR ZITRE REFIERERBADES
T=A+=AR
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
—EEN\E s
FET FAT
Cost of unlisted investment in jointly R—RHEREHEE 2
controlled entity IE F IR E AR 16,479 6,979
Share of post-acquisition loss FE(R U 12 518 (7,410) (650)
9,069 6,329
The amount due to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest free FER — RIS BRI EET 2
and repayable on demand. B RBRBMER-

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 % % — R EN%+ A =+ — 8 LF &

19. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 19. A—RIAeGE4ISE o #EE

(CONTINUED) (%)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interest BRAREENHERIZEGER 2 w2 5
in the jointly controlled entity attributable to the Group’s interest BRRERINGOT NEEREFEIEZ
thereon, which is accounted for using the equity method is set out s D A RERTHE
below:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETLF
F#ExT T
Current assets mENEE 4,171 5,639
Non-current assets FEMBEE 9,644 949
Current liabilities mBEE 4,746 259
Non-current liabilities e N=E - =
Income WA 36 7
Expenses X 6,796 657
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIHHERE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE BT LF
FHERT T
Equity securities &N
Unlisted shares, at cost I LD - EAARE 283,160 283,160
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BERZBEEE (120,176) (33,168)
162,984 249,992
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. A HERE (1)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as at 31 RIEENFN _EE+F+_A=+—
December 2008 and 2007 are as follows: BAREE 2T EZRHEEREZFENR
T
Place of Proportion of
establishment/ Paid up capital/ paid up/registered
incorporation registered capital held Interest attributable
Name of entity and operation capital by the subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
‘000 2008 2007 2008 2007
WEAF
R/ MR IR BRRE/ BEMRRE/
EBER BEHY AMEE SMER 2L rEEEGES TEER
Tr ZEENF —TELE —E2RNE —ETLE
Guangxi Guijia Property PRC US$8,021 26% 26% 18.2% 182% Property holding and
Management Company Limited operation of leisure
("Guangxi Guijia") (Note 1) services
BERERNEEEARAR HE 8021ETT 26% 26% 18.2% 182%  HENER
(TEEER]) (M) BeRERS
Smartshine Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Uss- 19% 19% 19% 19% Investment holding
Islands/PRC
Smartshine Holdings Ltd. EEERRES/ —%T 19% 19% 19% 19%  REER
i
Newskill Investments Ltd. British Virgin US$1 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% Property investment
Islands/PRC
Newskill Investments Ltd. ABERRER/ (E 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 35%  MERE
i
EMNREHEREERAA PRC US$8,000 25% 25% 25% 25%  Property investment
("EMER") (Note 2)
BENESHEREERAR i 8,000% 7T 25% 25% 25% 5%  MERE
(TEMBRZ]) (MzE2)
More Cash Ltd. British Virgin US$1 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% Property investment
Islands/PRC
More Cash Ltd. EREBREE/ (E90 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 35%  MERE
i
Ally Fortune Investments Ltd. British Virgin US$1 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% Property investment
Islands/PRC
Ally Fortune Investments Ltd. RBAEREE/ (E3 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 35%  MERE
i

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ A =+—H L5 &

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

20. A HHERE (9

Lt IE EHIRE R P B SN R
BRRESTEMAL 2 AEBRITZIEL
MERABRZRE ARNZEREZAE

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in the PRC or

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. They are measured at cost less

impairment at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

At 31 December 2008, the directors of the Company take into
consideration of the decline in market values of the properties held
by their investees and considered that they are unlikely to recover

fully the carrying value of the investment. Accordingly an impairment

NP EBEMBTHEERN ARREERA
TREAISEHET B A AT EE  HRER
ENSEE BRRAERRERE -

R-FENF+-A=+—8 £AF
EEEBIRREAAREZNEDE
TR BA2HKEAMEAEEE
TRETA Al EHAKSEDRR

]

— 55 5887,008,0006 7T (BB A4 :
6,440,000/ 70 ) Z B8 - LAMURZ S
REZEMEZETKESHE-

loss of HK$87,008,000 (2007: HK$6,440,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement to write down the carrying amounts of

these investments to their recoverable amounts.

Notes: B

1. Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 26% interest in Guangxi 1. HALREE—BEWBEARSEERE
5226% 2 m  EESRRNEETEE
HEAER B REERETHE
Guangxi Guijia and accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale FE WMEAEREIHSBEA A
investment. AEHERE -

Guijia, the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise
significant influence on the financial and operating policies of

2. Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% interest in /& M $E 2, 2. BAKREE-—FHHEAQRFEEMR

R25% 2 e EEER AR EE TR

HEMRF W REERRITHES
HEN WEMBERDIRSEA—IE
AHHERE -

the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise significant
influence on the financial and operating policies of E/M$E% and
accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale investment.
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A B RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

GOODWILL 21. &
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2ENF ZTTLF
FHET T
COST RAE
At 1 January n—H—H 16,705 50,021
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W HE Bt B8 & Bl i 2 A
(notes 53b & ) (Mf5E53bRc) - 52,628
Reclassified to assets classified ENNPBEABIELEELE
as held for sale (note 34) (Pft5E34) - (85,944)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 16,705 16,705
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January n—H—H (4,000) (5,808)
Impairment loss recognised for the year RNEZBHRZBEERE (12,705) (11,214)
Eliminated on reclassified to assets as BB ARIEHEEAERHH
held for sale (note 34) (FfF5E34) - 13,022
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8© (16,705) (4,000)
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H - 12,705

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 22.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segments as its

primary segment for reporting segment information. For the purpose of

impairment testing, goodwill as set out in note 21 has been allocated to

the cash generating unit (“CGU") of Sichuan Henxin Tourism Company

Limited (”Sichuan Henxin"”). Sichuan Henxin is engaged in travel and

related service segment.

22.

BREEERENSZFERME22P 5%

=

7 2 R (E R

KT EEerT IR RE BN AR D BIE
REZWHBER 2 T E2 0 - LR ER
A= R F2N 2 HBEESEEN
NMEEREEREEAR (TWIEE]D
ZREELBM([ReELEM]) M
NMEEREIRE RARERGE D -

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #. % —

22.

EEANF+ A=+ —BLEFR

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
(CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the
basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past

practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The goodwill impairment review on Sichuan Henxin was based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets for the
next five years approved by management using a discount rate of 16%.
The cash flows beyond the five year period have been extrapolated
for indefinite period using a steady 5% per annum growth rate. The
directors reviewed the anticipated profitability and the anticipated
future operating cash flow of Sichuan Henxin. With reference to
the financial results, the earthquake took place in 2008, and the
business operated by Sichuan Henxin, the directors of the company
identified an impairment loss in respect of goodwill of approximately
HK$12,705,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$4,000,000) and such an amount was dealt with in the consolidated

income statement for the year.

In December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of its online booking
exchange platform business for a consideration of HK$37,000,000
and accordingly, a goodwill impairment loss of approximately
HK$7,214,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the net carrying amount of
such goodwill of approximately HK$36,988,000 is re-classified as assets
classified as held for sale as of 31 December 2007 (note 34).
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22. BEREANRA &

ReEABN 2 AIRESERERER
BRE -TEHERBEMELFEMRBEAR
MR R EREURFANBAMBEER R
Z AR E) - B B AR AT R A 5T
BEIR KR - Z I R R T A5 5 B M A R
BEURRSESENEFERRZ T - 18
RENERNEREAAEE WA REE
A2 BBIRBENRETSRRES 2
H B R T o

B2 B RBEEREIAEZ K
REGHEHMUBEEMBZHERER
B R AR R16%E TR ER T - AF 4
BrRERETNS% 2 BT FRERE
TERBZ G- ESEEBMIERFZ
BHREFNENREHARLERSRE
RIRI) 1B (5 2 B S B R T EAE -
KER-_TTN\F2MER AREESF
REBEE-_ZZN\F+-_A=+—BLF
FE#% R #912,705,0008 7 (— BT L4
4,000,000/ 7T ) 2 B EIREE 18 - A 7
CHEERNZFEZRERRRPERE -

RZZEELFE+A AEEE—FF
BE=RHFI N —fOthE HEEE LT
232 5 & %% #£{837,000,000% 7T
B - 497,214,000/ 7T 2 BB R E KB
ERBE_ZTT+FI+-_A=+—HL
FREAELRAWEEZNER  MEBEEL
36,988,000/ 2 BREVFEE RN _EZT+
F+ZA=+—BEFIED EAFEL
B2 EE (H5E34) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

23. HhER EE

Hotel
Railway operating
intangibles agreements Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g BIE
mLEE B &t
FHAT FATT FTT
COoST MAE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZTEZLF—-—H—H = = =
Acquired on acquisition of LA B BT /B8 1 ) RF L
subsidiaries 352,302 116,592 468,894
At 31 December 2007 and RZEZ+F+_A=+—8HXK
1 January 2008 —TENF—H—H 352,302 116,592 468,894
Eliminated on acquisition of 1 B BT B8 R R R 8
subsidiaries - (2,430) (2,430)
At 31 December 2008 R-_ZEZENF+-_A=+—H 352,302 114,162 466,464
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZEZLF—-—H—H - - -
Charge for the year REEZH - 2,608 2,608
At 31 December 2007 and RZZEZLF+-A=+—HBK
1 January 2008 —ETN\F—A—H - 2,608 2,608
Charge for the year KEEFYH - 7,825 7,825
Impairment loss recognised REEERRBREERE
for the year 136,640 56,200 192,840
At 31 December 2008 R=BENF+=A=+—H 136,640 66,633 203,273
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2008 R=ZFBENF+=H=+—H 215,662 47,529 263,191
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZELF+_A=+—H 352,302 113,984 466,286

The above classes of intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such

intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the

NEEVEERFIGRBRAIERFH -
T BB E TR B AR SE LA T DI 4 B

following periods: 3 .
Railway intangibles 16 years B mE A E 164
Hotel operating agreements 10 years to 15 years B JE 88 e 10 =154
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 23. HWEREE &)

Railway intangibles comprise exclusive rights, trademark and affiliation
agreement. The exclusive rights entitle the Group to conduct an
exclusive tour train service related business on the Qinghai-Tibet
Railway in the PRC, which include conducting tour related services,
engaging in food and beverage service and lodging business, for a
contractual period of 16 years from the date of commencement of
the railway operation. The trademark allows the Group to use the
brand “Tangula” and “Tangula Express” for railway operation while
the affiliation agreement is with an international hotel management
chain which provides hospitality services on the train and enables the
Group to enhance its brand attractiveness of the train operations and
to capture the potential customers base of the international hotel
management chain. As the commencement of the commercial railway
operation has been postponed to Spring of 2010, and the related
exclusive rights, trademark and affiliation agreement are for 16 years
commencing from the date of commencement of the commercial

railway operation, the related amortisation has not yet commenced.

The hotel operating agreements entitle the Group to manage and
operate certain hotels operations exclusively in Macau and the PRC for

a period of 10 to 15 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Due to the general slowdown in the global economy brought by the
financial tsunami, the political instability in Tibet and the tightened
regulations in granting entry visa for Chinese Nationals to Macau during
the year, the Group considered these as indications that an impairment
loss for other intangible assets, and related items of property, plant
and equipment may have occurred. For the purpose of impairment
testing, railway intangible assets have been allocated to the cash
generating unit ("CGU") of Tangula Group Limited (“Tangula”), and
hotel operating agreements intangible assets have been allocated to the

CGU of Asia Times Limited (“Asia Times”).

The recoverable amount of these CGUs has been determined on the
basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to revenue and direct cost. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and

expectations of future changes in the market.

The directors reviewed the anticipated profitability and the anticipated
future operating cash flow of Tangula and Asia Times. The directors
of the Company identified an impairment loss in respect of other
intangible assets and luxury trains under construction related to Tangula
of approximately HK$136,640,000 and HK$263,360,000, respectively
and of other intangible assets related to Asia Times of approximately
HK$56,200,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 and such
amounts were dealt with in the consolidated income statement for
the year. The impairment review was based on cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets and forecast over the
exclusive licence period of operations, approved by management using

a discount rate of 16.1% to 18.3%.

23. HtEEEE (9

ERFASREEL RIEERERR
ARBRTEEKZERFEBERE AT
RPI 2 ARBEZB 2RO AEERRILE
RPN RN E MR EE AR E
MR R REIEE AT aE R ERRE IS - AR
HRE SHEREFEEE DB £Tangula
Group Limited ([E&H]) 2R S ELESE
iz ([REeEEEBM])  MEELEHHRE
28 Bl 95 BE 2 Asia Times Limited ([ Asia
Times |) 2R @ EH B

WERSEL RN 2 AT Ol S BB IAERE
EEEFH AEERABEIIERRA
B RITR R ERR R IR AR BEK
REBERK - EEBHEABATLL R A5t
FERE  URRBEHISHRSELEN
ZEBEEEEN Y UEZFREESL
B2 FERR - EREDREBITEER
BRIRKE  WARBERRAZE THIRE
BETISE D RS R REE) 2 18 A%
&

EEERAEE R KAsia TimesZ BRI &
Mg RFEHAREERSTE -HEZ
EEN\E+_A=+—BLEE AQ
RIEZEEHAIE P RELR 2 EthER
EERERSEIE ZRERBED A
136,640,000/ 7T 263,360,000/ 7T * JA
K% K Asia Timesz B B E 2 BB
/&8 4956,200,000 70 ' ERE© REE R A
FEZGAWERNEE AEEREE
168 [ PfT 2 4198 3R A 2 R PR BA PR 9 3 AR
MHEERBRARG RS REEN I
EFA16.1%E18.3% 2 TR X ZBRENRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

24. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 24 REFTEREMEE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETF
FET FET
Deposits for acquisition of 100% WIERBEREE i RAEs AT

interests in companies holding land 2100%Em 2 7] (Mia)

use rights in the PRC (note a) - 150,000
Deposits for acquisition of 100% interest in ~ WiE —REFRWKE —BEEEMERZ

a company awarded the tender to acquire EZRFZ100%EE 25 &

a property in Hong Kong (note b) (Fft5EDb) - 16,388
Prepaid management fee (note ) FENEEES (i) - 40,000
Deposits for acquisition of interest WEPE—EMFXERER 2Ex

in a property development project Z &% (MiEEd)

in the PRC (note d) - 37,200
Unamortised loan facilities fees REHZERREER - 31,276
Earnest money (note e) Ere (Mizxe) 100,000 =
Other HAh 9,066 5,000

109,066 279,864
Notes: i)

(a)

The amount represented the deposits paid for the acquisition of
100% equity interests in certain companies holding land use rights
in the PRC for various development projects, with the objective
of developing hotels, shopping malls, recreational and other
tourists related amenities respectively. The aggregate consideration
for the purchase amounted to HK$180,000,000. The projects
were terminated during 2008 and deposits of approximately
HK$139,400,000 have been refunded to the Group during the
year. The remaining balance of HK$10,600,000 is included in other
receivables at 31 December 2008 and all of which have been settled
as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The amount represented deposit paid for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in a company which has been awarded the tender
to acquire a property at Tai Kok Tsui Road, Hong Kong for a total
consideration of HK$163,880,000, with an objective of re-developing
it into a hotel. The transaction was completed in January 2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

24. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

25.

26.

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

() The amount represented prepaid management fee for property
management service made by the Company to undertake the
management of a property located in the PRC. The arrangement was
terminated during 2008 with all the prepaid fees refunded.

(d) The amount represented deposit paid for the acquisition of certain
interest in a property development project in the PRC with the
objective of developing commercial buildings and carparks. The
acquisition was terminated during 2008 and the deposit has been
fully refunded to the Group during the year.

(e) The amounts represent sums of earnest money paid to certain
independent third parties in relation to proposed acquisitions of
companies which have property projects or hotel operations in the
PRC. Subsequent to 31 December 2008, the Group has determined
to terminate one of the proposed acquisitions and the earnest money
previously paid of HK$10,000,000 has been fully returned before
the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company has
the absolute right to demand for a full refund of the earnest money
should there be no definitive sale and purchase agreement entered
into prior to the stipulated deadlines of the respective proposed
acquisitions.

INVENTORIES

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally food,
beverages and general stores which are to be utilised in the ordinary

course of operations.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured and interest free.
These companies are related to the Group as certain directors of the
Company are also directors of and have beneficial interests in these
companies. Included in the amounts due from related companies
as at 31 December 2008 were advances of HK$30,861,000 (2007:
HK$55,301,000) which are repayable upon written notice given from
the Company within one year and were neither past due nor impaired.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
remaining balances were principally trading balances with credit period

of 30 days.

24. BEFTER

25.

26.

A B RARME

BEENF+_A=Z+—HEFE

HiEE s

Pt : ()

(O ZEREEARRARETRE—EY
¥ EBEAMAYEEERBEN
ZEBE -ZBETHENZTTN\FR
I MEABRNEREERE

d) ZEFBRERKBETIE-—EAMEZER
HRZETREMXNZATE L/@’*E
BEERERIFES - ZARBENR =
TNFERIE A NERFRABHE
REE -

() ZEFEEABRZWEZRNFBEHE
BMEIEB REEHEZARMAS
FBYE= AN 2EMERIE- R
TENF+ZA=+—H% K~EER
TEMRIEE AP — TR - 2 AT
,2.10,000,0007% 7T & M & B pA Lt Z R 7%
HAERES BATESREAEE - iy
% #RL U0 B8 2 ZTRA PR BA AT AT 32

BE W AAARAI2EERE
%(%&}i%ﬁﬁf’

FE
FEARASIE B AR EHBRT
ERAZAS RBR—RAS-

PR BAE 1 R E

EURIERBFRTVEER LS - AR
AETUNESENIRUFARZIEERR
HERAREAERER  SULEAREAR

EFAEE- R EEN\F+_A=1+—
B - Y FE 3 A 5] 5178 B $530,861,000/%8
ﬁ(:%%tﬁﬁssmnmmﬁﬁ)Z@

R ZEFRBARARAE—FRELE
BAREE  BYWARBHSORE A&
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &
26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 26. FEUWREAE A B FRIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

BHRAEHRNRERB ZRROMTWOT

The aged analysis of the trade balances at the reporting dates is as

follows:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FENF e
FTHET FET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 81 278
- 60 days 31260H 194 557
—90 days 61290H 233 560
Over 90 days A0 H 5,050 7,887
5,558 9,282

Included in the above trade balances with related companies is

NEEBBERARZE S HRBEAR

M {E 45,477,000 L (Z T T+ F:
9,004,000 L) " MNERHE®EBAR
EEWES L ELRERE RERAS

aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$5,477,000 (2007:
HK$9,004,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the

Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a

significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered BREZEEHRTEHEEEEELAST KX
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these BE) WAl Yol A RS RE o A K B gt
balances. ZEFERTFREMERR -

ERBERBEZE S RREH

Aging of trading balances which are past due but

not impaired

AR

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E2EN\F T LF

FHExT FHIT

- 60 days 31%60H 194 557
—90 days 61%290H 233 560
Over 90 days @90 H 5,050 7,887
Total #ET 5,477 9,004
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A B RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES 27. B (FE{Y) Bt & N BRI KIR
Included in the amounts due from associates as at 31 December 2008 RIBEEN\FF+_A=+—HZEKEE
were advances of HK$72,811,000 (2007: Nil) which are interest free RIFIBEBREZE R E#5072,811,000%
and secured by equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The remaining T (ZEZEF &) UREBLETZ
amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured and interest free. FRAEAHVER IR 2 T 2 FRUR (FEL) Bt &
Amounts due from associates are repayable upon written notice given ANEIFIB TR R e B o PR & N T
from the Company within one year and amounts due to associates are RBARA AR EEMBARE—FA
repayable on demand. B8 - M EE AR IERIZER B AE

o
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EZ R HAMEWERK

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENE —EELF

FBT T

Trade receivables B 5 rERR 26,906 27,338

Less: allowance for doubtful debts N (1,763) (58)

25,143 27,280

Other receivables (notes a, b, c and d) HEhEUWRBRR (MiFa b ckd) 241,546 454,294

Total trade and other receivables B 5 R HEAMEWAR KRBT 266,689 481,574
The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to customers. AEBEGTERF 2REA/A308 2601 -
The aged analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment) at the ZHRKER (MRRER) REZERZ

balance sheet dates is as follows: BRER DML ¢

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENF —ETLF

FHET T

0 - 30 days 0£30H 9,643 12,145

- 60 days 31£60H 4,128 4,767

- 90 days 61%90H 1,625 2,469

Over 90 days H3E90H 9,747 7,899

25,143 27,280
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e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % — R RN+ =0 =+ — 8 LF i

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year, the Group
reviews the repayment history of receivables by each customer with
reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, 44% (2007: 45%) of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have good credit quality at the balance sheet

date with reference to past settlement history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$14,045,000 (2007:
HK$15,135,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

8. EZ REMBUKARR ()

AEBEEZMEMHETLA EHGER
FPrEEER YEEZEPZEER
H-BPERZRBSEFRT —R-A
SE2RANMIZNFTIGEFT BRI ES
BEFEERUWERR 2 LE NEERDE
SRBERZIEN -ARREERR 2
RBECBELE ReEAY RAHA
AEREZ44%EFRKER (ZTFL
F:45%) REREEEFR-

AEEZEZREWEREHBIELE
E 1 4914,045,0008 70 (ZEZ L F
15,135,000/ 70) 2 8 Z B KRR - % &
BHRKNEFNEHRAC AN BAEH
WS I E LR EEBRE  RERANSE
ERAZEEIRBERTSHEEE X
EAEBEREE WaE BB E N
BN R S RIS A RS o

EEMERBEZE S ERERR
AR

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENF —ETLF

FHET FHET

- 60 days 31Z260H 2,673 4,767

- 90 days 61290H 1,625 2,469
Over 90 days HBiE90H 9,747 7,899
Total et 14,045 15,135

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables and

recognised allowance on specific balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

A B RARME

BEENF+_A=Z+—HEFE

28. ESZ R EHMEWERT (&)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEZ2E
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gTNF —ETt4
FET FAET
Balance at beginning of the year RE 2 4 58 58
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE 1,705 =
Balance at end of the year RERZ R 1,763 58

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired

trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$1,763,000 (2007:

HK$58,000), of which the Group has chased for settlements from

customers but the amounts remained unsettled. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, direct write off of irrecoverable

trade debts amounted to Nil (2007: HK$3,974,000).

Notes:

Included in the balances at 31 December 2007 were amounts paid
to certain independent third parties in total of HK$213,717,000 in
relation to a proposed acquisition of certain interests in a company
which has a property project in the PRC. These balances were secured
by equity interests of the target company. In addition, the balances
at 31 December 2007 also included a deposit of HK$142,300,000
placed in relation to a proposed investment in certain clubhouse
projects in the PRC. The sums of money were secured by equity
interests in the parent of the target company which owned the
clubhouse projects in the PRC. These two projects were terminated
during 2008 and all deposits paid have been refunded.

Included in the balances at 31 December 2008 are non-interest
bearing advances made to land operators of the Group of
HK$44,337,000 (2007: Nil). The balances are pledged with the
payables owed to these land operators by the Group. The amount of
pledge at 31 December 2008 is HK$5,324,000 (2007: Nil).

REEBE P IEARRIERE1,763,0008 7T (=
T T+ 4 :58,000 ) 2 ERIE R EE
SENES AEEEATFBKEEAR
B EZECENAREE AEETE
R FERIT AT ER R

BE_ZZENF+_A=1+—HIEEE"
HEEMBEAAKODEZESEEAET ST (=
TR :3,974,000087T) °

(@ M-TTLF+-A=t+—HBHZEHE
ERERERE —EE TR E— (AR
BrzRElZETREMINNTETE
M E =7 2 IEH£213,717,000% 7T -
ZEEHE B IER R ZBRAERER
#&wwﬂf77t¢+ A=+—

BHENMBEERERRERPES
?@%EEWﬁHZﬂ@M&%Q%O
B AT EEMER 2 BEA
Al 2 B R A2 A (R AR o % 18
HEERZZZN\FRI MAEEH
FIeEERE

by RZZTZENF+ZA=T—HZ&EH
B R AE B S E R 2 et
B #3844,337,000/8 7T (Z B L4F
) REREBRUAE B S RIS
BEERNENETIERF - R
TNF+_A=+—BZ2EFEES
5,324,000/ 7L ( — BT 4 £) o

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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Fa)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 7, % —

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes:

(0)

B R EE

EEANSF+ZAZ+—B LR

(CONTINUED)

(Continued)

Included in the balances are an aggregate of HK$50,815,000
(2007:Nil) relating to the balance of consideration receivables from
the disposal of &M X 7 ik A 7% & PR 2 @] and the online booking
exchange platform business. These receivables are secured by equity
securities listed in Singapore and Pink Sheets in the United States of
America, bearing interest at 10% per annum and due on 30 June

2. ES REMEBWERRR (9

PiisE: (&)

(@
REBERARRALEFTMNR

(=BT

=]

ZEHBBIEERLE BEIMNRKE IR
SEE%
2 MR (B 584 A $£50,815,00074 7T
+F ) o WERIBREUAR
s R EBMAGE Eh 2 BRAE
FAEEIR IREFRI0E B TR =

2009.

Included in the balances at 31 December 2008 are non-interest
bearing advances of HK$17,871,000 (2007: Nil) which are secured
by the right in a property located in the PRC of approximately

TENFRA=THEIH-

R-ZEZENF+_A=Z+—HBZ&%
BT B E 517,871,000 7T (=
TELEE) DA —EREYEZ

HK$41,858,000 (2007: Nil). The amount is repayable on demand. e F#)41,858,000/8 7 (T4 :
) (EIE R - GRAEAIRBAEE -
29. LOAN RECEIVABLES 29. ERER
2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000
—2ENF —TELF
FH&xT FHIT
Variable-rate loan to certain companiesand % F&ETE=FRakALZ
individual third parties (notes a and b) FRER (MiEakb) 37,744 94,349
Notes B 5
(@ (i) Included in the balances were loans of Nil (2007: HK$6,518,000) (@ () HEEHBEZTHL(ZTZL

which are secured by equity interests in an enterprise established

in the PRC.

(ii)

Included in the balances were loans of HK$5,000,000 (2007:

HK$5,000,000) which are secured by the right in a property
project in Macau of approximately HK$40,000,000 (2007:

HK$40,000,000).

The above mentioned amounts carry interest at market rates and

repayable upon written notice given from the Company.

Save for the loans above, the amounts are unsecured, carrying interest

at market rates and repayable upon written notice given from the

Company.
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#F:6,518,0008 L) 2ER Ty
A=K B S 2 1 3 2 R 7K
e -

%% #5842 8485,000,000/8 7C (=
T T4 :5000,0007T) 2 &
0 T BA — I8 4940,000,0007% T
(== Z £ : 40,000,000/ 7T )
ZORFIYSETE B RERIVEHE IR

(ii)

bt e BETHNE R WARAR
BB E R AR EE

(b) B EMERIN ZEREAERE IR
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29.

30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on loan
receivables as the amounts were due from various counterparties.
Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31 December
2008 is accumulated impairment loss of HK$9,078,000 (2007:
HK$9,078,000).

The range of effective interest rates (which also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group's variable-rate loan receivables are Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate to Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 3%
per annum for both years. Weighted average effective interest rate is

6.14% (2007: 8.83%) per annum.

LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES

The loans to related companies are unsecured, interest bearing at Hong
Kong Prime Rate plus 2% and repayable upon written notice from the
Company within one year. These companies are related to the Group
as certain directors of the Company are also directors of and have
beneficial interests in these companies. Weighted effective interest rate

is 7.5% per annum in 2008.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29.

30.

A B RARME

FEEANFT A=+ —8LEFA

FEWER @)

HRERER S REEEFH  WAEHE
WEEAEFZEERBR - N /N\F
TZA=+—B EBUERZEEETE
ERFRER1E9,078,00087T (=TTt
419,078,000 L) °

REZMEFE AEEFEREERZE
BRAR (HEREONR) 2BEN T

TREBRMNREHETHERFENFEF =
3% ° NEFHERFHEA6.14% (=%
TH:883%)

ll\ﬂ%@ggﬁEIZE%k

RTEERRZERDERR RETH
BEMNEM2%ET B WARANR R EH
EEBARE—FAREE - AQAE TR
EEXNERUEATZEENNUEAF
BEERER WHEAREAEEEH
B —_RRNFLZEEFHNERT5% °

1.97€mIT A

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BENE —ETLF
FET FHT
Derivatives financial instruments classified as DA IEEBE 2 TES R T A
held for trade
Foreign currency options SN HA 7 - 5,972

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group acquired a
subsidiary which had 5 foreign currency options outstanding with a

bank.

=

RBE_TELF+_A=1+—BLHF
o AREWE -RE—RHERTAI AN
RITEESNE A 2 Y8 2 7]

i
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e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Major terms of the significant foreign currency contracts are as follows:

3. fTEE€RMI A ()

BERINEGHZ ERIEKMNT

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
‘000

BEEH A Ex

T

Buy RMB122,978
BEAAR®122,9787C
Buy RMB121,681
BEAARK121,6817T

31 January 2008
—EENF-HA=+—H
31 March 2008
—2T/\F=A=t+-8

USD/RMB7.2917
1ETTHARKET7.29177T
USD/RMB7.2148
1ETTH AREET.21487T

Buy RMB36,455 8 August 2008 USD/RMB7.0499
5 AANEK#36,4557T —ZEZENEFENANE 1£TTH AR KT7.04997T
Buy RMB36,326 28 August 2008 USD/RMB7.0250
B AAK36,3267T —EENFENAZ+NR 17T H AR ¥7.02507T
Buy RMB45,698 12 September 2008 USD/RMB7.0050
B AAR45,6987T —EE)N\FNAA+Z=A 1E T H AR 7.00507T

RITEINERONEEMNBARE R K=
ZRLF T A=+ HZRAFEETIF
FREEEEE (B (1805 — &7 T ] 28
BEBEN) ZEETEEE - FR &F
SNERKBRIE MitETAZAFEE

instruments was included in the consolidated income statement. BHE T ALGAUWERA -

The fair values of the outstanding foreign currency contracts as at the
acquisition date of the subsidiary and as at 31 December 2007 were
determined based on a valuation technique using an option pricing
model, namely the Black Scholes Model. During the year, those foreign

currency contracts were matured and the fair value change of these
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33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING N.BFHEEEZ2RE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF T
FET FET

Listed securities TS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT 2 BRAES 10,190 27,531
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TRADING CASH 3.8 ITER EFZHE

BALANCES/BANK BALANCES
Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.75% (2007: 1.2% to 3.53%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.73% (2007: 3%)
per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the

settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

Trading cash balances

The amounts represent foreign currencies held for money exchange

purposes.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

In December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, in
relation to the disposal of 100% interest in a subsidiary, J& /& 5 i
BR7% B R A | at a consideration of HK$37,000,000. The transaction

was completed in January 2008.

34.

meRRITHER
BEFRITER RITHER

RITHERIRBATTIHFFEN F0.01%
F0.75% (ZZTZTEF:1.2%%E3.53%)
ATECBEARTERCZEAEFMNES
1.73% (ZZ2ZT+F:3%) F5EEH
RITEBER  EERRITFERE TR -

BEZREEER
BHSBHERERSRIBMBZINE -

TRRAFEHEZEE 2
BEABFLEEEZHER
&

REZBTLF+—H AEEE-FRE
BHRBARHEESEMAR LI BILE=TTHIA
K{E37,000,0008 T H & — KK B A A E
MR PRI ARTE A R 2 B 2 100% & 7]
Y~ ZRRXHER _TEN\F—
HZERK -

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —EEZN%+—_H =+—8LFHE

34. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

In December 2007, the Group also entered into an agreement with
an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
in relation to the disposal of its online booking exchange platform
business for a consideration of HK$37,000,000. The net proceeds of
disposal were less than the net carrying amount of the relevant assets
and liabilities and accordingly, impairment loss of HK$7,214,000 has

been provided (note 22). The transaction was completed in April 2008.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal group

classified as held for sale are as follows:

DERBELEZEE 5
ﬁ?%?ﬂ’EtHEﬁEZ*EE%ﬁ

135 (%)

¢~\

RZTTLF+ A AEEZHE—FZR
REEBRREE MK 2B E=F5
LA E37,000,00058 7T HH & H A FETRI R
SFAEBIY — DRk HEFEZM
BREFEENEREEREBEZREF
B MEELREEERS7,214,0008 7T
(Mi3E22) - ZBERXHER =TT /N\FMA
Wo

FII}

DRARKEHEZARHERBEZIER
ERABERNNT:

31.12.2007

HK$'000

—ETLF

+=—A=+—8

F&T

Property, plant and equipment L/ER Y5 a 538

Goodwill [EES 72,922

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A e U BR 3k 18,491

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NS 363

Total assets classified as held for sale DEARBELEZEERE 92,314
Trade and other payables, and liabilities associated ~ B 5 N EMEMBEREH B ABIELE 2

with assets classified as held for sale BEZRBEE 21,019
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=H =+ — 0 LF

35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 35. EZ R HAL B AR
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of FIAE G REAMBERNERZ RIBBERE
approximately HK$147,301,000 (2007: HK$174,687,000) and the #9147,301,0008 T 2 B S ERN R (=
aged analysis of the trade payables at the reporting dates is as follows: TE 174,687,000 7T) - ME 5 JE

MNERFRE2HB ZREDTIAT

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$'000

SN —2RL%

FHET FET

0 - 30 days 0£30H 75,949 90,915

31 - 60 days 31260H 30,586 39,281

61 —90 days 61£290H 20,829 21,91

Over 90 days HE90H 19,937 22,580

147,301 174,687
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. The BE 2 FHRIREACOH - NEBEE #1T
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that W R EIRBUR - AREIRAT A FE(T R
all payables within the credit time frame. Included in the balances HERIRR R - 5| A2 S AR BB IR
are advance receipts from customers deposits of approximately EFEENMEI£4110,894,0008 L (=&
HK$110,894,000 (2007: HK$81,412,000) and payables for T F:81,412,0008 L) R EETERE
construction progress of HK$214,422,000 (2007: Nil). {TBR£214,422,0008 T (Z = 4

&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2~ X EZN%+ - A =+—H8 L5 &

36. PROVISION FOR LOSS CONTINGENCIES 36. ARBHEZEBEE
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 RZTETLF-—HA—R ZTFLF
and 1 January 2008 +ZA=+—BER=ZFENF—A—H -
Provision for the year REERE 17,000
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZE)\F+=-_A=+—H 17,000

Provision for loss contingencies represents management’s best
estimate of the Group's liability relating to the claims made by the
Group's existing and ex-employees on calculating tour escort’s holiday
compensation allowance, and is based on information from the Group's
legal counsels, actual settlement for some of the claims, and the

estimated number of successful claimants.

37. LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES

These companies are related to the Group as certain directors of the
Company are also directors of and have beneficial interests in those
companies. Loans are variable-rate loans which bear interest ranged
from Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate to Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate
plus 2% per annum. The weighted average effective borrowing rate
is 10.3% (2007: 7.3%) per annum. All the loans are unsecured and

repayable within one year.

Included in the balances is a loan of approximately HK$188,157,000
(2007: HK$208,157,000) that is denominated in United States dollars.

38. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The balances represent principally loan interest payable for the loan
balances set out in note 37, which are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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38.

IRBRBEREREEEYRBES
KAl Esat BN AR BRI ERRM 2
FHETEMRHZRET  AREEE R
E2RERE BERAFHREAEEE
REMAREEZER RBPREXNZE
REBRAARNARZABGE -

BEQRER

ARAETHESTIRUEARLE

FRNUSAARARSES  TUBA
BAKEEHE-REERBTEE

= ?ﬁzu%’-%rﬁrﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FRMEFIR2% 2 F K58
B EEFEFER103% (ZTTL4F:
73%) FTEERREERRAR—FRN

o

o HH
%
et
o

i
/\‘E

ZERBHBIE— £ 584188,157,00078
(ZZEZ+ 4 :208,157,00056 7T ) ~ JA
ETFTEZER

dl

FEASBAE R R

BB E 2 RINGE37FTE B SR ERTE 2 &
NEFRMNE ZEFRANELR RER
TBIRBAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % — R ENF+=_H =+ —H 1LF

39. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

39. MEHELH 2 & IE

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REASAR BEBAEARZRE
—gEN\FE -TTHF —BENF  _—TTLF
FExT FHT FHET FHT
Amounts payable RIFRE RN ER 2
under finance leases: I :
Within one year —FR 326 53 284 45
Between one to two years —FEMFNRN 310 53 284 45
Between two to five years MEERFNA 243 139 215 120
879 245 783 210
Less: Future finance charges R R IR AL E S (96) (35) - =
Present value of MAFEEZRE
lease obligations 783 210 783 210
Less: Amount due withinone i : 7l ARSI &2
year shown under —F RN EIHRIE
current liabilities (284) (45)
Amount due after one year —F & B ERIR 499 165

The Group entered into finance leases to acquire certain of its property,
plant and equipment. The terms of the finance leases ranged from 2
to 4 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 5.8% (2007:
3.3%) per annum. Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The
leases were on a fixed repayment basis. The Group’s obligations under
the finance leases were secured by the lessors’ charge over the leased

assets.

AEBEZTREROARBEETYE
HEEHRB - ZEREHO/IEAF
FHEFBEFMNERS8% (ZETL
F:33%) METDIRATHZ AEE &
FHAOTIAB EERBELE - AKE 2R
BEROFRBEALBAERZEEEERER
PEfR e

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R)ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 7, % —

40. BORROWINGS

Borrowings comprise:

EEANSF+ZAZ+—BLFE

40. B &

fEEEE:

Effective interest rate

Carrying amount

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
iR WEE
—BENF —EELF ZEENF —ETEF
FHET FHET
Floating-rate borrowings: ZEEE:
Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered ~ &ERITEERE
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.8% ([BBRITRZE
(2007: HIBOR + 0.8%) #FEL) H0.8%
secured HKD bank loan® —ETLE R
BRITRIZESR 20
0.8% ) EEIFET
RITERO 3.0% 5.1% 365,840 410,480
HIBOR plus 1.2% (2007: ABRITRZEFFE 0
HIBOR + 0.5%) secured 12% (ZZEZ+
HKD bank loan®@ F:BBRITRIZE
#FEM0.5% ) B
RAETRITER? 2.7% 4.8% 28,000 28,000
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate /B L& EEFE112%
plus 2% (2007: Hong Kong (ZZZ L5
Dollar Prime Rate Plus 2%) BT EE N E AN
unsecured HKD loan® 2% ) EAR B T
G 7.5% 9.3% 10,000 10,000
Secured HKD overdraft at BT REENEN
Hong Kong Dollar Prime 3%t Bz BEH
Rate plus 3% BILBERO 8.5% 10.3% 8,052 6,932
HIBOR plus 1.1% secured BBRRITRIZER 2N
HKD bank loan® 1.1%EEFB T
RITER® 3.3% - 61,670 =
473,562 455,412
Fixed-rate borrowings: EBEE:

0.0257% per day® FH0.0257%% 9 -
Total borrowings BEHRE 473,571 455,412
Less: Amount due withinone & : 7| A REEEZ —

year shown under F AN EEFRIE

current liabilities (411,901) (88,753)
Amount due after one year —F 1R B HFkIE 61,670 366,659
Borrowings are repayable as BEAR TS HRE

follows: E:

Within one year or on demand —F Rk IZ i@ 40 411,901 88,753
Between one to two years —FEMFNA - 366,659
Between two to five years MEERFA 61,670 =

473,571 455,412
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40. BORROWINGS

41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

(CONTINUED)

(1) The amounts will be repayable by installment and in full on 17 April
2009; however the borrowings have been refinanced on 31 March
2009 with the proceeds arising from a new bank loan facility of
HK$430,000,000. The new loan facility is repayable by installment and
in full on 31 March 2012.

A B RARM A

BEENF+_A=Z+—BEFE

40. 88 (&)

(1) ZERASHEE XEAR_FTTA
FOA+LREBHER AWM ZE5E
%\EEAf:?jlfF A=+—H8#&
B ERTERBEMELE ZFER

T8 /A430,000, 000,% T FERTER
MEESHEERE WER-ZE——F=
A :Jrfa%%ﬁ( B

(2)  Repayable in full on 16 July 2009. () ZERZTTNFLATBEHER
(3) Repayable in full on 4 July 2009. ) BARZZEENFELANBAEHEE
(4)  Repayable on demand. (4) BiIEBIHEE-
(5)  Repayable in full on 28 February 2011. (5) EAR-E—F A=+ N\HEHE
As at the balance sheet date, the Group has the following undrawn REER AEB 2 ABAEEREN
borrowing facilities: e
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
LI —TTtE
FET FAT
Floating rate — expiring beyond one year FENRIE — S —F 14 5| HA 350,000 741,238
PROMISSORY NOTE 4. ZARE

The promissory note was issued as partial consideration for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of and shareholder’s
loan to Shenyang Limited through a 67.9% owned subsidiary of the
Group (note 53(d)). Shenyang Limited holds indirectly a 87% interest
in Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited (“Time Plaza”). The promissory note
was interest bearing at HIBOR plus 2% per annum and secured by the
Group's entire interest in the issued share capital of Shenyang Limited
and shareholders’ loan to Shengyang Limited and in turn, secured by
Shenyang Limited’'s 95% equity interest in Shenyang Hotel Holdings
Limited which holds the 92% equity interest in Time Plaza. Repayments
of HK$36,455,000 was made during the year. The outstanding principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 was due for settlement on 29 August 2008
but was further extended with the same terms and repayable on 31
March 2009. The outstanding principal amount has been fully repaid

after the balance sheet date.

RRBETARZE (ERBRREEE
B67.9% 1 &= 2 K /& A AW Shenyang
Limited® # 2 BITIRA R HEEMNRERE
A BHRAE (HF7E53(d)) o
Limited@#ZHF AR KES OF5) BRQ
Al ([RRES]) 287% R w  E H R iR
REBIRITRZEREZINFENERET R
W7 LA ZS & B 1A Shenyang Limited 2 217 %
RRAEMNBRER 2 2w (FEA
i A BB & 2 J5 bAShenyang Limited %
Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited 2 95% /%
A #E 25 {EHKF © Shenyang Hotel Holdings
Limited$#7 8 R (X B 592 % IR AN 45 » £ I
B 188 Z 518 /336,455,000/& 7T K EE
$$7o,ooo,ooo%ﬁﬁé:§;ﬁ/\¢/\ﬂ
TN BEIBEE  EERIBRIKEGE
BERE_TTNF=ZA=T—HEE-
AMERRSHENEERRTREER

Shenyang

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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42. CONSIDERATION NOTE 42.

The consideration note was issued as partial consideration for the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of and shareholder’s loan to
Shenyang Limited, through a 67.9% owned subsidiary of the Group
(note 53(d)). The consideration note was interest bearing at HIBOR plus

1% per annum, and was fully repaid during the year.

43. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY 43.

SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
except for a balance of HK$27,300,000 (2007: HK$27,300,000) carried

interest at a fixed rate of 7% per annum.

44. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 44,

The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan notes

for the year is set out below:

RERE

RRARBETRERE FREBREERE
B67.9% w2 i B A R U #EShenyang
Limited 2 &0 2 21T A ] B BT AR R B K
Z B RAE (MIFE53(d)) - RERBRE
BIRITREZEFRBMFNE—E L TR
FRNBBERER -

BANHERARDBRRAE

Bh—FEREEFMNETI%EZ
27,300,000 TSR (Z 2T L F -
27,300,000/ 7T ) FN * 25 5RIA T AR -
RERBRBHEE-

KRR E

THREREFRRBEZAEHIRAFEZE
BEFIT

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENE —EELEF

FER FHIT

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year R F ] Z BREE 554,215 810,026
Interest charge (Note 9) FMEREZ (H:E9) 51,866 61,857
Interest paid BAFE (12,846) (16,056)
Conversion into shares HRRH - (301,612)
Carrying amount at the end of the year REKR ZREE 593,235 554,215
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44. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company issued
convertible notes of nominal value amounting to HK$1,000,000,000
(the “Notes”). The Notes carried interest at 2% per annum and are
repayable on 7 June 2011 (the “Maturity Date”). China Enterprises
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, subscribed for the

notes of nominal value amounting to HK$300,000,000 by cash.

The initial conversion price of the Notes is HK$0.79 per share and
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments. Unless converted or lapsed or
redeemed by the Company, the Company will redeem the Notes on
the Maturity Date at the redemption amount which is 110% of the

principal amount of the Notes outstanding.

Each of the noteholders shall have the right to convert, on any business
day commencing from the 7th day after the date of issue of the Notes
up to and including the date which is 7 days prior to the Maturity
Date, the whole or any part (in an amount or integral multiple of
HK$1,000,000) of the principal amount of the Notes into the shares of

the Company at the then prevailing conversion price.

44 TR EE (&)

BE_ZTZRFT_A=+—HILFE"
N1 B %47 E {E3#1,000,000,0007% 7T 2
HRRER([ZEER]) ZERRRR
FRER2EHBITER_E——F At
BTEMRBDER-AARZEERR
China Enterprises LimitedJA38 & R B EE
#£300,000,000/8 T 2 ZE R & -

ZERB 2T A RERBHA0.798
TERAE REEEHE - AR BHERHR
FREOeHE (MRERBRAEETESS
B2110% ) BOZERE BB
KA H AR EE @ BIRR S

EEBRAEABEENZERRETA
HESFE+ARZEHMANtE (B
ZB)MMZEMEEASH EER
ZHRITHBRE H2MPREMIBS (M
1,000,000 73 H e B #R B ML) 2 7%
SERAGCETE HMABRARZRNG
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44. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED) 44 TR EE (&)

Subject to certain restrictions which are intended to facilitate
compliance of relevant rules and regulations, each noteholder shall
have the right to exchange from time to time all or part (in the amount
of HK$10,000,000 or integral multiples thereof) of 50% of the initial
principal amount of its Notes for shares in the share capital of any
company which is an affiliated company as defined in Rule 13.11(2)(a)
of the Listing Rules or subsidiary of the Company that is to be listed
on the Stock Exchange through an initial public offering at the price
(the “Spin-off Shares”), subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, at which
the Spin-off Shares are actually issued to the public at the time of the
listing on that stock exchange. The decision on whether to list any of its
affiliated company or subsidiary in the future is at the sole discretion of

the directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, Notes with nominal value
amounting to HK$360,000,000 were converted into 455,696,195
shares in the Company of HK$0.10 each at a conversion price of
HK$0.79 per share. In July 2008, the conversion price was reduced from
HK$0.79 per share to HK$0.339 per share as a result of rights issue of
shares of the Company (note 46). No Notes were converted during the

year ended 31 December 2008.

The convertible notes were split between the liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible notes reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 9.35% (2007: 9.35%) per annum.
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45. DEFERRED TAXATION
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45,

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised

and movement thereon during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

i FE B IR
UFARAFERBEFEERRZEE
EEBHEAE (AE)  UREWZE

tax Fair value of
depreciation properties
on hotel on business
properties combination Tax losses Other Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REBA K
BENEZ nEZ
MERBHE AFEE BEER Hits @it
FaT FAT FAT Fin FAT
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEELE-Hf—-H 250,179 - - = 250,179
Currency realignment EHHE 11,989 = = - 11,989
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ YUEHE R A 5,500 = = = 5,500
Effect of change in the PRC  FEGCEMAEHH LS
Enterprise Income Tax rate < %& (50,273) - - - (50,273)
Charge to the consolidated & & WX
income statement (Kt&E12)
(note 12) 2,707 - - - 2,707
At 31 December 2007 RZET+F
+=A=1+-A 220,102 - - = 220,102
Currency realignment SEAE 11,111 = = - 1,111
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEHEAT - 1,19 - - 1,194
Effect of change BEFIGHH L2
in Hong Kong Profits 2 |
Tax rate (3,370) - - - (3,370)
Charge (credit) to the RiRE WaERINR
consolidated income (Gt A) (HiEE12)
statement (note 12) 1,777 - (1,802) 4,472 4,447
At 31 December 2008 RZBENF
t+=ZA=1+-H 229,620 1,194 (1,802) 4,472 233,484

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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45. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 45 EFEFRIE (&)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses subject to
the agreement of tax authorities of approximately HK$714,206,000
(2007: HK$717,886,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$7,209,000
(2007: Nil) of such loss, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$706,997,000 (2007: HK$717,886,000)
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$95,182,000 (2007: HK$129,147,000) can
be carried for a period of five years. The losses arising from overseas
subsidiaries are insignificant, which will expire after a specific period of

time. Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled.
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46. SHARE CAPITAL 46. IR A<
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
RHEE &8
FET
Authorised EE
Shares of HK$0.10 each RZZETLF-—A—RAK

at 1 January 2007 and —EEEF+A=+—H

31 December 2007 SR MEE0.10/8 T 2 B 1D 15,000,000,000 1,500,000
Subdivision of shares Bt 7 #r 135,000,000,000 -
Shares of HK$0.01 each R-_ZEZEN\F+_A=+—H

at 31 December 2008 SRREE0.01B T2 H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000

Issued and fully paid EERTRAR
Shares of HK$0.10 each R-_ZEZE+F—H—H

at 1 January 2007 SREE0.10B T2 BRH 610,586,108 61,059
Issue of shares BITRAD 750,000,000 75,000
Exercise of share options T BB AR i 4,285,000 428
Conversion into shares from Notes ZERBER BB (KMizE44)

(note 44) 455,696,195 45,570
Issue of shares on scrip dividend AR B 81T % 191,217 19
Shares of HK$0.10 each RZZEZELF+-A=+—H

at 31 December 2007 SREME0.10E T2k H 1,820,758,520 182,076
Issue of shares on scrip dividend PAREAR BB 1TRR 3,210,227 321
Reduction in share capital Bl Sk A& A = (164,157)
Issue of shares on subscription of R IR IATAR D

rights issue 7,295,874,988 72,959
Issue of shares on exercise of warrants TR RARAEE R B TAR D 200 -
Shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZEZNF+ZA=1+—H

31 December 2008 SREME0.01E TG 9,119,843,935 91,199

;-)- 2008 3 - KEHRBE (2R) BRA T
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46. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

In May and June 2007, the Company entered into placing agreements
with Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston Securities”) pursuant
to which Kingston Securities conditionally agreed to place up to
450,000,000 shares (the “Placing Shares”) in the Company at a price
of HK$0.80 per share to independent investors. The placing of the
first tranche of 120,000,000 shares was completed on 31 May 2007
and the remainder of 330,000,000 shares was completed on 6 August
2007.

In November 2007, the Company entered into another placing
agreement with Kingston Securities pursuant to which Kingston
Securities conditionally agreed to place up to 300,000,000 shares in the
Company at a price of HK$0.40 per share to independent investors. The

placing was completed on 12 December 2007.

In order to facilitate the rights issue of shares, the Company conducted
a capital reorganisation in July 2008 (“Capital Reorganisation”) which
involved (i) the subdivision of every share of HK$0.10 each in the
authorised but unissued share capital of the Company into 10 new
shares of HK$0.01 each (“New Shares”) resulting in an authorised
share capital of 150,000,000,000 New Shares; and (ii) the reduction
of the nominal value of the then issued share capital of the Company
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancelling an equivalent amount of paid-
up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 per then issued share such that
the then issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the sum
of approximately HK$164,157,000 for transfer to the special reserve.
Approximately HK$158,144,000 of such amount was then applied to

set off fully against the accumulated losses of the Company.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Company then issued and allotted 7,295,874,988 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to the qualifying shareholders pursuant
to the rights issue on the basis of four rights shares (with bonus
warrants in the proportion of one bonus warrant for every four rights
shares subscribed) for every share currently held (the “Rights Issue”)
at a subscription price of HK$0.06 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$421 million was used as general working capital of
the Group. Details of the Capital Reorganisation and the Rights Issue
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 7 July 2008.

The new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then

existing shares.

WARRANTS

Pursuant to the Rights Issue as detailed in note 46, the Company has
issued 1,823,968,747 warrants on 1 August 2008 to the subscribers
of the rights shares conferring the rights to the holders thereof to
subscribe in cash for 1,823,968,747 New Shares of the Company at
an initial exercise price of HK$0.091 per share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment) at any time during the period from 1 August 2008 to 29
January 2010.

At 31 December 2008, the Company had outstanding 1,823,968,547
warrants and their exercise in full would result in the issuance of

1,823,968,547 New Shares.

The subscription rights attaching to the warrants are measured at fair
value of approximately HK$30,201,000 on initial recognition and are

recognised in equity in the warrant reserve.

46.

47.
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BEENF+_A=Z+—BEFE
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ARABHBRBEMR LS R.06%8
T2 RBEREEERER T RS
7,295,874,988% & AX E {E0.01/8 T 2 &
BR - EXELSERERE —RRMDER
MR AR AR 1 GERALF RRAEE RS
B O A £ AR PR ) 2 B — 1 AL A SR X A
B2 ) ([HAR]) - RIEFEL
421,000,000/ T2 AEAREE 2 — R
BES RASHERERZFBHNAR
AERA-ZTEENFELALAZHRER
A o

i&;
4

AR5
%1% o

%

ENHEERZRERNZF

af
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&

R R

RIRMT FA6FTRE L2 A% - KARBERZ
ZENFENA— B RHKRRGDRIEARE
171,823,968,74717 RMNERE - 5 FRARIE
B THSAAREN TR-_ZTNAFN
A—BZEZZT—ZTH&—A=-+NHIH
e AR AT 5 A - A B HR0.0918 Tt 2 9125
TEE (ENREERAR) LR SRE
1,823,968,747 I8 A8 R BT AR (5 ©

RZZTENF+—A=+—H KQAH
1,823,968,54717 i R1T 15 2 RHXHERS - e
BB BT 15 8 B35 171,823,968,54 7%
AR ©

RIHERE I 2 RIBER VIS HEREIZ A

F{E{E4930,201,00078 LT 2 * W R
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47. WARRANTS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the warrants issued during the year was calculated
using the Trinominal Option Pricing model performed by Norton
Appraisals, independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Norton Appraisals have necessary qualifications and
recent experiences to perform the valuation of warrants. The inputs into

the model were as follows:

Date of issue 1 August 2008
Share price HK$0.062
Exercise price HK$0.091
Time to maturity 1.5 years
Expected volatility 79.028%
Expected dividend yield Nil

Risk free rate 2.352%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the

warrants are based on the management’s best estimate.
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48. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was
approved and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May
2002, enabling the directors to grant options to employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries)
and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as incentives
and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such subsidiaries.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes, shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of approval and adoption of the
Scheme (the “General Limit”). The Company proposed to refresh the
General Limit so that the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as
"refreshed”. The refreshment of the General Limit was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting held on 27
May 2005, 19 May 2006 and 23 May 2008. The Scheme is valid and

effective for a period of 10 years after the date of adoption.

48. B HESHE
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48. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 48. BB ESTE (&)

In the general meeting held on 19 May 2006, the shareholders of
the Company has approved that the existing scheme General Limit
in respect of the granting of options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (“Shares”) under the Scheme be refreshed and renewed
provided that the total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the Scheme) must not exceed 10% of the ordinary shares in issue as at
the date of approval of such refreshment of the General Limit (subject
to adjustment for consolidation and sub-division of share subsequent
to that date) and that any director be authorised to do all such acts and

execute such document to effect the refreshed General Limit.

At 31 December 2008, all outstanding share options were lapsed. At
31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
46,685,000, representing 2.6% of the Shares in issue at that date.
Option granted must be taken up within 30 days of the date of offer.
The consideration payable for the option is HK$1. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of acceptance of the share option to
such date as determined by the board of directors but in any event not
exceeding 10 years. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company and will not be less than the higher of (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, (i) the closing price of the shares on the

date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.
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48. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 48. B AERT & (®)
Details of options granted and a summary of the movements of the ZATEIRNAEREFERE 2 BREZFIE
outstanding options under the Scheme during the current and prior REARITEERECZHHE0T
years are as follows:
Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding
asat
Outstanding 31 December Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed 2007 and Lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during 1 January during 31 December price  Date
Eligible participant 2007 the year the year 2008 the year 2008 per share  of grant Exercisable period
(Note 4) HK$  (Note 1) (Note 2)
Ro22LE
+=A
=+-8EK RZZENE
R-BRLE “BRNE t=A
-A-H -A-H Er=
RERSEAL HATHE  RERTE  REAXN HATRE  REREN HATE SROKE HEAH  HED
(fftzta) B (HsE) (MzE2)
Director
£
Mr. Yu Kam Kee, Lawrence (resigned on
1 December 2007) 4,000,000 = (4,000,000 = = = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006-21.6.2008
ARERE (KRBTt
TZA-REf)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 4,000,000 = = 4,000,000 (4,000,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
REREE
Dr. Yap, Allan 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 (4,000,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
Yap, Allanfg £
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000 (1,500,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
REFLE
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 4,600,000 (1,000,000) - 3,600,000 (3,600,000) - 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
AkREE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 (250,000) = 250,000 (250,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
BEIEE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai (resigned on 27 March
2007 and appointed on
28 January 2008) 500,000 - (500,000) - - - 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
(R=BZTLE=A-TLHEE
YRZFENE-A=TNR
BZAf)
Employees 30,480,000 (1,895,000)  (2,650,000) 25935000  (25935,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
&
Other eligible participants (Note 3) 9,100,000 (1,140,000) (560,000) 7,400,000 (7,400,000) = 0728 2262006  22.6.2006 - 21.6.2008
HMSERSEAL (H7E3)
58,680,000 (4,285,000 (7,710,000 46,685,000  (46,685,000) -
Exercisable at year end 46,685,000 -
RELA{TEE

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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48. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

49. RES

The s

value

On 22 June 2006, a total of 58,880,000 share options were granted.
The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the
date of grant (as of 21 June 2006) was HK$0.72.

The options are to vest as follows:

Up to a maximum of 50% of the options are exercisable during the
first year of the option period commencing from 22 June 2006 to 21
June 2007. The balance of the 50% of the options not yet exercised
in the first year and the other 50% could be exercised in the second
year commencing from 22 June 2007 to 21 June 2008. There was
no share options that are outstanding at 31 December 2008 (2007:
46,685,000).

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately nil for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$2,924,000) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

Other eligible participants represent individuals who render personal
services to the subsidiaries and the services rendered are similar to
those rendered by employees.

The weighted average closing prices of the shares of the Company
immediately before and on the dates on which the share options were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2007 were ranged
from HK$0.85 to HK$0.93.

ERVES

pecial reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal

of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value

of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the

group reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction of share

capital took place during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 31
December 2008.
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50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

51.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which principally
includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 37, 40, 43 and 44 (net of
cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and

other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a quarterly
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt

or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

51a. Categories of financial instruments

A B RARM A

—EEANFT_AZ+—BEEE

50. EXRERER

51.

AEBZEAEREHBBEEGEER
BEHREFE  BEAKE 2 ERUR
BREZH MABRRMEZADER K
SEERRKEEFHER-

AREEZEAEREZOEERTFE (2
EEE (R HMFE37 40 - 43R44FTH FE)
HBRRe RN FHEED) RAQAIRE
BEARGER (BEEEHTRE -RE
A R E AL A ) o

ARAEZSEFRIEARRE M2
— MO REEEBEARANRERERH
i 2 B - ARE SR BIRERS
TEkG BERD  BEITHEBHED
RAEBRBEL N HEBERRBIEL T

€@MIA
51a. @ T A& Al

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—seNF —eTiE
FET FHIT
Financial assets SREE
FVTPL FRERRATEENE
— Investment held for trading —RBEEEZRE 10,190 27,531
— Derivative financial instruments —THEEMmT A - 5,972
Loans and receivables (including cash and B & EWEER (BFERE R
cash equivalents) REFMEEE) 924,310 815,036
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 162,984 249,992
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost B 1,914,457 1,832,367
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amounts due
from/to related companies, amounts due from associates, trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, loans from related
companies, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, borrowings, promissory note, consideration
note, amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and
convertible notes. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to

market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 10.3% of the Group's sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entity that making the sale, whilst

almost 96.0% of costs are denominated in the Group

entity’s functional currency.
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NCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the

51. 2T H @)
51b. M EMEEAEREEK

(%)

o5 B e (47)

s

B (47)

=3
=5
13

i &Y

AEBUINEFEZEBEE
RE¥AERHER ZREE

reporting date are as follows: PONNE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2ENF —ETEF
FExT T
Assets &E
United States dollars = 5,185 14,806
Renminbi AR 400 1,589
Liabilities =i
United States dollars ETT 209,416 216,009
Australian dollars JRIT 10,567 13,519
Euro BT 1,758 7,196
Renminbi AR 6,319 6,418

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure by closely monitoring the movement of
foreign currency rate and will enter into foreign currency

options or forward contract, when and where appropriate.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s major
foreign currency transaction is mainly in the United States
dollars. The Group’s sensitivity to the change in the foreign
exchange rate is low as the functional currency of the
relevant group entities is Hong Kong dollars which is pegged

with United States dollars.

N5 B IR I8 B R SNE 2
BUR - AT - B EBEBEYE
RHNKIE R 2 B E) - L HME
BRETEE TEEER
ETE@\\MEH%%&%%%’%

EERR/AEE 2T RINER
HRER D AKTTEHE - B4R
AEEERCERR SEX

TLEN 2 BT A B E
KB HRERE-
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EENF+ A=+ —BLEFR

(CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate loan receivables, loans to/from
related companies, borrowings, promissory note and
consideration note (see notes 29, 30, 37, 40, 41 and 42
for details of these borrowings). The Group also have fixed
interest rate financial assets and liabilities which exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. It is the Group's policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates risk on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For variable-rate
financial assets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of assets and liabilities outstanding at
the balance sheet date were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 December 2008 would increase/decrease
by HK$3,430,000 (2007: profit for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$4,303,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank

borrowings.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during
the current year mainly due to the decrease in variable rate

debt instruments.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities and derivative financial
instruments. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group's other price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the Stock

Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date for

the held-for-trading investments.

51. €@t T B (@)
51b. AR EE B ERBER

(#8)

W3 B (47)

(i) RAREAERR ()
RRE DT (%)

= 38 T /B50ME S
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AEEEE_TTN\FE+=A
=t ALFEZEEESE
i,/ 43,430,000/ T (=&
T AFREBNRD
1n4,303,000/%7T) - EZRE
AAEEAEHLZERITEE
2 FIE @R

MAZEEE T ERD A
£ B AR E SR 2 RS
Tike
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)  Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31 December
2008 would be decreased/increased by HK$510,000
(2007: profit for the year would be increased/decreased by
HK$1,675,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of

held-for-trading investments.

The Group's sensitivity to held-for-trading investments has
been decreased from the prior year due to the decrease in

held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2008 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with

good credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, and
amounts due from associates which are with several of the
Group's associates, and save as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group does not have any

other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liguidity risk

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and going concern of the Group in light of the fact of
the Group's loss of approximately HK$832,913,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets of approximately HK$459,041,000 at 31 December
2008. The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future, after
taking into consideration the credit facilities granted by one of
the Group's bankers in March 2009 for refinancing borrowings
with maturity of more than one year of HK$430,000,000 as well
as other undrawn borrowing facilities of HK$770,000,000 at 31
December 2008.

51. €@t T B (@)
51b. AR EE B ERBER

(&)
1z BB & (4)

R ERTT 17 X S SR 1T 48 BT DA
BRIFEEFRZERT FHZER
B EERBRBRBBRE-

KREERRETRERNRZRES
SEEFRZBITZRDES RE
WAREEZ RE 2R R KB K
Bira M mREMIBOMKES
S REBEYEBEMBEREN ZEE
Efz o

B AL R

ERBREMBRER ERAE
ERBE_TENF+_A=1+—
H IE 4 & 8% 15 &5 #5 49832,913,000
BT MABBEBER-ZTTNEF
TZA=Z+-BZRARBEED
459,041,000 7T R AR EEE &
HEERAEEZ RRRDE € ks
BRI - AARIEERE A%
B AEEANBEERABLER
ARERIPZHMBEE EFE
ZERIBBA—FRZEERR
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account of the internally generated funds of the Group
and the presently available borrowing facilities, the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the next
twelve months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity, in the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. For non-

derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based

on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on

the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. The

table includes both undiscounted cash flows and principal cash

BRI A e
51b. M EMEEAEREEK

(&)
R E 2R ()

TERBEAEEFTESRARLZ
RpBWFHMFB -IFITESHA
RS - BRSIRIIRENRAKE R
ERERARCREEHZERE
BERMBERERERHE - TREARK
MARERELRTIBRSRE

flows.

Weighted Total Carrying
average undiscounted amount at
effective Less than 1-2 2-5 cash balance

interest rate 1year years years flows sheet date
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KRR
R HEeRE REER
BRAE -FRr -5EZmE WEZRF ok ZEEE
% TAT THET T THET FHET
2008 i3 J1%-3
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR = 420,881 = = 420,881 420,881
Loans from related companies BENRER 10.32 208,484 - - 208,484 188,981
Amounts due to associates JEATHE R R A - 10,075 - - 10,075 10,075
Amounts due to related companies EREERRRE - 51,627 - - 51,627 51,627
Amount due to a jointly FEfF — R AR
controlled entity ERENR - 920 - - 920 920
Borrowings EHE 3.05 424,468 - 66,903 491,371 473,571
Promissory note ETES 3.50 70,554 - - 70,554 70,000
Amounts due to minority shareholders — FETHT/E A ] D E AR R
of subsidiaries HIE 7.00 105,167 = = 105,167 105,167
Convertible notes AMARER 2.00 12,800 12,800 709,541 735,141 593,235
1,304,976 12,800 776,444 2,094,220 1,914,457
2007 BRLE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER - 251,641 - - 251,641 251,641
Loans from related companies BEAFER 7.30 297,269 = = 297,269 277,045
Amounts due to associates JEATERE AR FUE - 12,749 - - 12,749 12,749
Amounts due to related companies [EfTEE R A - 54,544 - - 54,544 54,544
Borrowings B8 6.00 94,078 411,978 = 506,056 455,412
Promissory note EEER 6.80 113,694 - - 113,694 106,455
Consideration note RERE 5.80 22,795 - - 22,795 21,545
Amounts due to minority shareholders — FETFT/E A ] DB R
of subsidiaries I 7.00 98,761 = = 98,761 98,761
Convertible notes AARER 2.00 12,800 12,800 722,341 747,941 554,215
958,331 424,778 722,341 2,105,450 1,832,367

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

51b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current market transactions

as input.
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

154 Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -%1

51. €@ T B (»)
51b. M EMEEAEREEK

(&)

B AR (47)
ERMEENEREBEZATEEE
hap N

o RIBEGRRGHRE RNE
BRBMEXFIZERMEEL

FEBELSETERESE
4

H} D»

e HMEpEERSMABBZA
FEERAREEER AT
HMENTISR ZERIFIEE
RBABETIIERERED
W E °

BEER & B TGRSR A2 3H A
A HeMEERERAR
ZERHEEENTFEEES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

52. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

As described in note 34, the Group disposed of its 100%
interest in EM XK IR AR AR at a consideration of
approximately HK$37,000,000 in January 2008. The net assets at

the date of disposal were as follows:

52. HEME A 7

(a)

MKt EE34pTI REBR TN
F—AHEHEREMKXKE KR
BBERRABNO%EZ  REHA
37,000,000/ 7T ° IR & B #i 2 BB
SFET

31.1.2008
HK$'000
—EENF
—B=t-8
T
Goodwill [k 35,922
Property, plant and equipment Y HeS KRB 538
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b EURBR FX 18,491
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIAS 363
Trade and other payables B 5 &k EAMERRIK (21,019)
Amount due to the Group B AR EEFIE (24)
Net assets disposed of FrTHEzEEFE 34,271
Gain on disposal &z s 2,729
Total consideration BRE 37,000
Satisfied by: XA
Deposit received in 2007 ERZZEZLFWRMZE] € 3,500
Consideration receivables FEM KB 33,500
37,000
Cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEAZRESMT
Bank balances and cash disposed of & 2 RTE#B KRS (363)

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —EEZNF+_H =+—0LFHE

52. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 52. HEMEB AT (&)

(b) As described in note 34, the Group disposed of its 100% (b) EARFE34PTIHL - AR R EHE ERNE L
interest of its online booking exchange platform business for a AR 5T A EB100% e - RE
consideration of approximately HK$37,000,000. The net assets at 49/37,000,0008 - R E R Z
the date of disposal were as follows: BESFENT:

30.4.2008

HK$'000

—EENF

A=+H

FHT

Goodwill Bk 37,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H eI AR X 305
Amount due from the Group U A S E SR I8 10
Trade and other payables E 5 & H e AR K (315)
Net assets disposed of and total consideration ~ FTH & 2 & EFERENKE 37,000

Satisfied by: AR

Consideration receivables FEWR (B 37,000
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52. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

The Group disposed of its approximately 56.91% interest

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

in Triumph Up Investments Limited at a consideration of

approximately HK$252,789,000 in May 2007. The net assets of

Triumph Up Investments Limited at the date of disposal were as

follows:

52. HEMEB AT (®)
R-F

(0

EEANFT A=+ —8LEFA

& E THERANY
252,789,000/ 7T 2 (8 & Triumph
Up Investments Limited4756.91%#E
z ° Triumph Up Investments Limited

REEERAZEEFENT

31.5.2007

HK$'000

—ETtHF

FA=+—A

FHTT

Interest in associates REEE N T 2 RS 204,351
Trade and other receivables E 5 Kk E A e W ER K 6,161
Amounts due from associates JE Wi Bk &8 X R FRIB 84,419
Amounts due to associates JE B8 & A R SRR (170)
Net assets disposed of FrItE 2 BEFE 294,761
Minority interests D BUR R M A (124,237)
Gain on disposal & 2 as 82,265
Total consideration BRE 252,789

Satisfied by: SENVEE

Cash B 226,100
Other receivable H e U IR R 895
Deposit received B Wiz e 25,794
252,789

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEAZRSRAFE 226,100
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

52. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

52. HEME A3 (5)

(d) The Group disposed of its 100% interest in Wing On Air Services d) AEBER=ZZ+HF+ ALA100,000
Ltd at a consideration of HK$100,000 in October 2007. The net 77T 2 1B HE Wing On Air Services
assets of Wing On Air Services Ltd at the date of disposal were as Ltd 100%## % ° Wing On Air Services
follows: AR HEE R 2 EEFEB T :

22.10.2007
HK$'000
—EELF
+A=+=H
FHT

Net assets disposed of: Fr & BEFE:
Trade and other receivables 2 5 K HAth FE YR R 387
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E MR ERER (13)
374
Loss on disposal & 2B (274)
Total consideration BRE 100

Satisfied by: SENV R

Cash Re 100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEE RS RAFE 100

The impact of these dispositions on the Group's result and cash

flow in the current and prior period was insignificant.

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Business acquisition:

HEHEHAKBER AR RATHE 2%
BRREREZTZELITEKN

53. W BB 2 &
ES G R

(@ In December 2008, the Group acquired a further 18.4% interest

in the issued share capital of Sino USA, a then 48% owned

associate of the Group for a consideration of HK$5,000,000

and Sino USA then became a 66.4% owned subsidiary of the

Group. Sino USA is engaged in travel and related services. This

transaction has been accounted for using the purchase method of

accounting.
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53. WEE KB A 7] ()
SIS ()

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

ZERGPRBEzEEFENRA

The net assets acquired in the transaction and the discount on

acquisition are as follows: WHSMEE 2 FrEET
Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value
amount before Fair value on
combination adjustments acquisition
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=]
WUEE A = Ui B B 2
ZREE AT EEHAE AFEEE
FHET FHT FHT
Property, plant and equipment ER Y& 53,266 4,776 58,042
Investment deposits and SR e REMEE
other assets 4,097 - 4,097
Inventories FE 72 - 72
Amounts due from related JE W 8 2 A B 5K IR
companies 114 - 114
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A YRR 310 = 310
Bank balances and cash RITEBR KRR ® 62 = 62
Trade and other payables E%&ﬁ{ﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬁ%’\ (9,232) = (9,232)
Amounts due to related JEfTRAE A RI5RIA
companies (9,365) - (9,365)
Taxation payable eS8 T IR (1,697) = (1,697)
Deferred tax EIET IR - (1,194) (1,194)
Net assets acquired FTBAEEFE 37,627 3,582 41,209
Minority interests & %(Hx%fﬁL’ (13,838)
Reclassify from the Group's NS N o 3
interests in associates ER ik | (18,061)
Reclassify from the Group's other N5 Bl 2 E fh ST B =
intangible assets Eiivor | (2,430)
Asset revaluation reserve BEEHEE (1,719)
Discount on acquisition of B8 Sino USA #2252 I8
additional interest in Sino USA (161)
Total consideration, BRE AR
satisfied by cash 5,000
Net cash outflow arising on WREFTEE 2 B 7t 558 -
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BEfEEeRE (5,000)
Bank balances and FTEEAZ IRITHEBRRE
cash acquired 62
(4,938)
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B R R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

(b)

Sino USA contributed approximately HK$197,000 to the Group's
revenue and contributed approximately HK$1,089,000 to the
Group's loss before tax for the period between the date of

acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2008, total
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$2,220,093,000, and the loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$898,186,000 . The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposed only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of future

results.

On 31 May 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
acquired a 51% interest in Sichuan Henxin for a consideration
of approximately HK$17,500,000. Sichuan Henxin is engaged in
travel agency business and this acquisition has been accounted for

using the purchase method.
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53. WEE KB A 7] ()
SIS ()

RUEE B HIR E 45 B 1FHR - Sino
USASIARNEE B 2 Was MR B RTET1E
Al & Bk 197,000 7T X 1,089,000

FBITe

HWEEEER =TT \F—A—A
SERk - RIS BRANFEE 2 2 1
#9/2,220,093,0007% 7T+ A& F &
&5 18 A1/ 49 5898,186,000/8 L - &
ERHEHEIMAR  WARNAEE
REESESBEE—TEN\F—A—B%
B2 B0 T B R B AT RS 2 s &
SRR NTRTEHRAR R 2 48

RZZEZTLFRA=+—H ~5E
BR—HE2EKEARREMIE
1551%# % - (KB XY 417,500,000/
7o M) IMBE1E BRI TAE 75 - i Uk
BHWEERABEREEAK:.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

The net assets acquired in these transactions, and the then

goodwill arising, were as follows:

53. WEE KB A 7] ()

EUE: ()

ZERGPHBBZEEFENRE
RrRWBEmMEL 2EMNT

Amount
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - #eS KRB 762
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & H KR 337
Bank balances and cash RITRBRRIE S 708
Trade and other payables B 5 & H At FE T BR K (245)
Net assets acquired T AEEFE 1,562
Minority interests DB R (767)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEFTEE 22 16,705
17,500
Satisfied by: XA

Cash RE 2,000
Investment deposits KE® 15,500
17,500

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEPTE £ 2R & B F 5
Cash consideration paid ENBRERE 2,000
Bank balances and cash acquired I AZRITEKRRIB R (708)
1,292

Goodwill arose in the business combination because the
consideration paid effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth and future market

development.

HRERIXNZRECEERES
R E - eI & KRR 53 R
ZHsEZ 2 BREFAHPEL

IR

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

()

On 30 June 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
acquired 100% interest in BN KK ERREBRAA for a
consideration of approximately HK$35,000,000 and incurred
transaction costs of HK$2,675,000. &M X % & ik AR %5 5 PR A &)
is engaged in travel agency business and this acquisition has been

accounted for using the purchase method.

53. WEEKM B AR (@)

EUE: ()

(0 RZZEZLFA=+H KEEE
B— 2 EH B D 7 W E MK K
R AR A R A RI100% S - (B
#97335,000,0008 7T - WEAERZ S
782,675,000 JT ° & M K £ 7 ik Al
BABA RN ERITHER - MitE

KEEHABEREEAR.
The net assets acquired in these transactions, and the then ZERGHMNB s EEFERE
goodwill arising, were as follows: RRKEMEEZEENT
Amount
HK$'000
ik}
FAT
Property, plant and equipment LJERR TS E e 195
Trade and other receivables B 5) & At FE AR X 1,013
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRE 1,412
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A FE - BR K (868)
Net assets acquired Frig A B EFE 1,752
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHE PTEE £ 2 P2 35,923
Cash consideration RERE 37,675
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEPTE £ 2R & B F 5
Cash consideration paid ERNRERE 35,000
Expenses incurred for the acquisition HUWEBATELE ZHX 2,675
Bank balances and cash acquired g A2 RITEMR LB © (1,412)
36,263

In December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement in
relation to the disposal of its 100% interest in & X & iR AR 75
BR 2] for a consideration of HK$37,000,000, details of which

are disclosed in notes 34 and 52a.
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53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

II‘Ii\

For the year ended 31 December 2008 7 %

On 15 August 2007, the Group, through its 67.9% subsidiary, (d)
acquired 100% of issued share capital of Shenyang Limited for a
consideration of HK$178,000,000 and incurred transaction costs
of HK$633,000. Shenyang Limited is engaged in hotel operation
business in the PRC and this acquisition has been accounted for
using the purchase method. The amount of discount arising as
a result of the acquisition was approximately HK$47,344,000.
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the discount on

Gk EEE:

—EEANFT_AZ+—BEEE

53. WEE KB A 7] ()
SIS ()

RZBZLFNATHB  AEEE
WEFEB67.9% M w2 B A FI
#8Shenyang Limited 100%E 317 %
A (B 178,000,000 7T 0 I &
A X 5 R Z8633,000/% 7T ° Shenyang
Limited A B N BB JE 4SS %55 - M
HIEWEEHAEEREEAK.
W BEEE & 2 TR £ ’EH) /A47,344,000

acquisition were as follows:

BT RARSTRE 2 EEFE

RIS 2 TR T
Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value
amount before Fair value on
combination adjustments acquisition
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=T
WU D & 13- 1534
ZRHEE AREEHAR AREE
FHT FHET FAT
Property, plant and equipment ER T Y& 199,811 27,367 227,178
Inventories FE 956 - 956
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A KR R 5,210 = 5,210
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEHR RS 17,536 = 17,536
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H M FER AR K (9,700) = (9,700)
Amount due to a minority & — Az D ER R R IE
shareholder (7,646) - (7,646)
Deferred tax EERIR - (5,500) (5,500)
Net assets acquired B AEEFE 206,167 21,867 228,034
Minority interests YRR E = (2,057)
Discount on acquisition of g ) =NC i
subsidiaries (47,344)
178,633
Satisfied by: TRAR:
Cash RHe 50,000
Expenses incurred HBERMEEZFHE
for the acquisition 633
Consideration note REZEE 21,545
Promissory note EGE 106,455
178,633
Net cash outflow arising on WHEMEL 2SR F8:
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BENRE&NKE 50,633
Bank balances and cash FTEEAZSRITEBR LIRS
acquired (17,536)
33,097
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53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Business acquisition: (Continued)

Shenyang Limited's property, plant and equipment include a hotel
property. At the time of preparing a circular to the shareholders
containing information on the acquisition, the Group has
appointed Norton Appraisals to perform a valuation of the hotel
property as of 30 April 2007, and the valuation was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties. Details of the valuation are disclosed in the circular
issued by the Company dated 23 July 2007. Upon completion
of the acquisition on 15 August 2007, the Group has appointed
another valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group to
assess the valuation of the property at 15 August 2007, which
was arrived at by reference to both market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties and income approach. Both Norton
Appraisals and Greater China Appraisal Limited are members
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. Both of them had come up

with a similar valuation of this hotel property.

Shenyang Limited is making loss in past years and the directors of
the Company believed that the Group has more bargaining power
to negotiate for a better consideration and resulting in a discount

on acquisition of the subsidiaries after reassessment.
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53. WEE M B 2 A ()
S BB ()

Shenyang LimitedZ ¥ 2% - # 23 & 3%
HERE—BEEYE - EREMRE
FEHGUWBEREAR 2 BEE - K
SEEZAETHEBTHER =T
+tEMA=TEHBEEMEETRH
B MEBGEDESZREUNES
RGBT REMEN  (AEFE
ERARRRZZTELFLAZT=
R BERAREE  WEEER =
TTHFNATRARERE  ANEE
ELRES—HAEMEETERR
AR (BAEETEMEZB IS
BREXMEEM R +FNA
THBRMEME mABEETE
2EHRUME X FERTIHRE
RIGATEESR - LB 5T 4 R
FEERAREAEBIEMES
BB MEEEER SEMETE
Rt REL Y EBE &R - ME
L ERMEZBEE Y ER 2 HER
3 o

Shenyang Limited? 81X 816 R X /&
B MARREFHEAEENER
FEBREREEEANEBREN I
REFEREERBENB AR Z
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 53. WHE & A 8] ()
Assets acquisition: BEWHE
(e) InJanuary 2008, the Group acquired 100% interest in More Star (e) MZZTTN\F—H  KEEYHEMore

Limited for a consideration of approximately HK$20 million. The

acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of assets as the

subsidiary acquired is not a business.

The assets acquired in this transaction were as follows:

Star Limited 100%# & - R BX &
20,000,000/ 7T © B3 A AT U 2 B B
RENIE—TEER - BULTEKEE A
RIIREENE-

ZBEXGRREZEEMT

Amount

HK$'000

28

FHET

Investment deposits KB ® 16,388

Other receivables H e AR 3K 12

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 3,600

Assets acquired and cash consideration B ANEENRERE 20,000

Satisfied by: XA

Considerations paid in prior period RTERSE 2 (R (B 20,000
Cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEELEZBRSRA:

Bank balances and cash acquired g A2 RITEB RIE & 3,600

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Assets acquisition: (Continued)

53. WEEKM B AR (@)

BEWE: (&)

(f)  On 28 August 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned )

subsidiary, acquired the entire issued share capital of Asia Times

Limited for a consideration of HK$70,000,000 and incurred

transaction costs of HK$6,706,000. This acquisition has been

accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities as the

subsidiary acquired is not a business.

The net assets acquired in these transactions are as follows:

RZFEZLFNAZ+NB X%
EEA—HE2EMMBATKEAs
Times LimitedZ® #p 2 2T A - (KB
/370,000,000 7T - f 2 4 32 5 B AR
6,706,000 7T ° B 7 AT W i 2 BT /B8
NRINFIE—IEER MU IBRER A
RIAEERBBRE-

ZEX SR E 2 EEFENT

Amount
HK$'000
&8
FET
Property, plant and equipment LZERR Y Ea i 980
Intangible assets B EE 78,250
Inventories FE 51
Amounts due from associates JE Bt & A R FRIE 472
Amounts due from related companies JE Wy B 3 N B FRIE 52
Trade and other receivables B 5 I A eI AR TR 939
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRIRE 1,408
Trade and other payables B 5 I H h FE T AR X (4,249)
Tax liabilities MIBEE (1,197)
Net assets acquired and cash consideration FriE AEEFERESRE 76,706
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEPTEE £ 2R & B F 5
Cash consideration paid BEIESRE 70,000
Expenses incurred for the acquisition HUWBATELE ZHX 6,706
Bank balances and cash acquired g A2 R1TER RIB © (1,408)
75,298
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 53. WEBFI B A 8 ()

Assets acquisition: (Continued) BEWRE: (B)

(9) On 13 September 2007, the Group through its 52.5% owned (9 RZTEZLFNA+=H F5%H
subsidiary, Enjoy Media Holdings Limited, completed the FBEBEES25%ER 2B QA
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Square Inn Hotel Enjoy Media Holdings Limited5E /X
Management Limited for a consideration of HK$30,000,000 and U B&Square Inn Hotel Management
incurred transaction costs of HK$5,263,000. This acquisition has Limited2HEETRA REAR
been accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities as the 30,000,000 7T * W 2 4 X 5 i A
subsidiary acquired is not a business. 5,263,000 7T o (7 7 BT U2 B8 2 B9 8

RANLIE—IRER B AREEA
FRIREENRBEBWE-

The net assets acquired in these transactions are as follows: ZEXGFAMIE s EEFENAT

Amount

HK$'000

-]

FET

Intangible assets EmREE 38,342

Other payables H b A BR X (3,079)

Net assets acquired and cash consideration B AEEFENRAEERE 35,263
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: We BB PR EE 2 2 3R & i HH R #E

Cash consideration paid ERRENRE 30,000

Expense incurred for the acquisition HUEBEE 2R 5,263

35,263
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ A =+—H L5 &

53. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 53. WEBKI B AR (@)

Assets acquisition: (Continued) BEWE: (B)

(h) On 15 November 2007, the Company, through its wholly hy R-ZEE+F+—A+HH K&
owned subsidiary, Fortune Up International Limited, completed % — A 2 & M8 A FlFortune
the share subscription representing a 72% of the enlarged Up International Limited5e X 52 5 %
share capital of Tangula Group Limited for a consideration of 5 (48 & M Tangula Group Limited
approximately HK$412,011,000 and incurred transaction costs BIEBABREKTI2% )  REH A
of HK$36,649,000. This acquisition has been accounted for as 412,011,000 7T I & A R 5 KA
acquisition of assets and liabilities as the subsidiary acquired is not 36,649,000/ 7T, « R FT UL 8 2 BT /&8
a business. NRNCIE—IRETS - BULTEKEE A

RIREERABERE-

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows: ZER P E 2 EEFENT
Amount

HK$'000

k]

FHT

Property, plant and equipment Y - HeS KRB 301,259
Intangible assets mREE 352,302
Other financial assets HMemEE 2,185
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—RHERZEHEE 2 KRE 6,979
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E At FE YR 3K 247
Bank balances and cash RITRBRKRIE S 4,657
Amounts due to minority shareholders JEAS D HPG R FRIA (99,484)
Other borrowings HEEE (290,702)
Other payables o FE T BR AR (66,319)
Net assets acquired Frig A B EFE 211,124
Share subscription proceeds from the Group REE 2 (R 7 R 15 5/ 18 412,011
Minority interests DB R (174,475)
448,660

Net cash outflow arising acquisition: WHEPTE £ 2R & B F 5 :

Expenses incurred for the acquisition HUEBATELE ZHAX 36,649
Bank balances and cash acquired g A2 R1T4ER RIB € (4,657)
31,992
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Assets acquisition: (Continued)

0

In December, 2007, the Group, through a wholly owned
subsidiary, acquired 100% interest in Dinna Capital Limited for a
consideration of HK$36,000,000 and incurred transaction costs
of HK$4,000,000. This acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets and liabilities as the subsidiary acquired is not

a business.

The net assets acquired in this transaction are as follows:

53. WEEKI B AR (@)

BEWE: (8&)

i) RZETEF+ZA A5EEE
B—RH2ENEB AR KEDINNa
Capital Limited 100% %5 R{E A
36,000,000/ 7T+ I & 4 32 5 A AR
4,000,000/ JT © B3 B4 AT W i 2 BT /B8
NRINFIE—IBER  BULIBRER A
R AEERBBRE-

ZEX RN E c EEFENT

Amount

HK$'000

K]

FHIT

Investment property REWE 174,938

Property, plant and equipment Vs R R 193

Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 13,237

Trade and other payables B 5 NE AR (500)

Amounts due to related companies FET BAE A Rl RIE (147,868)

Net assets acquired Frig A B EFE 40,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEFTEE 2R & m L F58E

Cash consideration paid ERRENRE 40,000

Bank balances and cash acquired FTRBE A ZSRITHEBR IR S (13,237)

26,763

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2007 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Norton Appraisals. Norton Appraisals
has recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to

market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

AEEREVER_ZTZLF+ A
=t —BZAFEENREEZREEFG
Rz BT HEETE - ERERA G R
TBHERRLRBEUYREE &R -
BRBENE2ZRUNEZXHERT
HIBEER

;-)- 2008 3 - KB (2R) BRA T
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54. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as otherwise disclosed, the Group entered into the following major

non-cash transactions:

@)

(ii)

(iif)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangement in respect of assets with a total
capital value at the inception of lease of HK$791,000 (2007:
HK$250,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group purchased
construction in progress of approximately HK$214,422,000. Such
amount is outstanding and is included in other payables at 31

December 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group acquired
30,000,000 common stock of Sino USA. The consideration was
satisfied by amount due from an associate of HK$30,000,000 and
loan receivables of HK$7,000,000 respectively.
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BRATHEI ARG ETTIEKRIFE

REeXH:

()

(ii)

(iif)

RBE-_ZZ/\F+-A=+—H

FE AEERSEEEYHE
ML ZEEERBHFBRZEE
B R791,0008 7T (Z T L5
250,000 7T ) °

F,

RBEZZZNF+_A=+—
BIEFE RXEEBAERIREY
214,422,000/8 7T - A B & 5 i K
BE Wi ARZZTZENF+=A
=t—BZHEMEMERR.

RBE_ZTT+HF+_A=+—
HIEFE AEBEWKESIino USA
30,000,0000% & 3@ A% ° 1B 5 Bl A
e — 5Bk /X A FRIE30,000,00078 7T
K2 8 U & 517,000,00058 JT(E 3 »
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55. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as otherwise disclosed, at 31 December 2008, the Group's credit

facilities were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

55. EEEH

BRETREN R-BENEFF A
S+—B RSB EERAUAEET
FUAE R

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2B/f —eELA

FHET FET

Hotel property B 597,894 603,548
Leasehold land and building ME T RIEF 14,328 13,557
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 9,923 =
Properties under construction EEmE 56,546 =
Prepaid lease payments FEREENIE 159,654 -
Bank balances RITHE R 12,063 11,916
850,408 629,021

The Group has also effected a pledge of fixed charge over all the
revenue and a floating charge over all the assets of certain subsidiaries
for bank borrowings. Revenue of those subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$95,858,000 for 2008 (2007: HK$92,305,000)
and their total assets are approximately HK$13,977,000 (2007:
HK$14,571,000) at 31 December 2008.

Further, the Group has a fixed charge over the entire issued share capital
of and/or shareholder’s loan to certain subsidiaries for bank borrowings
and promissory note, and the carrying amount of their net assets at 31
December 2008 amounted to approximately HK$258,056,000 (2007:
HK$231,562,000).

REBIAE THIE R RLZ AN EA
EEERAREMEAEERTZEETM
RITEE - ZEMBRARAN-ZZN\FZ
Uz 5 #9 495,858,000/ T (— T T L4
92,305,000/ ) MR =TT NF+=
R=+—BzE&EAERAA13,977,000
B (ZE T4 14,571,000 L) °

BN REBELE THB AR Z 25E %
TR R SRS B RAE A B E AR [A14R
TEERARZE MZSHERRZF
BER-_TTNF+=-_A=+—HZK
E{E#1/4258,056,000/8 7 (ZZEZT 4
231,562,000/ 7T ) °

)-)- 2008 % - KRR (ER)ARA T
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56. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 56. & & H AT
As lessee EREABEA
At 31 December 2008, the Group had commitments for future RZZBENF+ZA=+—0 £AKEHR
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which BEE AT HHLCERL 2 RRRERS
fall due as follows: NRIERAE - L ERAEZZHBENT:
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000
—EENF ZTTLF
FET FHIT
Land and buildings THREF
Within one year —F R 20,085 20,054
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FZETF(RREEEME) 17,072 8,938
37,157 28,992
Equipment B
Within one year —FR" 597 358
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEFAF (BEEEMNF) 1,566 179
2,163 537
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KEHONHEAEEREETHAE
certain of its office properties, shops and employees’ quarters as well as mE -EH EEEESRREMEMNZHE
equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years. & MAFETE T REAMRE -
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56. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 56. & H A AIE (&)

As lessor EREHBEA
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$18,220,000 FRURELZ M S WA 518,220,000/
(2007: HK$17,952,000). T (ZZFZ+5:17,952,00087T) °
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for REEH AEBEBFIIZE8 RA
the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BARB T AIRGE 2 K ETHO T IIREY
operating leases for its investment properties and premises within the ERBEMERNZEFZARKERESM
hotel properties: B
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —EEEF
FET FAET
Within one year —FR" 17,753 17,952
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEFLF (BEEEMF) 42,790 41,764
After five years hF2& 1,693 3,698
62,236 63,414
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57.

58.

EEANSF+ZAZ+—BLFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 57. BEZEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —ETLF
FExT FHT
Contracted for but not provided B T EEITNERRERE M
in the consolidated financial statements WA
in respect of
Acquisition of companies holding prepaid WHEFEENEERIB LR
lease payment - 177,492
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—REREHIEE 2RE 37,687 45,476
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & B 3 « #2832 15 463,269 397,858
500,956 620,826

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion
of its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“"ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the

MPF Scheme.

174 Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -%1

58. &

K&

AEBR/RABOBEREREERAKEF
g - FERFFERERRNKE -ZF
REERAEE 2 EENRH UES2HTRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % =

58. PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by the

employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both

employees and the Group at 5% of the employee's basic salary.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

The amounts charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions paid or payable to schemes by the Group of
approximately HK$10,953,000 (2007: HK$8,385,000) less forfeiture of
HK$34,000 (2007: HK$105,000) arising from employees leaving the

Group prior to completion of the qualifying service period, if any.

At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefit schemes
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable in future

years was HK$60,000 (2007: HK$43,000).

A B RARM A

BEENF+_A=Z+—BEFE

BARESEE (9

AEBEABRER KB RBES T EIE
HABRBEFMARARS% 2 5 EE8 2 Hf
HAER

BEEAAERREERASESARKESR
EAFHE 5% EHZHRIERES -

REE BB QR 2 EEY AT BB
EREZBEERAENIKE  ZEWE

AR R B H %A T 8 2 L AR RER
AEHT REAREES -AREBZ
REME I —RER 2 BEERIE S
TR HTE 2 K

RAKBZRPIZZHE  RAKER
SRR T 58] 2 #E504910,953,0007 7T
(ZZZ+4:8,38500087T) mEAE
B (8 B 7L Rk e A & 18 AR 165 4F B AT B g
(0B ) M8 M2 #53%34,0008 T (=&
T4 :105,0007T) °

REEB HESRMBRKENE M
02 W - I AT 4 H1R R 2R 6 2 PR A AR R
Z A E A60,0008 70 (ZEEHF
43,000/ 7T) °
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5O.BBEALETRS

B E M B RREMED FAREE N
FR-AEBEBEALETZRZMN

59. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this consolidated financial statements,

during the year, the Group had transactions with related parties as

follows: o8
(@) Nature of transactions Name of company 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(@) XBZHHE DNEEB —EENF —ETLF
T FiET
Air ticketing and travel service Hanny Holdings Limited and
income received and receivable its subsidiaries (i) 739 732
by the Group REEEBR AR RENEQF)
REBEDWRER ZHER PYI Corporation Limited and
R 382 AR 75 LA its subsidiaries (iv) 2,113 3,069
RESE G R AT REM B2 V)
See Corporation Limited (v) - 575
EEEEEBR ARV
China Enterprises Limited (iv) - 4
ITC Corporation Limited and
its subsidiaries (iv) 808 411
EHCEEEBR AR KL
H B8 2 R(iv)
ITC Properties Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (i) 1,370 1,323
BHMEEERTR AR R
H BT8R R()
PSC Corporation Limited (i) 124 123
5,154 6,237
Tour costs paid and payable Ananda Travel Services (Aust.)
by the Group Pty Ltd. (iii) 32,467 35,538
REEBN RER ZBEFKA Wing On Int'l Travel Service Ltd.
Guangdong (iii) 4,449 5,553
J& R Ak 22 B R FR AT AL B BR A R (i)
36,916 41,091
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59. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 59. BEALTRZ (&)
(@) Nature of transactions Name of company 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(@) XZHHAE NOE-T: —BENE ZTTHEF
FiET FET
Interest paid and payable China Enterprises Limited (iv) 1,263 3,489
on convertible notes PSC Corporation Limited (i) 242 -
AR ER 2 BN RERFE ITC Properties Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (i) 505 -
BHMEEERERAR R
H 2 R ()
2,010 3,489
Loan interest paid and payable PYI Corporation Limited and
by the Group its subsidiaries (v) 19,715 2,766
REEE N RERZEFHFE RELSEAR DT REME ARV
Hanny Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries (i) 62 1,036
7 5 55 (8 75 PR ) =) B EL BT /B8 2 | (i)
ITC Management Limited (iv) 952 10,594
ITC Properties Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (i) 1,012 4,892
BHMEEEFRAR KR
H I8 2 R()
TIL Capital Corporation Limited (ii) 4,358 144
TZG Holding Limited (ii) 1,931 167
28,030 19,599
Loan interest received and receivable  See Corporation Limited (v) - 1,087
by the Group EEELSEGRA (V)
REEB WK EWR 2 EFHFE
- 1,087
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(@)
(@)

59. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 5. BEALTRE ()
Nature of transactions Name of company 2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000
THEMHE DR A —E2ENF —ETHF
TR FHT
Staff secondment fee paid and Mass Success International Limited (i) 3,000 3,000
payable by the Group
AEHEENRENZEIERER
3,000 3,000
Property rental and management Hanny Holdings Limited and
fee received and receivable its subsidiaries (i) 553 447
by the Group IR E BB R A R R ENE 2 F)
REBEE KB RERZWEBER
EIRE
553 447
Website maintenance services Hanny Holdings Limited and
received and receivable its subsidiaries (i) 36 38
by the Group IREEEBR A R R ENE 2 F)
AEE D W I 2 BUE SRS Travoo Asia Limited (i) 1,217 1,193
China Enterprises Limited (iv) 4 -
1,257 1,231
Property rental and management fee  Travoo Asia Limited (iii) 1,212 816
paid and payable by the Group
REEERNRENZYEHEER
ERE
1,212 816
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59. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(0)

The relationship between the above related parties and the Group

are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and

have beneficial interests in these companies;

These companies are minority shareholders of subsidiaries of

the Company;

The above companies are associates of the Group;

The above companies have beneficial interest in the

Company; and

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and

have beneficial interests in this company in 2007.

During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group

advanced loans to and received loans from related companies.

Details of their relationships and the terms of the loans are set out

in notes 30 and 37, respectively.

The Group maintained current accounts with jointly controlled

entity, related companies and associates. Their balances as at 31

December 2008 are set out in notes 19, 26, 27 and 38.

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of and have

beneficial interests in those related companies.

5. MEBEAETRS (#)

LIEREA T ERAKE 2 BEMT

() ARBAETEFEFRLAQA
ZEERNZERREEER
HE

(i) LiETREBARRFNBA
Az DER

(i) ERARSAEHEHZEEZER
Al

() ERARREARRZ R
2% R

) EARNETEER-TTLE
BHLRAAZEERRED
A E

RBE_ZZN\FR_ZT+F+
A=+—BHItFE AEEBE MEEE

NEEN RITEE R - BEEA R Z
BR R & AR 2 715 9 Rl E R
F¥30%37 °

i)

=

19 26 27 }2 38 -

RRABETESFHRLZFMEAQR
ZEERRZERERTES
R o

ka
8 m

\/

Bk
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59. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2007, a director of the
Company has given personal guarantees of HK$300 million to
a financial institution in respect of loan facilities utilised by the
Group. All outstanding loans under such facilities were settled
as at 31 December 2007 and the loan facilities were expired

accordingly.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company also
entered into agency arrangements with certain related companies
to handle at their instructions and on their behalf, matters relating
to their potential and existing projects in the PRC for a fee to be

finalised and agreed upon.

(f)  Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management members, who are the

directors of the Company during the year, was as follows:

LEE ARAR—ZEEHAEEED

BRAZERMER S mgER

#£300,000,00078 7T 2 Al A R - B

HRECHARERERER S

THF+-A=-+—BBHEE M
REE e BIE -

REBEEZ_ZEZEN\F+=_A=+—8
WEFE AR AR TFRAEARE]

VRELZ - URBEZFAEARZ
BRMARZFEENR RIERH
HERFBZBERRERBEZEE
ERB/REERBE-

TEEBAR ZH M

ERARAREFTZIREEAERN
FRZFHMOT :

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENFE —TELF

FHExT FHIT

Short-term benefits %2 BitE A 169 329
Share-based payments VAR 15 245 5K 18 - 1,197
Post-employment benefits BRER 1242 T - =
169 1,526

The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008

and 2007 are as follows:

60. T EME A 7

ATBR_ZZNFR

“BRLEL A

=t —HAXRBZETEMBRRFE:

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
MR, BRITRERE ARARBEECRITRE/
AR BEBY B/ EREE ERRAEE 2L FEXBRERAY
BE k3
“EENE —TRLF ZZENE  CETLF
% % % %
Allied Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 55.7 55.7  Investment holding in
("Allied Glory") Hong Kong
ARERREFRAR ([AR]) Bk 287 - - 55.7 55.7  AARERK
Apex Quality Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,548,172 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding
Apex Quality Group Limited HBRRRES 5,548,172 7T - - 67.9 679 RERR
Asia Times Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Asia Times Limited RBARRES 100% 7 - - 100 100 REERK
Benchmark Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Benchmark Pacific Limited HBRRRES (EH - - 100 100 BBFREER
DS Eastin Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
BERSREERAH BR 20%7T - - 67.9 679 EBEREER
Fortress State International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100  Property holding in
Hong Kong
RERERERAR BR 10,0007 - - 100 100 HABBNE
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60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 60. T EM B AT (&)
Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
EMAREL BRITRARE ARARBEERITRE/
ARER BRI B/ EREE ERRAEE 2L FERBRERAY
HE k3
ZEENE —TRLF ZZENE  _ERLF
% % % %
Hey Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 67.9 67.9  Hotel ownership in
Hong Kong
Hey Wealth Limited B 28T - - 67.9 679 REBEBBE
HKWOT (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 - - Investment holding in
Hong Kong
HKWOT (BVI) Limited RBARRES (E 100 100 - - BAREER
HMH China Investments Limited Bermuda CAD1,152,913 - - 55.7 55.7  Investment holding in
Canada
HMH China Investments Limited BRE 1,152,913/1#% - = 55.7 557 MERREER
Hong Kong Wing On Travel Service Hong Kong Ordinary - - - 100 100  Outbound travel and
Limited HK$180,000,100 related services
Deferred -
HK$20,000,000%
BRKRIBAERAA 3 TERH - - - 100 100 ShE KBRS
180,000,100/ 7T
BB -
20,000,000/ 7T *
International Travel Systems Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
International Travel Systems Inc. HBERRES (EF - - 100 100 REER
Kingsgrove International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - = 100 100  Property investment in
Hong Kong
Kingsgrove International Limited B 28T - - 100 100 BENERE
Lucky Million Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Lucky Million Investments Limited HBRRRES (EF - - 67.9 679 BERELR
Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Co., Ltd. ~ PRC* RMB145,000,000 - - 40.8 40.8  Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
REEKERNBERRAR RE 145,000,000A K% - = 40.8 408 REHEEREEHE
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60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 60. T EM B AT (&)
Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
MR, ERITRERE ARARBEERITRE/
ARER Bt R R/ EMER HMEAEE L TEXBRER LY
BEE [GiE:3
ZEENE —TRLF ZZENE  CETLF
% % % %
Makerston Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Makerston Limited REARRES (E - - 67.9 679 EBEREER
Many Good Money Exchange Limited  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - - 100 100 Money exchange
services in Hong Kong
BRBHRAERRAR BA 100,00038 7 - - 100 100  FEEEEHRRS
Millennium Target Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 100  Trading of securities in
Hong Kong
Millennium Target Holdings Limited ~ EE#BREE (E - - 100 100 EFEFER
Rail Partners, Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$812 - - 7 72 Train operation
in the PRC
Rail Partners, Inc. HBRRRES 812%7T - - 72 72 RHRBEEETIBEE
Rosedale Group Management Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 - - 67.9 67.9  Provision of management
and secretarial services
in Hong Kong
HESEERARAT B 287 - - 67.9 679 REAREEER
WERE
Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. PRC* US$17,200,000 - - 64.5 64.5  Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
ERHABEEERAEAR RE 17,200,000 70 - - 64.5 645 RAPEREEREEEE
Rosedale Hotel Group Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
HEEEREERAR KERBAREHS (EH - - 67.9 679 AEBREER
Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. ~ PRC* US$11,500,000 - - 55 55  Hotel ownership and
("Rosedale Guangzhou") operation in the PRC
EMABEEERAH R 11,500,000 7T - - 55 55 RPEERREEEE
(TEM3aRE])
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 67.9 67.9  Hotel operation in
Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited BR 2T - - 67.9 679 REBKLEE
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60. T EM B AT (&)

po

60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
EMARL BRITRAR ARARBEERITRE/
ARER BRibH R/ EMER HMEAEE L TEXBREX LY
HE [GiE:3
“BEENE —TRLF ZBENE  _ETLF
% % % %
The Rosedale Luxury Hotel & Suites Ltd.  PRC** US$19,350,000 - - 100 100  Property investment in
the PRC
HEEX (LB)BRAR R 19,350,000% 7T - - 100 100 HEWNEEE
Shenyang Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Shenyang Limited HBEBRES (E - - 67.9 679 EBBREER
Shropshire Property Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - - - 67.9 67.9  Investment holding in
Uss$10 Hong Kong
Preference -
Us$1,000
RENFBERAF KEEBREHS EER- - - 67.9 679 AEBREER
10%7T
BER-
1,000% 7T
Sino Express Travel, Ltd. United States of US$135,657 - - 66.4 48** Provision of travel and
America related services
Sino Express Travel, Ltd. E3 135,657 T - - 66.4 48+ FRUEIREE RABR RS
Sino Express Travel Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 - - 66.4 48** Investment holding
Sino Express Travel Limited HBERRES 100 7T - - 66.4 48+ JREER
Square Inn Hotel Management Macau MOP100,000 - - 52.5 52.5  Budget hotel operation
Limited in Macau
Square Inn Hotel Management P 100,000 ¥ - = 525 525  RRPIEBEEREE
Limited
Square Inn Budget Hotels United States of US$1,420,474 - - 52.5 52.5  Investment holding
Management, Inc. America
Square Inn Budget Hotels xE 1,420,474% T - - 525 525 REER
Management, Inc.
Success Billion Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 100  Trading of securities in
Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited HBRERRES (E - - 100 100 BEHEFEE

184 Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited - Annual Report 2008 -*1
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A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

60. T EMBE AT (&)

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
MR, BRITRERE ARARBEERITRE/
AREB Bt R R/ ERER AEMEREEZ A TEXBRERLE
BEE [GiE:3
ZEENE —TRLF ZZENE  CEERLF
% % % %

Super Grade Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 100 Property investment in
Hong Kong

Super Grade Investment Limited HBHRRES (E - - 100 100 BEEMERE

Tangula Group Limited Cayman Islands US$1,000 - - 72 72 Investment holding

Tangula Group Limited HEMRE 1,000% 7T - - 72 72 REAER

Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited PRC* RMB168,000,000 - - 59.1 59.1  Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC

BRES OBG) ERAR " 168,000,000A K% - - 59.1 59.1  RABEEE RESBE

Watertours of Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - - - 100 100 Watertour services in

HK$1,500,000 Hong Kong
“B" - HK$100*
BB EBEERAA B LERH - - - 100 100 &FE EiRERE
1,500,000/ 7T
Bk —
1007 7%

WHS Marine Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Ship Building, repair and
holdings of leisure
boats in Hong Kong

KEEERARAR 20 1,000,000%7% - - 100 100 REBEM BEHE
LR EHE

Wing On Holidays (Macau) Limited Macau MOP1,300,000 - - 100 100 Travel and related
services in Macau

KREBRE CRM) BERAR i 1,300,000 % - - 100 100 RPIKE RAEERS

Wing on Travel Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Money lending in
Hong Kong

KEIRETBERR BB 28T - - 100 100 REBREEEES

Wing On Travel International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 - - Investment holding

Wing On Travel International Limited ~ EB# B RH S (EF 100 100 - - REBER
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e HRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # %2 —~EZEZN%+ - =+ —H L5 &

60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

60. T EKE A

Al (&)

Place of Issued and paid up
incorporation/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued share Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital/registered capital held by Company place of operation
Directly Indirectly
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
EMAREL BRTRBRE ARARBEERITRE/
AREB BRbH R/ ERER HEMEREEZ A TEXBREX LY
HE [GiE:3
ZEENE —TRLF ZZENE  _ERLF
% % % %
Wing On Travel (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$10,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Wing On Travel (BVI) Limited HBHRRES 10,0003 7T - - 100 100 ®EER
Wing On Travel (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom £2 - - 100 100 Travel and related
services in the United
Kingdom
Wing On Travel (U.K.) Limited HE 25 - - 100 100 RBIKEREERS
WOT Holidays (Canada) Limited Canada C$15,000 - - 100 100 Travel and related
services in Canada
WOT Holidays (Canada) Limited mex 15,000/ - - 100 100 MNEAHRE RAERRS
Yangjiang Silver Beach Entertainment ~ PRC*# RMB10,500,000 - - 66.4 48** Hotel ownership and
Services Limited operation in the PRC
GIL R RER LB SR i 10,500,000A K% - - 66.4 48+ RAEGEE REEBE
BRAR
*  The deferred shares and “B” shares are owned by the Group, * RERMD KBRABAERES B L
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to ERNREBEARZRESERZA
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies or AIEMREAGREHEERRERNE
to participate in any distribution in winding up. NG LR RZ A RERR I EE
S E DK
* % * % =

The entities were 48% owned associates of the Group at 31
December 2007.

& The subsidiaries are PRC Sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RARM A

For the year ended 31 December 2008 . % —RENF+=_F =+ — 80 LFE

60. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 60. T EM B AT (&)

#  This subsidiary is a PRC Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied o ZMBRARAR—RAPBEPINEGIEEE
Glory is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital and Nl EMHE 2 RBERTIAED K
interest) from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou before ERIFIER] - & RB MR U EIE 2
any amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax earnings of BE (RIEERRFB) - 2% BN
Rosedale Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80% and 20% to Allied B AT 18 B FIZA LAB0% & 20% 2 Lt
Glory and other joint venture partner respectively. Bl B IRTERREME &R

##  The subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned entities. e R EMB AR TR BN B E

##  The subsidiary is a PRC domestic company. #it B AR IR BBIERAR]

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion EERRLERMIAEE 2B A REA

of the directors, principally affected the results or assets and liabilities of S EESEERBBEREEATE -E

the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of ERBMYEMHMBARZFHEESHEE

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. BRIUK - L EEFES

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries during the FERN-BEAANBARZEITESES -

year.
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Financial Summary

MBHE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
HE+-A=1t—-HLEE
=t 1 J¥-3 —ETf —BEAE —ETHF —BEMmE
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHET
(E23))
Turnover ] 2,216,897 2,266,163 1,992,354 1,815,718 1,722,177
(Loss) profit before taxation Briial (B518) & A (825,748) (42,143) (81,295) 30,126 (2,852)
Taxation (expense) credit B () #E (7,165) 46,631 1,891 2,108 23
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E1E)m T (832,913) 4,488 (79,404) 32,234 (2,829)
Attributable to: FEAh
Shareholders of the parent FRAIRE (688,918) (16,199) (71,748) 31,109 8,556
Minority interests DY R R (143,995) 20,687 (7,656) 1,125 (11,385)
(832,913) 4,488 (79,404) 32,234 (2,829)
Dividends ) 9,103 11,908 9,188 8,752 =
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
R+=A=+-8
—EEN\E —ETF —EEREF —ZTRE —ETNF
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
(&=27))
Total assets BEBE 4,623,726 4,813,625 3,834,882 3,031,623 2,572,322
Total liabilities BEBEE 2,372,211 2,251,098 2,148,095 1,617,579 1,643,878
2,251,515 2,562,527 1,686,787 1,414,044 928,444
Equity attributable to 5 QAR FEAG
shareholders of the parent g 1,836,344 2,044,482 1,255,312 978,976 630,142
Minority interests LH AR R = 415,171 518,045 431,475 435,068 298,302
2,251,515 2,562,527 1,686,787 1,414,044 928,444
Note: The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are Wik: BELHMALEBEMRZER_ZTZTAF

effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.
Financial information for 2004 has been restated for these new and
revised policies in accordance with the transitional provisions. Financial
information for earlier period has not been adjusted to take into account
of the effect on the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs as the
directors considered that it is not practicable to do so.
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Particulars of Properties

MEFHE

LAND AND BUILDINGS T REF
Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
AT b:chold RS $th 88 T 8 AR EEEDL
Kingsgrove International Workshops A and B on Warehouse 1,645.86 1,645.86 100%
Limited 1/F., Sunking Factory sg.m. Sg.m.
Building, 1-7 Shing Chuen
Road, Taiwai, Shatin,
New Territories
Kingsgrove International R =) 1,645.86 1,645.86 100%
Limited S HEKXE F K 5K
X2 B&1-75%
IESTEKXE
118EAKNBI%
Super Grade Investment Units 1222 and 1223 on Office 151.90 151.90 100%
Limited 12/F., Nan Fung Centre, sq.m. sqg.m.
264-298 Castle Peak Road and
64-98 Sai Lau Kok Road,
Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
Super Grade Investment I ENES 151.90 151.90 100%
Limited By | FFK TR
F11138264-2985% &
PA1E A 35 64-985%
FEh.01218
1222 [k 1223=
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Particulars of Properties

MRFTE

HOTEL PROPERTIES HIEY %
Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
A p:ubeld RRAR b 88 T 7R HER BEBES
Hey Wealth Limited Rosedale on the Park Hotel operation 6,640.50  102,173.00 67.9%
No. 8 Shelter Street, sq.ft. sq.ft.
Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Hey Wealth Limited EAE SR R ST 6,640.50  102,173.00 67.9%
BE FIHR FHR
1 &
{518k
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites = Hotel operation 18,699.60 37,173.20 64.5%
Beijing Co., Ltd. Beijing sq.m. sqg.m.
No. 8 Jiang Tai Road West,
Chao Yang District,
Beijing, the PRC
EtRMEBEEREERR  LRIABEE IEBIE¥Y  18,699.60  37,173.20 64.5%
L R 73K 7K
5=
% & PO B& 85k
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites m Hotel operation 10,838.88 46,865.83 55%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou sg.m. sg.m.
No. 348
Jiangnanda Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC
BENBBEERR AR BN IR R iETIE¥R 10,838.88  46,865.83 55%
B T 3K 7K
BIRE
TR RSB 3485
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Particulars of Properties

MEFHE

HOTEL PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) BIEW= (#&)
Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
| 3k B A® ith 82 T K A EEEIE
Luoyang Golden Gulf Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Hotel operation 9,025.51 21,269.18 40.8%
Hotel Co., Ltd. No. 319 Zhongzhou sg.m. sg.m.
Zhong Road

Xigong District
Luoyang City

Henan Province, the PRC

BEEKERBEERAR BBEKEXBE SO TR ¥ 9,025.51 21,269.18 40.8%
PR A oK 75K
ST L&

AR AR B 31955

Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited  Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 59.4%
No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. Sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC
RRES (&%) BRA A &R EISE IS AT TR 2E 7S 5,335.00  43,000.34 59.4%
FEEER 7K IR
SR T LA [
1t Uk 259957
Yangjiang Silver Beach o B E R A 5L TR S R Hotel 50,901.00 2,589.89 66.4%
Entertainment Services BEAAILGERNELEST operation sq.m. sq.m.
Limited
15 L T 3R 77 SR8 BN 2L AR 75 REEREGIMERSRE KEBREEY 50,901.00 2,589.89 66.4%
BERAA BEAAILGERNBE RS 7K K
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Particulars of Properties

M EFH1B

HOTEL PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) BIEW = (#&)
Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
AT 54 REGAZ 2R R BER BREIL
Sichuan Square Inn Hotel 7th to 8th Floor, Xihu Street, Hotel - 1,400.00 52.5%
Management Limited Xipu Town, Chengdu City, operation Sg.m.

Sichuan Province, the PRC

WA ENEREER FRE)IE 4O [ ST = 1,400.00 52.5%
BRAR R EB T /R R SR 773K

BHETE8E

PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION EEYE
Expected
Existing Gross Floor % Completion
Company Address Use Site Area Area Completion Date
AT i3k B & b SRR BREEE TREDL ErEIAH
Fortress State Nos. 84-86, Vacant 845.40 10,300.46 5% March 2011
International Limited Tai Kok Tsui Road, sg.m. sg.m.
Tai Kok Tsui,
Kowloon
R BIFR AR A A NEAXNAR =E 845.40 10,300.46 5% T4
K FAIH B84 865 FFK SFFTAK =
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REY=
Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
AT i 31k B AR FHE
The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Vacant Leasehold with a term expiring
Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District, on 15th October, 2023

Shanghai, the PRC

HEEX (LB)BRAR T E =8 HERE HER-_T_=F
EETRER +TRA+TEBER

K 1L #%19005%
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Hong Kong Wing On Travel Service Limited

BRKRRERRQ A

Central 1

Shop B27, Basement,

Bank of America Tower,

12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
BEARRERE2REEBITH O EB275 4
TEL B 3% 2520 2628 FAX & 25202229

Room 1707, Crawford House,

70 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
BEREFEANERT0RRHEAEI707E
TEL E5% 2189 7689 FAX {£H 2189 7686

Causeway Bay #f i &

Rooms 601-2, Hang Lung Centre,

2-20 Paterson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEIRE B E2-205 EEF 0601-2F

TEL 5% 2577 5655 FAX {£H 3162 8470

Aberdeen & B {F

Shop 13, G/F, Site 2, Aberdeen Centre, Hong Kong
BARB BT L2 13554

TEL #5% 3523 1118 FAX {EH 3523 1113

Taikoo Shing A ¥

Shop 062, G/F,, Cityplaza 2,

18 Taikoo Shing Road, Hong Kong

F AR 1 85R A I 0 B2 A3 TS 0625 4
TEL % 5% 2886 3183 FAX {5 & 2568 3081

Chai Wan 4¢ &

Shop 143, L1, New Jade Shopping Arcade,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong
BB R 121435

TEL B 3% 3157 1668 FAX {5E 3157 1666

Tsimshatsui 2 1R

Room 802, 8/F., Carnarvon Plaza,

20 Carnarvon Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
NEERDENNE S B0 INE 5 E 5812802 E
TEL B 3% 2926 3838 FAX {EE 2317 0280

Mongkok FE £

Rooms 313&315, 3/F, Bank Centre,

636 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon
BT AR ZUE6365R RITH O 31E313X315=

TEL B 3% 2928 6666 FAX {EE 2782 1655

Diamond Hill §& A L
Shops G110-111, G/F, Plaza Hollywood,
Diamond Hill, Kowloon

BRI B EI5H TG110-1115% 4
TEL B 3% 2927 6600 FAX {EE 2955 5536

Kowloon Bay J1 € &

Shop 606, Level 6, Telford Plaza I,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

BB IE 1R 1R 52 Bl6iE 60655k i

TEL 835 2927 2228 FAX {5E 2997 3530

Kwun Tong 8 &

Shop M17, Kwun Tong Plaza,

68 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
NEBIEFHIRECSTEVRESM175 4

TEL 52389 1111 FAX{EH 2763 5288

Tseung Kwan O #$E &
Shop 210, Level 2, East Point City,
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon

JUBE G BRI 3521821057 4

TEL E5E 2927 2266 FAX £ H 2628 6122

Kowloon City JUEE

Shop 331, Level 3, KCP,

128 Carpenter Road,

Kowloon City, Kowloon

JUBE LB B N 38 12858 NLBE B 531833198 4
TEL &35 2988 8379 FAX {& & 2988 8952

Shatin H

Unit 721, 7/F, Citylink Plaza, Shatin, N.T.
AL HEWEE7IET2E

TEL B 3% 2929 4282 FAX {HH 2601 2854

Kwai Fong %3

Shop 1458, Level 1, Metroplaza,

Kwai Fong, N.T.

R TEE 5118145857 4

TEL T 5% 2421 2283 FAX {EH 24212166

Tsuen Wan £ &

Rooms 1222-1223, 12/F.,, Nan Fung Centre,
264-298 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.
MAREES LiB264-2985 F9 P00 12181222-1223%
TEL &% 2411 1339 FAX {HH 2411 1382

Yuen Long Jt B

Rooms 602-603, Yuen Long Trade Centre,
99-109 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.

¥R ICEAE L ABE99-109%5 TR E 5 1 602-603%
TEL E 5% 2476 0933 FAX {EH 2476 0839

Tuen Mun P9

Shop 2127, 2/F., Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Phase |,
1 Tuen Shing Street, Tuen Mun, N.T.

FAEPIE BRI ES E 1821821275 4

TEL % 5% 2450 8333 FAX & H 2450 9090

Sheung Shui £k

Shop 507, Level 5, Landmark North,
Sheung Shui, N.T.

R K EKES5E5075% 8

TEL & 3% 2668 6830 FAX {2 E 2668 6211

Tai Po K1

Shop 135, Level 1, Zone B,

Tai Po Mega Mall, Tai Po, N.T.

TR AR B AR BIE 14813557 4

TEL E 3% 2929 0288 FAX {2 E 2662 3281

Wing On Holidays (Macau) Limited
KZBRE ORFM)ERAE

Macau 2P

Avenida da Praia Grande,

No.730-804 Edificio China Plaza,

r/c, Lojas “L"e"M", Macau

SELPI 7 K 5 95 730-8045% 1P 2 E 15 10 S LK MEE

TEL & 3% (853) 28 370522  FAX {2 E (853) 28 370523

Wing On International Travel
Service Co. Ltd, Guangdong
BRAKZERKRITEER QA
Guangzhou EM

Room 303, 3/F.,, Min Zheng Tower,

99 Xi Hu Road, Guangzhou, PRC

AR B N T P H BR 995 R K [E 318303 %

TEL 2% (86) 20 83368388 FAX {42 (86) 20 83369288

Wing On International Travel
Service (Hunan) Limited

M R AR AT AR A S
Chang Sha E#

Room 61002, VIP Tower, Huatian Hotel,

300 East Jie Fang Road, Chang Sha, Hunan, PRC
AR IR & R T AR B B8 3005%
ERABEEEZ10161002E

TEL % 2% (86) 731 2228556 FAX {2 H (86) 731 2282556



Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited

7th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

kR hRE(ZR)BRLA
ERNEREABES I FRECEF LTS

www.woth.com.hk
www.wingontravel.com
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